
CITY OF HAYS COMMISSION MEETING 
THURSDAY, APRIL 24, 2014 – 6:30 P.M.  

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Call to order by Chairperson.   
 

2. MINUTES: Consider approval of the minutes from the regular meeting held on      
April 10, 2014. (PAGE 1) 

 
3. FINANCIAL STATEMENT: Consider accepting the Financial Statement for the month of 

March, 2014. (PAGE 7) 
 

4. CITIZEN COMMENTS:  (non-agenda items). 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA:  (Items to be approved by the Commission in one motion, unless 
objections are raised).  
 

A. Cereal Malt Beverage Licenses: Al’s Chickenette and Downtown Hays Development 
Corp. (Blues & BBQ) (PAGE 67) 
 

B. Mayoral Appointments for Approval: CARE Council, Hays Housing Authority Board, 
Hays Public Library Board, and Sister Cities Advisory Board (PAGE 81) 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

(No business to review) 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

6. EXTENSION OF CONTRACT SEWER CLEANING AGREEMENT: Consider extending 
the contract with Mayer Specialty Services, LLC for sewer cleaning and videoing in 2014 
to be funded from Wastewater Other Contractual Services. (PAGE 87) 
 

7. BIKE HAYS KDOT AGREEMENTS FOR BICYCLE PAVEMENT MARKINGS AND 
PEDESTRIAN – BICYCLE PATH: Consider approving the Bike Hays KIDOT 
Agreements for Bicycle Pavement Markings and the Pedestrian – Bicycle Path.         
(PAGE 103) 

 
8. TAXI LICENSE APPLICATION – YADDAY ENTERPRISES, LLC (CONVENIENCE 

CAB: Consider approving the Taxi License for Yadday Enterprises, LLC (Convenience 
Cab). (PAGE 141) 

 
9. PROGRESS REPORT 

 
10. REPORT OF THE CITY MANAGER (PAGE 153) 
 
11. COMMISSION INQUIRIES AND COMMENTS   
 



12. EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF REQUIRED) 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 

ANY PERSON WITH A DISABILITY NEEDING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO ATTEND THIS MEETING 
SHOULD CONTACT THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING 
TIME.  EVERY ATTEMPT WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE ANY REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE. 



 

 

MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 

THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 

HELD ON APRIL 10, 2014 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN:  The Governing Body of the City of Hays, 

Kansas met in regular session on Thursday, April 10, 2014 at 6:30 p.m. 

  Roll Call:  Present:  Kent Steward 

Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

         Absent: Ron Mellick 

 Chairperson Steward declared that a quorum was present and called the 

meeting to order. 

2.  MINUTES:  There were no corrections or additions to the minutes of the 

regular session held on March 27, 2014; the minutes stand approved as 

presented. 

3.  MAYOR’S COMMENTS:  Chairperson Steward expressed his thanks and 

gratitude to the Commissioners.  He stated a lot has been accomplished and he 

gives tremendous credit to the people of Hays. 

4.  REORGANIZATION OF GOVERNING BODY:  Eber Phelps moved, Shaun 

Musil seconded, that Henry Schwaller IV be elected to the position of Mayor. 

Vote:  Ayes:   Kent Steward 

  Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil  

 

 

 

1



 

Henry Schwaller IV moved, Shaun Musil seconded, that Eber Phelps be 

elected to the position of Vice-Mayor. 

Vote:  Ayes:  Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

Kent Steward 

 Chairperson Schwaller recapped the many events, activities and 

accomplishments that occurred during Mr. Steward’s term as mayor.  He also 

thanked him for his service and presented him with a plaque. 

5.  CITIZEN COMMENTS:  There were no comments. 

6. CONSENT AGENDA:   

A. Kent Steward moved, Shaun Musil seconded, that Resolution No. 2014-005, 

adopting the City of Hays City Commission Rules of Procedure and repealing all 

previous resolutions, motions, or actions in conflict therewith, be approved. 

   Vote:  Ayes:  Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Kent Steward 

B.  The following proposed mayoral appointments were presented and are 

scheduled to be approved at the April 24, 2014 City Commission meeting. 

CARE Council 

Michael Billinger – 2-year term to expire on March 1, 2016  

Olga Detrixhe – 2-year term to expire on March 1, 2016  

Hays Housing Authority Board 

Sue Rouse – 4-year term to expire February 14, 2018 

Hays Public Library Board 

Katherine Wolfe – unexpired term to expire April 30, 2016 

Sister Cities Advisory Board 

Ang Robson – unexpired term to expire January 1, 2015 

 

2



 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 

7. VEHICLE ABATEMENT – 510 WEST 23RD STREET:  The abandoned 

vehicles located at 510 W 23rd have expired tags deeming them inoperable.  Up 

to this point, all proper notification has been given to the owner of the property.  

To date, no action has been taken by the owner of the property.  If the vehicles 

are removed by the City, all costs of abatement will be charged to the owner of 

the property.   

Eber Phelps moved, Kent Steward seconded, to approve Resolution No. 

2014-006 to abate the vehicles located on the property at 510 W 23rd ten days 

after the approval date. 

Vote:  Ayes:  Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Kent Steward 

8.  VEHICLE ABATEMENT – 1309 DONALD DRIVE:  The abandoned vehicle 

(White Pontiac Firebird) located in the rear yard at 1309 Donald Drive has 

expired tags and flat tires therefore deeming it inoperable. Up to this point, all 

proper notification has been given to the owner of the property. To date, no 

action has been taken by the owner of the property. If the vehicle is removed by 

the City, all costs of abatement will be charged to the owner of the property. 

Shaun Musil moved, Eber Phelps seconded, to approve Resolution No. 

2014-007 to abate the vehicle located on the property at 1309 Donald Drive ten 

days after the approval date. 

Vote:  Ayes:  Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Kent Steward 

3



9.  VEHICLE ABATEMENT – 1812 EAST 27TH STREET:  The vehicle at 1812 

East 27th Street has been moved so no action was taken. 

10.  AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR ZONING REGULATION REWRITE 

CONSULTANT:  Primarily as a result of the findings of the 2012 Comprehensive 

Plan, and upon the recommendations of staff and the Planning Commission, it 

was decided to pursue a consultant to rewrite the current “first generation” 

Zoning and Subdivision Regulations.  In November of 2013, proposals were 

sought for the review and rewrite of the current zoning and subdivision 

regulations.  The nine proposals were narrowed down to three by a selection 

committee comprised of City staff and members of the Planning Commission.  

Because they meet the requirements of the request for proposals and were the 

top firm recommended by the Selection Committee, the members of the 

Selection Committee recommend entering into a contract with Kendig Keast 

Collaborative (KKC) for the rewrite of the Zoning and Subdivision Regulations. 

Kent Steward moved, Shaun Musil seconded, that the City Manager be 

allowed to enter into a contract with Kendig Keast Collaborative for the Zoning 

and Subdivision Regulation Rewrite. 

Chairperson Schwaller stated that this is important for orderly 

development and these regulations must have legal standing in court.  

Commissioner Steward amended his motion to include that the contract 

not exceed $150,000. 

Commissioner Musil agreed to amend his second to include that the 

contract not exceed $150,000. 

Vote:  Ayes:  Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Kent Steward 

11.  EPA FINE FOR EXCEEDING WASTEWATER TREATMENT PERMIT 

LIMITS:  In 2012, discharge at the City of Hays wastewater treatment facility was 

out of compliance with the permit issued by the Kansas Department of Health 

and Environment (KDHE).  KDHE was notified immediately and staff worked to 

4



correct the compliance issue as soon as possible.  In 2013, the Environmental 

Protection Agency (EPA) inspected the wastewater facility and noted the permit 

violation.  The EPA determined a fine was in order and initially proposed a fine of 

$29,000, but after negotiation, has issued a fine of $18,000.   

Eber Phelps moved, Kent Steward seconded, to authorize the payment of 

the $18,000 fine to the EPA to be paid out of the Water/Sewer Contingency 

account. 

Bernie Kitten, Director of Utilities explained that excessive levels of 

ammonia were discharged due to a mechanical failure and its lingering effects.  

The plant was testing new processes to reduce the levels of nitrates.   

Chairperson Schwaller commented that we do have an older facility and it 

is in need of repair, but the City was cooperating with the state on the experiment 

and reported the violations.   He also stated that the City lacks the resources to 

challenge it properly in court. 

Vote:  Ayes:  Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Kent Steward 

16.  REPORT OF THE CITY MANAGER:  The Assistant City Manager had 

nothing to report. 

17.  COMMISSION INQUIRIES AND COMMENTS:  Commissioner Phelps 

wanted to congratulate and thank Commissioner Steward for his service as 

mayor and wished Mayor Schwaller the best of luck in the coming year. 

 Chairperson Schwaller stated that we did receive an order from the 

Division of Water Resources and we now have the authority to regulate private 

wells within the city.  The watering ban is from 10:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. and it is 

very important that we follow this in this drought. 

 Chairperson Schwaller also commented that we must work together to 

build a new economy in the community.  He stated that our community lacks new 

businesses and he believes that the future of this community will be in new 

industry that is created here.  

5



 

 The meeting was adjourned at 7:06 p.m. 

 

 Submitted by: _______________________________________________  

     Brenda Kitchen – City Clerk 

 

 

 

6



Memo 
DATE: April 16, 2014 

TO: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 

CC: Paul Briseno, Asst City Manager 

FROM: Kim Rupp, Finance Director 

RE: March 2014 Monthly Financial 

The attached report contains the financial summaries of the revenue and expenditure 
activities of the City of Hays for the month ended March 31, 2014. 

Period to Date Financial Performance 

Revenues in March totaled $1,910,241 a decrease of $60,477 compared to the same period 
as last year.    

• Notable areas of increased revenue compared to March 2013 

o Golf course revenue jumped $14,839 as compared to this time last 
year. YTD membership fees and cart shed rental are up $6910 
however when the fee increases that took place are factored in YTD 
is behind 2013 by $5824 

• Notable areas of revenue decrease compared to March 2013 

o Miscellaneous revenue for the general fund is off $35,792 due in large 
part to the timing of the receipt of payment of $35,000 from the Hays 
Rec Commission for ballfield maintenance. 

o You may have noticed the stormwater fee took a significant drop in 
the amount of $26,649. That was due to a journal entry error that was 
caught after the printing of this report. An adjusting journal entry has 
been completed to correct this. 

Expenditures in March totaled $1,443,717 which is a decrease of $206,349 as compared to 
2013.    

• Notable areas of increased expenditures compared to March 2013 

City of Hays 
Finance Department 

7



o Professional services for Finance increased $11,880 due to the timing 
of the payment to the auditor for work completed so far on the 2013 
audit that is in progress 

o Chemicals for the golf course increased $23,612 when compared to 
this time last year 

o Equipment expense for wastewater was up $10,764 due to repairs 
required to the west primary digester 

o Repairs to buildings and structures was also up in wastewater in the 
amount of $13,453 for the purchase of a pump for the piston sludge 
pump. Staff have had a few emergency purchases to make recently 
regarding equipment and structures at wastewater but they are also 
working on redundancy systems 

• Notable areas of decreased expenditures compared to March 2013 

o Health insurance for the Employee Benefit Fund fell $98,000 when 
compared to this time last year. However, YTD health insurance 
expenditures are up about $8100. Since the city is no longer partially 
self-funded for this the expenditures will be more consistent month to 
month 

o General supplies for parks and playgrounds was off $9700 due in 
large part to the purchase of buffalo grass seed this time last year. 
Given the drought, the seed inventory is not being replenished to the 
same degree as last year as this program will not be widely used until 
drought conditions improve 

MTD general fund sales tax collections were at $555,681 which is a decrease of $5,373 as 
compared to last year. This puts the YTD general fund sales tax collections down -$37,527 or 
-2.00%.  

The report of quarter to date (QTD) sales tax collections by industry classification was 
down $34,724 or -1.85% when comparing the top ten sales tax collecting industries for 
the City of Hays.  These top ten now represent 70.34% of the total QTD sales tax 
distribution.  

 
The Finance/City Clerks office invested $2,000,000 of maturing or renewing certificates 
with a weighted average interest rate of .21%.  The portfolio of certificates of deposit on 
March 31, 2014 totaled $53,550,000 with a weighted average interest rate of .23%.  The 
total balance of the Money Market account on March 31, 2014 was $1,000,000 with a 
current yield of .20%.  Total investments are up $1,250,000 when compared to this time 
last year. 

 

8



Total Cash in All Funds $55,067,200.51 

Checking Accounts with Banks $515,700.51 

Money Market Accounts $1,000,000.00 

Investments $53,550,000.00 

Cash in Office $1,500.00 

TOTAL $55,067,200.51 

General Obligation Bonds $13,570,000.00 

Temporary Notes $0.00 

State Revolving Loan Fund $0.00 

Revenue Bonds $3,675,000.00 

Lease Purchase Agreements $418,061.22 

$17,663,061.22 

STATEMENT OF CREDITS

STATEMENT OF CURRENT OBLIGATIONS

CASH BALANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS

This Document is for Internal Use and Represents Un-audited Figures

As of March 31, 2014

G:\Excel\Financial St.xls

9



Interest Interest

Commerce Bank Certificates of Deposit Date Issued Maturity Date Rate at Maturity

CD #

050 1,200,000.00                     4/6/2012 4/6/2014 0.25% 5,999.99                

002 3,000,000.00                     1/18/2013 4/18/2014 0.21% 7,853.42                

341* 1,500,000.00                     1/31/2013 5/2/2014 0.21% 3,935.34                

33* 2,000,000.00                     6/7/2012 5/30/2014 0.30% 11,868.49              

566* 2,500,000.00                     2/8/2013 6/13/2014 0.21% 7,047.95                

968* 1,000,000.00                     2/25/2013 7/11/2014 0.20% 2,745.21                

110* 1,000,000.00                     4/5/2013 7/25/2014 0.21% 2,738.63                

764 750,000.00                        4/26/2013 8/26/2014 0.18% 1,801.23                

909 2,000,000.00                     6/3/2013 9/3/2014 0.15% 3,756.16                

422 750,000.00                        9/6/2013 9/9/2014 0.14% 1,058.63                

304 1,000,000.00                     6/14/2013 9/14/2014 0.16% 2,003.29                

676* 1,000,000.00                     7/19/2013 10/31/2014 0.18% 2,312.88                

079* 750,000.00                        8/29/2013 11/14/2014 0.18% 1,634.79                

803* 1,000,000.00                     9/20/2013 11/28/2014 0.16% 1,902.47                

827* 2,000,000.00                     9/20/2013 12/12/2014 0.17% 4,247.67                

675* 1,750,000.00                     10/18/2013 1/9/2015 0.16% 3,436.71                

901* 1,000,000.00                     8/23/2013 2/20/2015 0.21% 3,147.37                

746* 1,000,000.00                     2/14/2014 5/29/2015 0.19% 2,441.37                

28 2,000,000.00                     6/6/2013 6/6/2015 0.21% 8,400.00                

902* 1,000,000.00                     8/23/2013 8/23/2015 0.27% 5,400.00                

Sunflower Bank Certificates of Deposit

CD #

Equity Bank Certificates of Deposit

CD #

477 1,000,000.00                     5/30/2012 5/16/2014 0.31% 6,200.00                

909 2,000,000.00                     4/19/2013 8/8/2014 0.24% 6,207.12                

449 3,000,000.00                     1/24/2014 8/28/2014 0.25% 4,438.36                

332 1,000,000.00                     11/8/2013 11/8/2014 0.20% 2,000.00                

161 1,200,000.00                     9/27/2013 12/26/2014 0.19% 2,842.19                

296 1,450,000.00                     10/23/2013 1/23/2015 0.20% 3,630.96                

323 1,000,000.00                     10/31/2013 2/6/2015 0.19% 2,410.14                

341 1,300,000.00                     11/8/2013 3/6/2015 0.25% 4,300.68                

386 1,000,000.00                     11/14/2013 3/19/2015 0.22% 2,953.42                

828 1,650,000.00                     3/28/2013 3/28/2015 0.32% 10,560.00              

440 3,300,000.00                     1/22/2014 4/17/2015 0.49% 19,935.62              

503 1,500,000.00                     1/31/2014 5/14/2015 0.37% 7,116.16                

620 1,000,000.00                     3/21/2014 7/10/2015 0.22% 2,869.04                

Astra Bank Certificates of Deposit

CD #

37856 1,000,000.00                     6/28/2013 10/3/2014 0.16% 2,025.21                

37857 1,000,000.00                     6/28/2013 10/17/2014 0.16% 2,086.58                

37952 1,200,000.00                     12/13/2013 4/3/2015 0.20% 3,129.86                

38009 750,000.00                        2/21/2014 6/12/2015 0.20% 1,956.16                

38015 1,000,000.00                     3/7/2014 6/26/2015 0.19% 2,477.81                

Emprise Bank Certificates of Deposit

CD#

Bank of Hays Certificates of Deposit

CD#

53,550,000.00                   170,870.91            

Astra Bank

MMA 0.03%

Commerce Bank

MMA 1,000,000.00 0.20%

CITY OF HAYS

INVESTMENTS AS OF 

3/31/2014

10



SALES TAX RECEIPTS
City of Hays
General Fund 1.25%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Change from YTD % Change
actual actual actual actual actual 2013 from 2013

January $539,129 $543,135 $611,353 $630,469 591,886$     ($38,583) ‐6.12%
February $496,164 $686,869 $702,298 $687,316 693,745$     $6,429 ‐2.44%
March $551,958 $576,013 $563,583 $561,055 555,681$     ($5,374) ‐2.00%
April $417,362 $460,066 $509,945 $523,623
May  $519,366 $569,624 $611,234 $591,279
June $522,834 $573,474 $608,325 $567,547
July  $511,370 $570,421 $621,448 $679,311
August $567,989 $555,561 $671,019 $651,955
September $543,507 $573,336 $572,295 $611,782
October $592,063 $648,649 $648,340 $650,165
November $525,702 $580,035 $638,490 $553,637
December $541,345 $622,295 $555,204 $594,061

TOTALS $6,328,789 $6,959,478 $7,313,534 $7,302,200 $1,841,312 ($37,528)
‐0.18% 9.97% 5.09% ‐0.15%

Total Inc/dec over previous year

January  ‐1.68%
February ‐0.98%
March ‐2.20%
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November 
December

2012 ‐ 2013 ‐ 2014
6 month running avg

**General Fund revenues provide funding for City services including police, fire, street, parks, swimming pool
and golf course.  It also provides funding to outside agencies such as Economic Development, Downtown Hays
Development, United Way CARE Council and Fort Hays State Scholarships.

$5,500,000

$6,000,000

$6,500,000

$7,000,000

$7,500,000

$6,328,789 

$6,959,478 

$7,313,534 $7,302,200

2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 Actual 2013 Actual

11



2013 2014 $$ inc/dec % inc/dec % of 2013 Total
452 General Merchandise Stores $527,687 $536,519 $8,832 1.67% 20.46%

441 Motor Vehicle and Parts Dealers $404,620 $385,489 ($19,131) -4.73% 14.70%

722 Food Services and Drinking Places $219,534 $222,299 $2,765 1.26% 8.48%

444 Building Material and Garden Supply $187,145 $171,818 ($15,327) -8.19% 6.55%

445 Food and Beverage $200,256 $201,075 $819 0.41% 7.67%

517 Telecommunications $70,810 $60,758 ($10,052) -14.20% 2.32%

448 Clothing and Clothing Accessories $109,532 $108,227 ($1,305) -1.19% 4.13%

423 Merchant Wholesalers, Durable Goods $81,349 $79,406 ($1,943) -2.39% 3.03%

721 Accommodation $31,913 $38,590 $6,677 20.92% 1.47%

451 Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music $46,233 $40,174 ($6,059) -13.10% 1.53%

$1,879,079 $1,844,355 ($34,724) -1.85% 70.34%

Sales Tax Collections by Industry Classification - Top Ten
QTD 2013-2014 January, February, March

12



MONTHLY   STATEMENT OF CITY TREASURER

3/1/2014 THROUGH 3/31/2014

BALANCE

3/1/2014 RECEIPTS DISBURSEMENTS

BALANCE

3/31/2014FUND

 1,500.00$1,500.00 Cash Drawer $1,500.00 

 4,114,137.68$4,114,137.68 General  914,291.19  817,844.62 $4,210,584.25 

 1,000.00$1,000.00 Petty Cash $1,000.00 

 3,221,180.75$3,221,180.75 Reserve Budget Stabilization $3,221,180.75 

 71,881.04$71,881.04 Library  29,563.69  0.00 $101,444.73 

 156,008.01$156,008.01 Airport  8,846.10  25,778.10 $139,076.01 

 304,943.88$304,943.88 Public Safety Equipment  10,531.24  10,146.60 $305,328.52 

 1,563,813.60$1,563,813.60 Employee Benefit Contribution  66,881.09  261,410.88 $1,369,283.81 

 372,839.40$372,839.40 Special Highway  0.00  1,099.98 $371,739.42 

 109,550.80$109,550.80 Special Park & Recreation  31,469.32  591.92 $140,428.20 

 159,232.12$159,232.12 Special Alcohol Program  31,469.33  0.00 $190,701.45 

 836,032.08$836,032.08 Convention & Tourism  3,287.00  41,445.03 $797,874.05 

 3,094,478.80$3,094,478.80 New Equipment Reserve  28.45  40,493.00 $3,054,014.25 

 0.00$0.00 Grants $0.00 

 0.00$0.00 Library Employee Benefit  4,443.18  0.00 $4,443.18 

 51,992.99$51,992.99 Golf Course Improvement  0.00 (9,418.88) $61,411.87 

 5,026.93$5,026.93 Park Development - Green Space $5,026.93 

 2,181,203.96$2,181,203.96 Sports Complex $2,181,203.96 

 229,075.28$229,075.28 Stormwater Management  0.00 (25,236.97) $254,312.25 

 3,384,335.67$3,384,335.67 Capital Projects  0.00  45,575.12 $3,338,760.55 

 487,327.64$487,327.64 Airport Improvement  0.00  32,432.22 $454,895.42 

 780,344.40$780,344.40 Bond & Interest  28,695.20  0.00 $809,039.60 

 13,760.35$13,760.35 TDD Sales Tax  16,801.34  14,460.35 $16,101.34 

 167,790.50$167,790.50 Home Depot Econ Dev Bds  11,201.00  0.00 $178,991.50 

 24,608.90$24,608.90 Home Depot Econ Dev Bds (Cash Restr.) $24,608.90 

 13,043.67$13,043.67 48th/Roth Ave. - CID $13,043.67 

$0.00 

 65,352.00$65,352.00 Restricted Cash - 2009 A Bonds $65,352.00 

 24,428,806.62$24,428,806.62 Sales Tax (Cash Reserve)  463.55  62,938.78 $24,366,331.39 

 5,178,638.67$5,178,638.67 Water & Sewer  833,909.24  421,190.99 $5,591,356.92 

 102,030.92$102,030.92 Water & Sewer (Bond & Interest Reserve) $102,030.92 

 0.00$0.00 Water & Sewer (Bond Reserve Account) $0.00 

 2,207,093.93$2,207,093.93 Water & Sewer (Capital Reserve)  0.00  188,624.37 $2,018,469.56 

 497,148.16$497,148.16 Water & Sewer(Reserve 2009A)  0.00 (35,099.58) $532,247.74 

 422,145.10$422,145.10 Solid Waste Fund  2,820.86 (52,516.33) $477,482.29 

 516,554.56$516,554.56 Solid Waste Reserve $516,554.56 

 0.00$0.00 Fire Insurance Trust  18,600.00  0.00 $18,600.00 

Data date & time 4/8/2014  3:12:58PM

13



BALANCE

3/1/2014 RECEIPTS DISBURSEMENTS

BALANCE

3/31/2014FUND

 0.00$0.00 $0.00 

 134,024.32$134,024.32 Municipal Court Agency Fund  0.00  1,243.80 $132,780.52 

$55,067,200.51 
$54,896,902.73 

$2,013,301.78 $1,843,004.00

Data date & time 4/8/2014  3:12:58PM

14



City of Hays Revenues

Month of  March

Collections 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Collections 

To Date

Balance

General

CULTURE & RECREATION REVENUES

Total Revenues

$440,803.00 $129,264.60 $200,734.68 ($240,068.32)

GENERAL GOVERNMENT REVENUES

Total Revenues

$11,179,728.00 $737,026.58 $2,317,564.25 ($8,862,163.75)

PUBLIC SAFETY REVENUES

Total Revenues

$613,000.00 $57,981.80 $186,831.25 ($426,168.75)

PUBLIC WORKS REVENUES

Total Revenues

$10,300.00 $1,300.00 $3,825.00 ($6,475.00)

Library

LIBRARY FUND REVENUES

Total Revenues

$1,216,730.00 $29,624.08 $720,093.53 ($496,636.47)

Airport

AIRPORT FUND REVENUES

Total Revenues

$332,620.00 $8,856.90 $144,774.56 ($187,845.44)

Employee Benefit

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT REVENUES

Total Revenues

$3,389,040.00 $60,487.15 $1,474,783.51 ($1,914,256.49)

Special Highway

SPECIAL HIGHWAY REVENUES

Total Revenues

$584,450.00 $0.00 $146,599.40 ($437,850.60)

Special Park & Rec

SPECIAL PRK & REC REVENUES

Total Revenues

$135,803.00 $31,469.32 $31,163.49 ($104,639.51)

Special Alcohol Fund

SPECIAL ALCOHOL FUND REVENUES

Total Revenues

$135,803.00 $31,469.33 $31,469.33 ($104,333.67)

Convention & Visitors Bureau

CONVENTION & VISITOR'S REVENUE

Total Revenues

$787,000.00 $3,287.00 $184,255.87 ($602,744.13)

Library Employee Benefit

LIBRARY EMP. BENEFIT REVENUES

Total Revenues

$184,568.00 $4,452.38 $109,219.21 ($75,348.79)

Risk Management

RISK MANAGEMENT REVENUES

Total Revenues

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Golf Course Improvement

GOLF COURSE IMPR. FUND REVENUE

Total Revenues

$0.00 $9,878.40 $18,245.20 $18,245.20 

Park Development

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND-REVENUE

Total Revenues

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Sports Complex

SPORTS COMPLEX-REVENUES

Total Revenues

$0.00 $0.00 $16,000.00 $16,000.00 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT REVENUES

Total Revenues

$772,500.00 $31,567.42 $166,036.92 ($606,463.08)

Bond & Interest

BOND & INTEREST REVENUES

Total Revenues

$1,334,163.00 $28,739.24 $808,358.69 ($525,804.31)

Period (Month) =  3.00

15



Collections 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Collections 

To Date

Balance

TDD Sales Tax

TDD SLS TAX   REVENUES

Total Revenues

($56,562.92) $16,801.34 $47,491.71 $104,054.63 

Home Depot Economic Dev Bonds

H DEPOT-ECON DEV BND-REVENUES

Total Revenues

$222,925.00 $11,201.00 $66,010.23 ($156,914.77)

48th/Roth Ave. - CID

48TH/ROTH AVE CID-REVENUES

Total Revenues

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Water & Sewer

WATER & SEWER FUND REVENUES

Total Revenues

$9,030,146.00 $589,793.44 $2,058,247.75 ($6,971,898.25)

Solid Waste

SOLID WASTE FUND REVENUES

Total Revenues

$1,268,900.00 $108,441.31 $325,115.91 ($943,784.09)

Fire Insurance Trust

FIRE INS TRUST REVENUES

Total Revenues

$0.00 $18,600.00 $18,600.00 $18,600.00 

Grand Totals $31,581,916.08 $1,910,241.29 $9,075,420.49 ($22,506,495.59)

Period (Month) =  3.00

16



City of Hays Expenditures

Month of  March  2014

Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

To Date

Balance

General

BALLFIELD MAINTENANCE

Total Expenditures $57,100.00 $7,617.89 $10,077.43 $47,022.57 

BICKLE-SCHMIDT SPORTS COMPLEX

Total Expenditures $240,835.00 $10,967.15 $28,241.82 $212,593.18 

BUILDINGS & GROUNDS

Total Expenditures $513,660.00 $37,614.58 $115,783.86 $397,876.14 

CEMETERIES

Total Expenditures $20,200.00 $2,193.86 $2,779.67 $17,420.33 

CITY ATTORNEY

Total Expenditures $101,000.00 $9,962.50 $22,997.50 $78,002.50 

CITY COMMISSION

Total Expenditures $1,947,677.00 $750.00 $10,340.19 $1,937,336.81 

CITY MANAGER

Total Expenditures $471,987.00 $26,197.06 $109,155.59 $362,831.41 

DISPATCH

Total Expenditures $558,815.00 $33,477.86 $127,105.24 $431,709.76 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Total Expenditures $256,205.00 $175.00 $142,130.00 $114,075.00 

FINANCE/CITY CLERK

Total Expenditures $367,807.00 $35,012.58 $92,658.90 $275,148.10 

FIRE DEPARTMENT

Total Expenditures $1,408,993.00 $100,713.81 $348,797.56 $1,060,195.44 

FLEET MAINTENANCE

Total Expenditures $830,101.00 $63,533.57 $155,136.43 $674,964.57 

GOLF COURSE

Total Expenditures $350,897.00 $68,537.55 $91,706.34 $259,190.66 

HUMAN RESOURCES

Total Expenditures $192,702.00 $11,292.29 $40,477.72 $152,224.28 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Total Expenditures $535,119.00 $35,383.53 $151,351.99 $383,767.01 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNT

Total Expenditures $364,500.00 $19,521.88 $36,952.16 $327,547.84 

MUNICIPAL COURT

Total Expenditures $156,891.00 $10,538.15 $36,086.01 $120,804.99 

P.W.-GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

Total Expenditures $281,865.00 $19,146.77 $63,149.39 $218,715.61 

PARKS & PLAYGROUNDS

Total Expenditures $860,770.00 $67,807.23 $204,139.10 $656,630.90 

PLANNING INSPECTION ENFORCEMEN

Total Expenditures $340,303.00 $26,511.15 $81,990.00 $258,313.00 

POLICE DEPARTMENT

Total Expenditures $2,136,475.00 $144,307.93 $514,368.13 $1,622,106.87 

PUBLIC WORKS-SERVICE DIVISION

Total Expenditures $907,001.00 $60,198.71 $165,188.61 $741,812.39 

QUALITY OF LIFE

Total Expenditures $35,303.00 $0.00 $35,303.00 $0.00 

SOCIAL SERVICES

Total Expenditures $164,000.00 $0.00 $82,000.00 $82,000.00 

SWIMMING POOL

Total Expenditures $114,700.00 $2,771.90 $4,318.89 $110,381.11 

Library

LIBRARY FUND EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $1,262,056.00 $60.39 $690,529.84 $571,526.16 

Airport

AIRPORT FUND EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $351,504.00 $25,788.90 $63,883.99 $287,620.01 

Period (Month) =  3.00

17



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

To Date

Balance

Employee Benefit

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $4,156,668.00 $255,016.94 $1,179,096.49 $2,977,571.51 

Special Highway

SPECIAL HIGHWAY EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $598,352.00 $222.00 $44,702.01 $553,649.99 

Special Park & Rec

SPECIAL PRK & REC EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $235,786.00 $200.00 $1,191.64 $234,594.36 

Special Alcohol Fund

SPECIAL ALCOHOL FUND EXPENDITU

Total Expenditures $315,781.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $285,781.00 

Convention & Visitors Bureau

CVB EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $1,424,386.00 $41,445.03 $109,888.65 $1,314,497.35 

Library Employee Benefit

LIBRARY EMP. BENEFIT EXPENDITU

Total Expenditures $189,901.00 $9.20 $113,239.83 $76,661.17 

Risk Management

RISK MGT. FUND EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Golf Course Improvement

GOLF COURSE IMPR. EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $459.52 $459.52 ($459.52)

Park Development

PARK DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $5,027.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,027.00 

Sports Complex

SPORTS COMPLEX-EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT EXPENDIT

Total Expenditures $782,170.00 $1,237.71 $8,670.80 $773,499.20 

Bond & Interest

BOND & INTEREST EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $1,524,263.00 $44.04 $220,335.00 $1,303,928.00 

TDD Sales Tax

TDD SLS TAX   EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $14,460.35 $49,759.13 ($49,759.13)

Home Depot Economic Dev Bonds

H DEPOT ECON DEV BND-EXPENDITU

Total Expenditures $211,706.00 $0.00 $48,352.51 $163,353.49 

48th/Roth Ave. - CID

48TH/ ROTH AVE CID-EXPENDITURE

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Water & Sewer

DEBT SERVICE

Total Expenditures $825,000.00 $35,099.58 $172,108.83 $652,891.17 

DEBT SERVICE - SALES TAX

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

UTILITIES DEPT./WATER CONSERV.

Total Expenditures $435,109.00 $10,901.44 $29,558.11 $405,550.89 

W/S NON-OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $5,376,937.00 $11,940.49 $74,522.48 $5,302,414.52 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT & COLL.

Total Expenditures $1,166,770.00 $92,428.19 $241,235.83 $925,534.17 

WATER PRODUCTION & DIST.

Total Expenditures $1,719,197.00 $107,516.54 $317,040.86 $1,402,156.14 

Solid Waste

SOLID WASTE FUND EXPENDITURE

Total Expenditures $1,338,328.00 $52,654.12 $156,372.48 $1,181,955.52 

Period (Month) =  3.00

18



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

To Date

Balance

Fire Insurance Trust

FIRE INS TRUST EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

$35,133,847.00 $1,443,717.39 $6,223,183.53 $28,910,663.47 
Grand Totals

Period (Month) =  3.00

19



ASSETS:

Cash 4,210,584.25

Petty Cash 1,000.00

Cash Drawer 1,500.00

Reserve-Budget Stabilization 3,221,180.75

Accts. Receivable-Police Court 68,791.00

Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 7,503,056.00

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Accrued Payroll 176,259.20

Accrued Vacation/PTO 454,069.89

Accrued Sick Leave Payout 26,686.78

Accrued Comp Time 1,396.59

W/H -Payable

State W/H Payable

FICA/Med Payable

KPERS-Payable

Prior Year Encumbrance 0.00

Lease Purchase Agreements 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 658,412.46

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 2,692,923.58

Expenditures -2,381,379.30

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 82,807.50

Fund Balance Unreserved 3,229,111.01

Bdgt Stabilization Reserved Fund Bl 3,221,180.75

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 6,844,643.54

TOTAL LIABILITIES

& FUND BALANCE 7,503,056.00

GENERAL FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

20



ASSETS:

Cash 101,444.73

TOTAL ASSETS 101,444.73

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 720,093.53

Expenditures -690,529.84

Fund Balance Unreserved 71,881.04
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 101,444.73

LIBRARY FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

21



ASSETS:

Cash 139,076.01

Accts. Receivable- 11,717.76

Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources

TOTAL ASSETS 150,793.77

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Accrued Payroll 2,909.14

Accrued Vacation/PTO 7,035.28

Accrued Sick Leave Payout

Prior Year Encumbrance 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 9,944.42

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 144,774.56

Expenditures -54,428.03

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 50,502.82

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 140,849.35

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 150,793.77

AIRPORT FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

22



ASSETS:

Cash 305,328.52

TOTAL ASSETS 305,328.52

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 256,855.48

Expenditures -17,099.96

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 2,216.86

Fund Balance Unreserved 63,356.14
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 305,328.52

 PUBLIC SAFETY  EQUIPMENT FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

23



ASSETS:

Cash 1,369,283.81

Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources 14,525.95

TOTAL ASSETS 1,383,809.76

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 1,474,783.51

Expenditures -1,115,695.59

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 1,024,721.84

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 1,383,809.76

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 1,383,809.76

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT  FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

24



ASSETS:

Cash 371,739.42

Grants Receivable 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 371,739.42

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Due To Other Funds 0.00

Prior Year Encumbrance 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 146,599.40

Expenditures -235.80

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 68,157.72

Fund Balance Unreserved 157,218.10

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 371,739.42

TOTAL LIABILITIES

& FUND BALANCE 371,739.42

SPECIAL HIGHWAY FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

25



ASSETS:

Cash 140,428.20

TOTAL ASSETS 140,428.20

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 31,163.49

Expenditures -1,091.64

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 110,356.35

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 140,428.20

TOTAL LIABILITIES

& FUND BALANCE 140,428.20

SPECIAL PARK & RECREATION FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

26



ASSETS:

Cash 190,701.45

TOTAL ASSETS 190,701.45

LIABILITIES

Accrued Payroll 1,259.95

Accrued Vacation 3,692.26

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,952.21

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 31,469.33

Expenditures -30,000.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 184,279.91

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 185,749.24

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 190,701.45

SPECIAL ALCOHOL FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

27



ASSETS:

Cash 797,874.05

Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 797,874.05

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Accrued Payroll 3,753.33

Accrued Vacation/PTO 10,863.96

Accrued Comp Time 0.00

Prior Year Encumbrance 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,617.29

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 184,255.87

Expenditures -95,542.59

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 694,543.48

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 783,256.76

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 797,874.05

CONVENTION & VISITOR'S BUREAU FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

28



ASSETS:

Cash 3,054,014.25

TOTAL ASSETS 3,054,014.25

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 2,526.67

Expenditures 0.00

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 3,051,487.58

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 3,054,014.25

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 3,054,014.25

NEW EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

29



ASSETS:

Cash 0.00

Loan Receivable 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 0.00

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 0.00

Expenditures 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES
 & FUND BALANCE 0.00

GRANTS- MULTI FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

30



ASSETS:

Cash 4,443.18

TOTAL ASSETS 4,443.18

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 109,219.21

Expenditures -113,239.83

Fund Balance Unreserved 8,463.80
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 4,443.18

LIBRARY EMPLOYEE BENEFIT FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

31



ASSETS:

Cash 61,411.87

TOTAL ASSETS 61,411.87

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 17,506.00

Expenditures -459.52

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 44,365.39

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 61,411.87

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 61,411.87

GOLF COURSE IMPROVEMENT FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

32



ASSETS:

Cash 5,026.93

TOTAL ASSETS 5,026.93

FUND BALANCE

Revenues

Expenditures

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 5,026.93
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 5,026.93

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

33



ASSETS:

Cash 2,181,203.96

Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources 0.00

Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS 2,181,203.96

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 16,000.00

Expenditures 0.00

Fund Balance Reserved for Encumbrances

Fund Balance Unreserved 2,165,203.96

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 2,181,203.96

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 2,181,203.96

SPORTS COMPLEX FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

34



ASSETS:

Cash 254,312.25

Due From Other Funds 58,149.83

TOTAL ASSETS 312,462.08

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Accrued Payroll 1,507.29

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,507.29

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 166,036.92

Expenditures -6,480.80

Fund Balance Reserved for Encumbrances 72,966.13

Fund Balance Unreserved 78,432.54

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 310,954.79

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 312,462.08

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

35



ASSETS:

Cash 3,338,760.55

Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources 188,112.00

Due From Other Funds 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 3,526,872.55

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 0.00

Expenditures -4,362.50

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 363,630.29

Fund Balance Unreserved 3,167,604.76

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 3,526,872.55

TOTAL LIABILITIES

 & FUND BALANCE 3,526,872.55

CAPITAL PROJECTS  FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

36



ASSETS:

Cash 0.00

Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS 0.00

LIABILITIES

Due To Other Funds 0.00

Accounts  Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues

Expenditures

Fund Balance Unreserved 0.00

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 0.00

CAPITAL PROJECTS 2001 FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

37



ASSETS:

Cash 454,895.42

Accts. Receivable- 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 454,895.42

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Due To Other Accounts 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 1,023,278.00

Expenditures 0.00

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 1,014,075.46

Fund Balance Unreserved -1,582,458.04

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 454,895.42

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 454,895.42

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

38



ASSETS:

Cash 809,039.60

Due From Other Funds 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 809,039.60

LIABILITIES

Lease Purchase Agreements 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 808,358.69

Expenditures -220,335.00

Fund Balance Reserved 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 221,015.91

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 809,039.60

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 809,039.60

BOND & INTEREST  FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

39



ASSETS:

Cash 16,101.34

Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS 16,101.34

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 47,491.71

Expenditures -49,759.13

Fund Balance Reserved 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 18,368.76

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 16,101.34

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 16,101.34

TRANSPORTATION  DD SALES TAX FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

40



ASSETS:

Cash 178,991.50

Cash-Restricted 24,608.90

TOTAL ASSETS 203,600.40

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 66,010.23

Expenditures -48,352.51

Fund Balance Reserved 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 185,942.68

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 203,600.40

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 203,600.40

HOME DEPOT-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BONDS

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

41



ASSETS:

Cash 13,043.67

Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS 13,043.67

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 0.00

Expenditures 0.00

Fund Balance Reserved

Fund Balance Unreserved 13,043.67

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 13,043.67

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 13,043.67

48th & ROTH AVE.-CID

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

42



ASSETS:

Cash 5,591,356.92
Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources
Cash-Water Sales Tax 24,366,331.39
Reserve-Capital Improvement 2,018,469.56
Reserve Bond & Int. Sales Tax
Reserve Bond & Interest W/S 102,030.92
2003 Bond Reserve W/S 0.00
2003 Bond Reserve -Sales Tax 0.00
Consumers Accounts Receivable 358,346.73
Misc. Mdse Accts. Receivable 100,000.00
Issuance Cost-Sales Tax Fund
Issuance Costs Water /Sewer 46,604.23
Restricted Cash-2009A Bond 65,352.00
Reserve-W/S Revenue Bond 2009A 532,247.74
Due From Other Funds 0.00
Land 139,109.47
Land-R-9 Ranch 4,262,039.65
Accum Depreciation- R-9 Ranch -961,911.77
Infrastructure 16,404,219.44
Accum Depreciation-Infrastruct -8,925,759.35
Buildings 11,782,909.54
Accum Depreciation-Bldgs. -6,519,916.62
Machinery & Equipment 11,194,327.94
Accum Dep-Machinery/Equipment -8,814,542.35
Work in Progress-Big Creek 2,082,833.90
Water Sales Tax Expenditures 532,435.47
R-9 Ranch Expenditures 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 54,356,484.81

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 22,292.03
Due To Other Funds
Accrued Payroll 26,977.32
Accrued Vacation/PTO 75,621.82
Sales Tax -2,443.97
State Water Fee 8,709.05
Meter Deposit Payable 208,549.16
Refuse Collection 41,528.36
Accrued Int. Payable-Bonds 23,264.10
State Rev. Loan Payment 0.01
G O Bond Payable-Serv. Bldg. 0.00
Bonds Payable-W/S Rev. Bonds 0.00
Bonds Payable-Sales Tax Fund 0.00
Accrued Int. Pybl-Revolv Loan 3,837.49
Contributed Capital 3,215,104.63
Reserve for Bad Debts 3,675,000.00
Bonds Payable-W/S 2009 A 0.00
Advance Developer Fee 0.00
Stormwater Fee 84,519.59
Over & Short -40.16
Prior Year Encumbrance 0.00
Monitoring Well Deposit 4,500.00
Overpayment-Water Sales 0.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,387,419.43

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 1,947,521.79
Expenditures -729,381.21
Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 86,633.48
Fund Balance Unreserved 44,215,629.39
Capital Imprv. Reserve Fund Balance 1,448,661.93

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 46,969,065.38

TOTAL LIABILITIES

54,356,484.81

WATER & SEWER FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

43



ASSETS:

Cash 477,482.29

Reserve Account 516,554.56

Accts. Receivable-Misc. Sources 0.00

Due From Other Funds 40,986.87

Buildings 289,324.00

Machinery & Equipment 1,613,260.00

Accum Dep-Machinery/Equipment -976,135.65

TOTAL ASSETS 1,961,472.07

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Accrued Payroll 8,761.35

Accrued Vacation/PTO 22,387.97

Contributed Capital 115,383.00

Lease Purchase Obligation 226,240.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 372,772.32

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 325,110.91

Expenditures -143,506.62

Fund Balance Reserved for Enc 7,864.98

Fund Balance Unreserved 897,554.26

Solid Waste Reserve 501,676.22

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 1,588,699.75

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 1,961,472.07

SOLID WASTE FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

44



ASSETS:

Cash 18,600.00

TOTAL ASSETS 18,600.00

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 18,600.00

Expenditures 0.00

Fund Balance Unreserved 0.00
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 18,600.00

FIRE INSURANCE TRUST FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

45



ASSETS:

Cash 132,780.52

TOTAL ASSETS 132,780.52

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 0.00

Due To Other Accounts 41,446.00

Bonds Payable 27,791.00

Over & Short -0.50

TOTAL LIABILITIES 69,236.50

FUND BALANCE

Revenues 33,055.05

Expenditures -37,611.50

Fund Balance Unreserved 68,100.47

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 63,544.02

TOTAL LIABILITIES
& FUND BALANCE 132,780.52

MUNICIPAL COURT AGENCY FUND

BALANCE SHEET

3/31/2014

46



City of Hays Revenues

Month of March

Collections 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Collections 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Collections 

Current YTD

48TH/ROTH AVE CID-REVENUES

LOCAL SALES TAX  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Revenues

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

AIRPORT FUND REVENUES

16/20 M TRUCK TAX  181.00  13.77 
 9.56

 197.88

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX  199,707.00  3,587.42 
 4,404.41

 120,959.28

AIRPORT-FUEL SALES  12,000.00  651.03 
 671.58

 2,349.20

BUSINESS LICENSES  6,050.00  0.00 
 0.00

 2,750.00

DELINQUENT TAXES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FARMING (LEASES)  18,977.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AID/GRANT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

LANDING FEES  4,645.00  0.00 
 397.50

 785.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  6,859.00  0.00 
 916.53

 320.00

MOTOR VEHICLE TAX  17,200.00  1,665.30 
 1,231.85

 7,215.56

PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE TAX  242.00  11.70 
 12.19

 117.60

RENTALS  66,759.00  2,927.68 
 3,674.58

 10,080.04

Total Revenues

$332,620.00 $8,856.90 $11,318.20 $144,774.56

BOND & INTEREST REVENUES

16/20 M TRUCK TAX  687.00  67.03 
 34.65

 963.85

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX  814,494.00  14,622.16 
 16,684.83

 493,013.56

DELINQUENT TAXES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

MOTOR VEHICLE TAX  65,172.00  6,308.48 
 6,000.80

 33,345.87

RECEIVED FROM  TIF  PROCEEDS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE TAX  919.00  44.35 
 59.40

 560.23

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT TAX  452,891.00  7,697.22 
 7,275.19

 280,475.18

TRANSFER FROM CAPITAL PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM SPECIAL HIGHWAY  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM WATER/SEWER FUND  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFERS-ALL ACCOUNTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Revenues

$1,334,163.00 $28,739.24 $30,054.87 $808,358.69

CONVENTION & VISITOR'S REVENUE

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  42,000.00  3,287.00 
 6,574.00

 10,231.00

TRANSIENT GUEST TAX  745,000.00  0.00 
 0.00

 174,024.87

Total Revenues

$787,000.00 $3,287.00 $6,574.00 $184,255.87

CULTURE & RECREATION REVENUES

GOLF COURSE REVENUE  305,000.00  97,795.28 
 82,955.75

 169,265.36

LOCAL ALCOHOL LIQUOR TAX  135,803.00  31,469.32 
 34,235.07

 31,469.32

Total Revenues

$440,803.00 $129,264.60 $117,190.82 $200,734.68

Period (Month) =  3.00

47



Collections 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Collections 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Collections 

Current YTD

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT REVENUES

16/20 M TRUCK TAX  2,126.00  142.96 
 110.88

 2,055.32

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX  2,292,195.00  41,147.12 
 51,620.88

 1,387,396.26

DELINQUENT TAXES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

INSURANCE REFUNDS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS  3,000.00  7.97 
 42.95

 859.72

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  0.00 (465.83)
 0.00

 6,062.17

MOTOR VEHICLE TAX  201,625.00  19,517.77 
 12,796.20

 77,172.79

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE TAX  2,842.00  137.16 
 126.66

 1,237.25

TRANSFER FROM AIRPORT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM CVB  80,430.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND  96,479.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM RISK MANAGEMENT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM SOLID WASTE FUND  167,754.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM SPECIAL ALCOHOL  26,074.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM SPECIAL HIGHWAY  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM SPORTS COMPLEX  18,002.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM STORMWATER MGT  11,851.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM WATER/SEWER FUND  486,662.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFERS-ALL ACCOUNTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Revenues

$3,389,040.00 $60,487.15 $64,697.57 $1,474,783.51

FIRE INS TRUST REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  0.00  18,600.00 
 0.00

 18,600.00

Total Revenues

$0.00 $18,600.00 $0.00 $18,600.00

GENERAL GOVERNMENT REVENUES

16/20 M TRUCK TAX  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

BUILDING PERMITS  75,000.00  5,445.98 
 9,722.67

 13,834.48

BUSINESS LICENSES  17,000.00  1,850.00 
 637.50

 12,292.50

CITY-COUNTY REVENUE SHARING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

CMB & LIQUOR LICENSES  12,000.00  0.00 
 500.00

 4,800.00

DELINQUENT TAXES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AID/GRANT  0.00  0.00 
 540.98

 0.00

FRANCHISE FEES  1,415,000.00  157,369.26 
 158,386.11

 389,773.57

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS  35,000.00  1,482.51 
 704.17

 21,723.73

LOCAL AD VALOREM TAX REDUCTION  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

LOCAL SALES TAX  7,240,398.00  560,507.82 
 564,957.94

 1,828,599.30

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  140,000.00  6,993.73 
 42,786.06

 32,624.01

MOTOR VEHICLE TAX  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER LICENSES  500.00  80.00 
 60.00

 80.00

PET LICENSES  18,000.00  2,760.00 
 2,319.00

 10,089.00

PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE TAX  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

RENTALS  1,200.00  100.00 
 0.00

 300.00

STATE GOVERNMENT AID/GRANT  0.00  437.28 
 529.67

 3,447.66

TRANSFER FROM AIRPORT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM CVB  63,325.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM POOL CONSTRUCTIO  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM SOLID WASTE FUND  245,000.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM SPECIAL ALCOHOL  54,336.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM SPECIAL HIGHWAY  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM SPORTS COMPLEX  240,835.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM STORMWATER MGT  64,260.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM WATER SLS TAX  596,850.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM WATER/SEWER FUND  961,024.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFERS-ALL ACCOUNTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Revenues

$11,179,728.00 $737,026.58 $781,144.10 $2,317,564.25

Period (Month) =  3.00

48



Collections 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Collections 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Collections 

Current YTD

GOLF COURSE IMPR. FUND REVENUE

GOLF COURSE REVENUE  0.00  9,878.40 
 7,650.00

 17,245.20

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 1,000.00

Total Revenues

$0.00 $9,878.40 $7,650.00 $18,245.20

H DEPOT-ECON DEV BND-REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

RECEIVED FROM  TIF  PROCEEDS  222,925.00  11,201.00 
 13,397.00

 66,010.23

Total Revenues

$222,925.00 $11,201.00 $13,397.00 $66,010.23

LIBRARY EMP. BENEFIT REVENUES

16/20 M TRUCK TAX  150.00  11.43 
 7.41

 164.50

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX  169,985.00  3,053.76 
 3,643.21

 102,964.39

DELINQUENT TAXES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

MOTOR VEHICLE TAX  14,232.00  1,377.51 
 1,024.29

 5,992.57

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE TAX  201.00  9.68 
 10.14

 97.75

Total Revenues

$184,568.00 $4,452.38 $4,685.05 $109,219.21

LIBRARY FUND REVENUES

16/20 M TRUCK TAX  1,027.00  81.19 
 57.36

 1,167.42

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX  1,116,946.00  20,050.51 
 24,930.44

 676,060.75

DELINQUENT TAXES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

MOTOR VEHICLE TAX  97,384.00  9,426.14 
 7,268.25

 42,174.27

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE TAX  1,373.00  66.24 
 71.94

 691.09

Total Revenues

$1,216,730.00 $29,624.08 $32,327.99 $720,093.53

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND-REVENUE

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Revenues

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

PUBLIC SAFETY REVENUES

ANIMAL CONTROL REVENUE  3,000.00  310.00 
 20.00

 785.00

COURT APPOINTED REIMBURSEMENT  0.00  512.00 
 910.50

 836.26

COURT COSTS  80,000.00  12,646.48 
 10,229.06

 34,565.80

COURT FINES  530,000.00  44,513.32 
 42,908.94

 150,644.19

LOCAL LAB FEES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Revenues

$613,000.00 $57,981.80 $54,068.50 $186,831.25

PUBLIC WORKS REVENUES

GRAVE OPENING  4,000.00  1,050.00 
 900.00

 1,300.00

SALE OF CEMETERY LOTS  6,300.00  250.00 
 500.00

 2,525.00

Total Revenues

$10,300.00 $1,300.00 $1,400.00 $3,825.00

RISK MANAGEMENT REVENUES

INSURANCE REFUNDS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM EMPLOYEE BENEFIT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFERS-ALL ACCOUNTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Revenues

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

SOLID WASTE FUND REVENUES

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS  2,000.00  3.41 
 15.71

 345.30

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  40,000.00  2,743.45 
 5,309.60

 7,686.25

PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

REFUSE COLLECTION  1,225,000.00  105,610.45 
 105,048.98

 316,995.11

YARD WASTE TAGS  1,900.00  84.00 
 31.50

 89.25

Total Revenues

$1,268,900.00 $108,441.31 $110,405.79 $325,115.91

SPECIAL ALCOHOL FUND REVENUES

LOCAL ALCOHOL LIQUOR TAX  135,803.00  31,469.33 
 34,235.07

 31,469.33

Total Revenues

$135,803.00 $31,469.33 $34,235.07 $31,469.33

Period (Month) =  3.00

49



Collections 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Collections 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Collections 

Current YTD

SPECIAL HIGHWAY REVENUES

CONNECTING LINK MAINTENANCE  44,760.00  0.00 
 0.00

 11,281.98

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

STATE GASOLINE TAX  539,690.00  0.00 
 0.00

 135,317.42

TRANSFER FROM CAPITAL PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Revenues

$584,450.00 $0.00 $0.00 $146,599.40

SPECIAL PRK & REC REVENUES

DOG PARK DONATIONS  0.00  0.00 
 100.00

-1,305.83

LOCAL ALCOHOL LIQUOR TAX  135,803.00  31,469.32 
 34,235.07

 31,469.32

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 1,000.00

Total Revenues

$135,803.00 $31,469.32 $34,335.07 $31,163.49

SPORTS COMPLEX-REVENUES

LOCAL SALES TAX  0.00  0.00 
 229,781.00

 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 16,000.00

PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Revenues

$0.00 $0.00 $229,781.00 $16,000.00

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT REVENUES

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

STORMWATER FEE  756,000.00  31,567.42 
 58,215.87

 166,036.92

TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND  16,500.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM WATER/SEWER FUND  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Revenues

$772,500.00 $31,567.42 $58,215.87 $166,036.92

TDD SLS TAX   REVENUES

LOCAL SALES TAX (56,562.92)  16,801.34 
 20,095.81

 47,491.71

Total Revenues

($56,562.92) $16,801.34 $20,095.81 $47,491.71

WATER & SEWER FUND REVENUES

DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTION  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FEDERAL & STATE GRANTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS  25,000.00  83.08 
 208.32

 7,614.36

INTEREST-SALES TAX COLLECTION  50,000.00  423.42 
 595.71

 23,828.23

LOCAL SALES TAX  2,954,917.00  226,753.00 
 229,781.00

 749,189.00

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE  10,000.00  884.95 
 6,497.74

 3,442.30

NOTE/BOND PROCEEDS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PENALTY  25,000.00  2,177.96 
 2,004.48

 7,674.18

PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

R-9 RANCH REVENUE  325,000.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

SEWER SERVICE CHARGES  2,056,002.00  158,032.06 
 155,298.06

 575,792.49

STORMWATER FEE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TAPS-TURN ONS  35,000.00  3,248.00 
 2,391.87

 8,697.00

TRANSFER FROM SOLID WASTE FUND  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM SPECIAL HIGHWAY  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER FROM WATER SLS TAX  435,109.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFERS-ALL ACCOUNTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

WATER SALES  2,749,118.00  183,618.80 
 183,517.81

 638,535.46

WATER SALES-CONSERVATION RATE  365,000.00  14,372.17 
 8,627.36

 43,274.73

WATER VIOLATION  0.00  200.00 
 0.00

 200.00

Total Revenues

$9,030,146.00 $589,793.44 $588,922.35 $2,058,247.75

Grand Totals $31,581,916.08 $1,910,241.29 $2,200,499.06

$9,075,420.49

Period (Month) =  3.00

50



City of Hays Expenditures

Month of  March 

Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Current Year

Expenses YTD

48TH/ ROTH AVE CID-EXPENDITURE

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

AIRPORT FUND EXPENDITURES

COMMUNICATION  174.51  3,000.00 
 170.37

 360.60

CONTINGENCY  0.00  38,996.00 
 0.00

 0.00

ELECTRICITY  2,434.31  35,000.00 
 2,425.73

 8,559.77

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  2,662.38  28,400.00 
 3,841.69

 8,250.31

GRANT FUNDING  0.00  0.00 
 3,883.17

 0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  0.00  500.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NATURAL GAS  1,134.26  8,000.00 
 1,007.71

 4,186.75

NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE  10.80  664.00 
 0.00

 301.13

NEW EQUIPMENT  10,700.00  10,700.00 
 0.00

 10,700.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  1,780.05  25,000.00 
 1,400.00

 4,743.57

OVERTIME  66.58  2,000.00 
 753.72

 199.74

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  0.00  1,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PROMOTIONS  0.00  15,000.00 
 31.55

 0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES  240.00  24,000.00 
 1,369.56

 2,263.69

SALARIES  6,517.67  79,638.00 
 9,027.58

 22,539.01

SEASONAL/PART TIME  0.00  5,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DIST  0.00  3,000.00 
 0.00

 1,374.78

TRANSFER TO AIRPORT IMPROVEMEN  0.00  60,843.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO BOND & INTEREST  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE  0.00  7,013.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFERS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING  18.94  3,000.00 
 993.44

 293.94

UNIFORMS  49.40  750.00 
 43.60

 110.70

Total Expenditures $351,504.00 $25,788.90 $24,948.12 $63,883.99

BALLFIELD MAINTENANCE

BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

CHEMICALS  2,624.80  8,000.00 
 1,063.09

 2,624.80

COMMUNICATION  19.69  600.00 
 35.29

 53.49

ELECTRICITY  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  218.04  1,500.00 
 512.67

 499.71

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  3,492.99  11,500.00 
 556.39

 3,778.97

NATURAL GAS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT  180.00  19,200.00 
 2,920.00

 1,127.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  147.31  6,000.00 
 900.00

 164.06

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

RENTALS  0.00  500.00 
 0.00

 0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES  935.06  9,600.00 
 774.85

 1,829.40

TRAVEL & TRAINING  0.00  200.00 
 0.00

 0.00

UNIFORMS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $57,100.00 $7,617.89 $6,762.29 $10,077.43

Period (Month) =  3.00

51



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Current Year

Expenses YTD

BICKLE-SCHMIDT SPORTS COMPLEX

BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

CHEMICALS  2,432.51  20,000.00 
 160.34

 2,432.51

COMMUNICATION  17.53  700.00 
 18.40

 47.62

CONTINGENCY  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

ELECTRICITY  4,107.19  55,000.00 
 3,637.73

 13,245.33

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  238.01  4,000.00 
 367.50

 343.65

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 135.68

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 56.10

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 56.10

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FUEL EXPENSE  0.00  8,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FUEL EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FUEL EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FUEL EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FUEL EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FUEL EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FUEL EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FUEL EXPENSE  42.12  0.00 
 49.62

 154.25

FUEL EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FUEL EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FUEL EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  1,138.51  37,600.00 
 4,794.82

 1,275.51

NATURAL GAS  90.46  3,000.00 
 71.94

 242.36

NEW EQUIPMENT  288.00  17,300.00 
 710.22

 783.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES  0.00  300.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  290.00  7,700.00 
 13.20

 347.49

OVERTIME  0.00  2,000.00 
 93.20

 131.80

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

RENTALS  0.00  1,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES  288.61  8,000.00 
 1,382.73

 2,045.27

SALARIES  2,008.25  26,610.00 
 1,988.37

 7,028.91

SEASONAL/PART TIME  0.00  28,900.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE  0.00  19,525.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING  0.00  400.00 
 0.00

 0.00

UNIFORMS  25.96  800.00 
 23.00

 51.92

Total Expenditures $240,835.00 $10,967.15 $13,446.75 $28,241.82

BOND & INTEREST EXPENDITURES

BOND PRINCIPAL  0.00  970,003.00 
 0.00

 0.00

CASH BASIS RESERVE  0.00  60,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BONDS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

INTEREST COUPONS  0.00  403,540.00 
 0.00

 213,504.16

INTEREST ON TEMPORARY NOTE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

INTEREST ON TIF  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

LEVY STABILIZATION  0.00  75,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE  44.04  2,720.00 
 0.00

 1,227.42

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DIST  0.00  13,000.00 
 0.00

 5,603.42

TRANSFER TO RESERVE FOR TIF  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $1,524,263.00 $44.04 $0.00 $220,335.00

Period (Month) =  3.00

52



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Current Year

Expenses YTD

BUILDINGS & GROUNDS

COMMUNICATION  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

ELECTRICITY  30,745.35  420,000.00 
 28,733.34

 93,460.19

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  0.00  8,000.00 
 42.85

 96.36

NATURAL GAS  4,745.53  40,000.00 
 3,773.56

 15,315.19

NEW EQUIPMENT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  2,123.70  26,060.00 
 1,874.57

 6,034.74

PROJECTS  0.00  5,600.00 
 3,515.12

 0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES  0.00  14,000.00 
 634.87

 877.38

Total Expenditures $513,660.00 $37,614.58 $38,574.31 $115,783.86

CEMETERIES

BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

CHEMICALS  2,130.98  3,000.00 
 1,294.13

 2,130.98

COMMUNICATION  12.33  200.00 
 12.44

 24.65

ELECTRICITY  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  10.95  1,700.00 
 113.30

 55.44

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  39.60  7,500.00 
 204.22

 39.60

NEW EQUIPMENT  0.00  600.00 
 0.00

 529.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  1,200.00 
 40.00

 0.00

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

RENTALS  0.00  200.00 
 0.00

 0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES  0.00  5,500.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING  0.00  300.00 
 0.00

 0.00

UNIFORMS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $20,200.00 $2,193.86 $1,664.09 $2,779.67

CITY ATTORNEY

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  1,000.00 
 0.00

 35.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  9,962.50  100,000.00 
 7,787.50

 22,962.50

Total Expenditures $101,000.00 $9,962.50 $7,787.50 $22,997.50

CITY COMMISSION

COMMUNICATION  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FINANCIAL POLICY PROJ-CAPITAL  0.00  1,771,177.00 
 0.00

 0.00

FINANCIAL POLICY PROJ-CAPITAL  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  0.00  1,500.00 
 0.00

 0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  0.00  500.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  500.00 
 0.00

 50.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PROJECTS  0.00  150,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

SALARIES  750.00  9,000.00 
 750.00

 2,250.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING  0.00  15,000.00 
 0.00

 8,040.19

Total Expenditures $1,947,677.00 $750.00 $750.00 $10,340.19

CITY MANAGER

COMMUNICATION  205.06  3,500.00 
 316.86

 448.97

CONTINGENCY  1,420.41  100,000.00 
 4,770.73

 4,163.11

EXPENSE ALLOWANCE-CAR  0.00  0.00 
 461.54

 0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  201.59  2,000.00 
 12.99

 229.30

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

ORGANIZATION DEVELOPMENT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  639.94  35,000.00 
 10,444.33

 15,033.72

OVERTIME  174.88  3,500.00 
 121.20

 944.36

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

SALARIES  22,750.27  302,987.00 
 20,946.67

 81,200.72

TRAVEL & TRAINING  804.91  25,000.00 
 2,143.15

 7,135.41

Total Expenditures $471,987.00 $26,197.06 $39,217.47 $109,155.59

Period (Month) =  3.00

53



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Current Year

Expenses YTD

CVB EXPENDITURES

COMMUNICATION  404.09  6,000.00 
 115.34

 734.80

CONTINGENCY  0.00  295,882.00 
 0.00

 0.00

ELECTRICITY  733.86  9,000.00 
 593.26

 2,152.11

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

GRANT FUNDING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  7,695.00  90,000.00 
 14,740.73

 16,837.27

NATURAL GAS  228.82  1,500.00 
 145.32

 534.78

NEW EQUIPMENT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES  309.84  5,000.00 
 249.29

 391.02

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  4,784.66  80,000.00 
 9,331.45

 18,953.52

OVERTIME  486.59  1,500.00 
 323.27

 486.59

PROJECTS  0.00  74,000.00 
 41.97

 0.00

PROMOTIONS  9,997.48  60,000.00 
 5,307.62

 11,988.98

RENTALS  0.00  408,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES  41.97  6,000.00 
 0.00

 387.97

SALARIES  16,326.89  223,939.00 
 15,818.00

 56,594.18

SEASONAL/PART TIME  25.38  10,050.00 
 253.75

 25.38

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT  0.00  80,430.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND  0.00  63,325.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE  0.00  2,760.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFERS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING  410.45  7,000.00 
 432.51

 802.05

Total Expenditures $1,424,386.00 $41,445.03 $47,352.51 $109,888.65

DEBT SERVICE

INT-REVENUE BND PAYMENT 2009A  11,349.58  140,000.00 
 11,629.58

 34,048.74

INTEREST-REVENUE BOND  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PRINCIPAL & INT. REVOLVING LOA  0.00  400,000.00 
 33,282.74

 66,810.09

PRINCIPAL PAYMENT-SLS TX  BOND  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PWWSD #15  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

REV BOND PAYMENT 2009-A  23,750.00  285,000.00 
 13,333.34

 71,250.00

REVENUE BOND PAYMENT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

SALES TAX BOND ISSUE-INTEREST  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

UNAMORITIZED 1996 BOND IS.COST  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

WATER EXPLORATION  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $825,000.00 $35,099.58 $58,245.66 $172,108.83

DEBT SERVICE - SALES TAX

PRINCIPAL PAYMENT-SLS TX  BOND  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PWWSD #15  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

SALES TAX BOND ISSUE-INTEREST  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER-SALES TAX RESERVE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

UNAMORITIZED 1996 BOND IS.COST  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

WATER EXPLORATION  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

DISPATCH

COMMUNICATION  126.03  5,400.00 
 0.00

 628.15

CONTINGENCY  0.00  5,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  0.00  2,500.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES  0.00  900.00 
 15.16

 126.06

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  65.34  3,830.00 
 122.76

 406.03

OVERTIME  2,666.14  47,165.00 
 1,931.90

 15,341.20

SALARIES  30,530.35  484,020.00 
 32,864.66

 110,357.80

TRAVEL & TRAINING  90.00  9,000.00 
 110.00

 246.00

UNIFORMS  0.00  1,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $558,815.00 $33,477.86 $35,044.48 $127,105.24

Period (Month) =  3.00

54



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Current Year

Expenses YTD

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT CORP.  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

JOB  BOUNTY  0.00  15,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  175.00  241,205.00 
 150.00

 142,130.00

Total Expenditures $256,205.00 $175.00 $150.00 $142,130.00

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENDITURES

CONTINGENCY  0.00  300,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT  79,887.06  1,138,617.00 
 72,080.78

 288,565.74

HEALTH INSURANCE  125,564.50  1,719,500.00 
 223,443.49

 510,361.06

NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE  123.93  7,590.00 
 0.00

 3,454.10

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  3,410.96  75,139.00 
 5,246.64

 11,608.02

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

SOCIAL SECURITY  46,030.49  676,213.00 
 45,546.80

 165,656.14

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DIST  0.00  33,625.00 
 0.00

 15,768.68

TRANSFER TO BOND & INTEREST  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO RISK MANAGEMENT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION  0.00  25,634.00 
 0.00

 7,043.75

WORKERS COMPENSATION  0.00  180,350.00 
 123,626.00

 176,639.00

Total Expenditures $4,156,668.00 $255,016.94 $469,943.71 $1,179,096.49

FINANCE/CITY CLERK

COMMUNICATION  90.13  1,320.00 
 87.00

 180.84

CONTINGENCY  0.00  5,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  0.00  600.00 
 0.00

 119.98

INSURANCE & SURETY BONDS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  654.25  12,000.00 
 767.82

 2,144.32

NEW EQUIPMENT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  35.39  7,800.00 
 281.00

 1,323.97

OVERTIME  19.97  500.00 
 79.50

 170.73

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  11,880.00  40,000.00 
 0.00

 11,880.00

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

SALARIES  21,960.43  292,987.00 
 23,305.08

 76,377.20

TRAVEL & TRAINING  372.41  7,600.00 
 611.40

 461.86

Total Expenditures $367,807.00 $35,012.58 $25,131.80 $92,658.90

Period (Month) =  3.00

55



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Current Year

Expenses YTD

FIRE DEPARTMENT

COMMUNICATION  523.70  5,700.00 
 451.96

 988.10

CONTINGENCY  0.00  5,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  66.56  52,000.00 
 544.85

 748.56

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  572.65  0.00 
 291.10

 652.15

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  503.32  0.00 
 0.00

 678.90

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  42.00  0.00 
 0.00

 42.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 158.25

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  916.01  0.00 
 458.27

 929.49

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  1,822.14  0.00 
 69.85

 2,035.62

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 516.22

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  2,870.85  41,300.00 
 1,401.98

 6,911.01

GRANT FUNDING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  151.22  800.00 
 0.00

 151.22

NEW EQUIPMENT  0.00  0.00 
 459.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  30.00  4,350.00 
 68.25

 742.81

OVERTIME  5,768.65  121,000.00 
 5,434.66

 29,914.81

PAID PER CALL  4,516.22  20,000.00 
 1,421.71

 6,713.60

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES  2,961.67  42,000.00 
 2,689.35

 10,793.30

SALARIES  77,135.21  1,057,443.00 
 76,428.44

 276,841.71

TRAINING CERTIFICATION  0.00  15,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING  220.98  35,400.00 
 3,534.21

 7,353.93

UNIFORMS  2,612.63  9,000.00 
 2,372.75

 2,625.88

Total Expenditures $1,408,993.00 $100,713.81 $95,626.38 $348,797.56

FIRE INS TRUST EXPENDITURES

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

FLEET MAINTENANCE

Total Expenditures $830,101.00 $63,533.57 $62,405.10 $155,136.43

Period (Month) =  3.00

56



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Current Year

Expenses YTD

GOLF COURSE

BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

CHEMICALS  49,681.23  86,800.00 
 26,069.13

 49,723.23

COMMUNICATION  164.26  2,800.00 
 170.03

 329.48

ELECTRICITY  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  26.00  2,000.00 
 35.05

 61.90

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  1,904.82  29,800.00 
 3,154.33

 2,356.05

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NATURAL GAS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT  0.00  5,200.00 
 466.96

 606.95

OFFICE SUPPLIES  62.45  400.00 
 48.42

 104.78

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  2,475.54  33,800.00 
 2,391.14

 6,151.54

OVERTIME  34.50  7,000.00 
 167.64

 51.75

PRO SHOP CR CARD ACTIVITY  111.43  0.00 
 49.75

-2,398.30

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

RENTALS  270.00  1,500.00 
 0.00

 270.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES  7,487.00  12,000.00 
 4,547.30

 8,585.15

SALARIES  5,459.55  123,597.00 
 8,935.24

 23,924.79

SEASONAL/PART TIME  639.00  43,400.00 
 1,012.50

 1,617.25

TRAVEL & TRAINING  11.77  1,600.00 
 0.00

 111.77

UNIFORMS  210.00  1,000.00 
 0.00

 210.00

Total Expenditures $350,897.00 $68,537.55 $47,047.49 $91,706.34

GOLF COURSE IMPR. EXPENDITURES

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES  459.52  0.00 
 0.00

 459.52

Total Expenditures $0.00 $459.52 $0.00 $459.52

H DEPOT ECON DEV BND-EXPENDITU

BOND PRINCIPAL  0.00  115,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

INTEREST COUPONS  0.00  96,706.00 
 0.00

 48,352.51

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $211,706.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,352.51

HUMAN RESOURCES

COMMUNICATION  187.47  1,200.00 
 64.60

 254.82

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  1,355.41  11,000.00 
 542.37

 2,722.76

ORGANIZATION DEVELOPMENT  1,295.99  27,500.00 
 2,797.36

 7,436.81

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  10.00  2,500.00 
 175.00

 138.32

OVERTIME  50.96  250.00 
 0.00

 308.93

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  800.50  44,000.00 
 1,522.25

 2,378.10

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 8,598.66

 0.00

SALARIES  7,591.96  101,252.00 
 7,518.15

 27,237.98

TRAVEL & TRAINING  0.00  5,000.00 
 398.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $192,702.00 $11,292.29 $21,616.39 $40,477.72

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

COMMUNICATION  258.67  3,400.00 
 286.42

 518.13

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  168.00  9,250.00 
 79.99

 346.89

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  256.78  3,500.00 
 266.86

 392.08

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT  389.97  28,660.00 
 0.00

 499.96

OFFICE SUPPLIES  962.82  15,450.00 
 1,265.31

 1,345.26

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  13,038.83  179,910.00 
 5,940.87

 75,798.10

OVERTIME  0.00  1,200.00 
 133.43

 81.99

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

SALARIES  20,308.46  277,999.00 
 20,107.75

 71,079.63

TRAVEL & TRAINING  0.00  15,750.00 
 113.76

 1,289.95

Total Expenditures $535,119.00 $35,383.53 $28,194.39 $151,351.99

Period (Month) =  3.00

57



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Current Year

Expenses YTD

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNT

COMMUNICATION  7,582.58  57,000.00 
 7,500.00

 16,619.38

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

INSURANCE & SURETY BONDS  9,993.20  270,000.00 
 7,747.00

 15,603.20

OFFICE SUPPLIES  759.77  24,500.00 
 181.58

 1,513.41

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  1,186.33  13,000.00 
 743.84

 3,216.17

Total Expenditures $364,500.00 $19,521.88 $16,172.42 $36,952.16

LIBRARY EMP. BENEFIT EXPENDITU

NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE  9.20  568.00 
 0.00

 256.34

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  186,833.00 
 0.00

 111,813.23

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DIST  0.00  2,500.00 
 0.00

 1,170.26

Total Expenditures $189,901.00 $9.20 $0.00 $113,239.83

LIBRARY FUND EXPENDITURES

NEIGHBORHOOD REVIT REBATE  60.39  3,730.00 
 0.00

 1,683.15

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  1,241,326.00 
 0.00

 681,162.81

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DIST  0.00  17,000.00 
 0.00

 7,683.88

Total Expenditures $1,262,056.00 $60.39 $0.00 $690,529.84

MUNICIPAL COURT

INSURANCE & SURETY BONDS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES  0.00  1,200.00 
 36.00

 46.83

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  272.97  5,600.00 
 688.91

 924.10

OVERTIME  77.89  3,000.00 
 116.18

 253.90

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  2,152.00  35,000.00 
 1,800.00

 5,752.00

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

SAFE RIDE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

SALARIES  8,035.29  111,091.00 
 7,955.72

 29,098.26

TRAVEL & TRAINING  0.00  1,000.00 
 0.00

 10.92

Total Expenditures $156,891.00 $10,538.15 $10,596.81 $36,086.01

P.W.-GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

COMMUNICATION  410.32  2,750.00 
 384.72

 630.12

CONTINGENCY  0.00  5,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  204.61  4,000.00 
 569.62

 599.70

OFFICE SUPPLIES  91.81  5,000.00 
 234.70

 113.65

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  2,200.00 
 0.00

 540.00

OVERTIME  0.00  500.00 
 12.94

 0.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  0.00  20,000.00 
 1,586.86

 0.00

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 960.04

 0.00

SALARIES  18,395.03  234,415.00 
 16,945.92

 60,919.32

TRAVEL & TRAINING  45.00  8,000.00 
 700.00

 346.60

Total Expenditures $281,865.00 $19,146.77 $21,394.80 $63,149.39

PARK DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES

CONTINGENCY  0.00  5,027.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $5,027.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Period (Month) =  3.00

58



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Current Year

Expenses YTD

PARKS & PLAYGROUNDS

BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

CHEMICALS  9,850.43  18,000.00 
 7,944.18

 9,850.43

COMMUNICATION  186.61  2,500.00 
 525.74

 378.53

CONTINGENCY  72.58  5,000.00 
 0.00

 228.43

ELECTRICITY  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  1,938.19  8,000.00 
 2,415.03

 2,670.56

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  5,847.29  45,000.00 
 15,562.56

 9,676.42

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NATURAL GAS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT  1,080.91  2,000.00 
 2,205.95

 1,612.60

OFFICE SUPPLIES  16.15  800.00 
 10.97

 103.29

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  160.84  24,000.00 
 685.24

 7,856.80

OVERTIME  460.65  10,000.00 
 1,569.19

 2,981.98

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

RENTALS  0.00  800.00 
 90.00

 0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES  2,891.91  19,900.00 
 1,597.29

 8,509.63

SALARIES  45,014.02  618,250.00 
 43,954.99

 157,549.00

SEASONAL/PART TIME  0.00  97,920.00 
 1,350.00

 1,703.50

TRAVEL & TRAINING  0.00  3,500.00 
 128.45

 359.78

UNIFORMS  287.65  5,100.00 
 283.18

 658.15

Total Expenditures $860,770.00 $67,807.23 $78,322.77 $204,139.10

PLANNING INSPECTION ENFORCEMEN

COMMUNICATION  398.48  6,700.00 
 371.79

 921.45

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  3,374.95  3,750.00 
 0.00

 3,374.95

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  164.00  1,500.00 
 95.51

 490.34

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  141.24  7,000.00 
 106.53

 614.29

OVERTIME  611.13  10,000.00 
 122.35

 1,209.10

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

SALARIES  20,010.76  273,563.00 
 16,108.48

 69,864.37

SEASONAL/PART TIME  1,055.80  11,590.00 
 917.59

 3,836.08

TRAVEL & TRAINING  724.79  25,000.00 
 702.89

 1,649.42

UNIFORMS  30.00  1,200.00 
 99.33

 30.00

Total Expenditures $340,303.00 $26,511.15 $18,524.47 $81,990.00

Period (Month) =  3.00

59



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Current Year

Expenses YTD

POLICE DEPARTMENT

COMMUNICATION  1,098.29  14,860.00 
 804.57

 2,679.21

CONTINGENCY  807.63  5,000.00 
 83.33

 929.80

ELECTRICITY  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  1,998.41  14,750.00 
 606.57

 3,979.26

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  540.44  21,000.00 
 590.15

 784.59

GRANT FUNDING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  0.00  6,300.00 
 1,209.12

 254.46

NEW EQUIPMENT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES  127.42  2,200.00 
 117.72

 217.28

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  2,409.40  53,070.00 
 3,115.55

 9,459.25

OVERTIME  7,099.39  145,000.00 
 3,118.70

 39,236.10

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  0.00  17,800.00 
 107.44

 7,049.10

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

RENTALS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

SALARIES  124,424.89  1,816,215.00 
 129,043.14

 441,849.38

TRAVEL & TRAINING  4,091.42  24,780.00 
 557.41

 5,132.35

UNIFORMS  1,710.64  15,500.00 
 511.13

 2,797.35

Total Expenditures $2,136,475.00 $144,307.93 $139,864.83 $514,368.13

Period (Month) =  3.00

60



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Current Year

Expenses YTD

PUBLIC WORKS-SERVICE DIVISION

COMMUNICATION  302.10  1,600.00 
 102.39

 406.34

ELECTRICITY  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  45.88  40,000.00 
 2,958.65

 909.63

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  9,307.98  181,000.00 
 6,750.08

 10,037.77

GRANT FUNDING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NATURAL GAS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT  0.00  48,200.00 
 5,500.00

 0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  8,597.81  16,000.00 
 9,169.27

 8,597.81

OVERTIME  565.55  15,900.00 
 7,001.79

 6,530.60

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

RENTALS  0.00  2,500.00 
 67.50

 0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

SALARIES  40,930.21  588,301.00 
 41,686.60

 137,813.14

SEASONAL/PART TIME  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFERS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING  140.00  7,300.00 
 857.00

 140.00

UNIFORMS  309.18  6,200.00 
 445.58

 753.32

Total Expenditures $907,001.00 $60,198.71 $74,538.86 $165,188.61

QUALITY OF LIFE

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  35,303.00 
 5,444.00

 35,303.00

Total Expenditures $35,303.00 $0.00 $5,444.00 $35,303.00

RISK MGT. FUND EXPENDITURES

CONTINGENCY  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

SOCIAL SERVICES

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  164,000.00 
 0.00

 82,000.00

TRANSFERS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $164,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $82,000.00

Period (Month) =  3.00

61



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Current Year

Expenses YTD

SOLID WASTE FUND EXPENDITURE

COMMUNICATION  88.11  1,190.00 
 81.33

 182.67

CONTINGENCY  0.00  50,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

DEBT SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

ELECTRICITY  341.28  4,000.00 
 261.67

 1,056.92

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  131.60  10,900.00 
 234.58

 367.84

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  764.43  23,240.00 
 442.01

 2,093.43

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  175.80  2,000.00 
 0.00

 175.80

NATURAL GAS  530.93  3,084.00 
 397.89

 1,352.89

NEW EQUIPMENT  0.00  3,400.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES  541.91  550.00 
 0.00

 541.91

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  23,421.94  368,080.00 
 23,142.02

 58,044.92

OVERTIME  17.94  5,500.00 
 321.68

 922.70

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PROJECTS  0.00  6,000.00 
 5,000.00

 0.00

RENTALS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES  300.00  3,600.00 
 167.00

 1,271.69

SALARIES  26,048.94  352,055.00 
 25,237.53

 89,695.93

SEASONAL/PART TIME  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT  0.00  167,754.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND  0.00  245,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO RESERVES  0.00  86,765.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO WATER/SEWER FUND  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFERS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING  0.00  800.00 
 0.00

 0.00

UNIFORMS  210.74  4,000.00 
 220.94

 585.28

UTILITY-WATER  80.50  410.00 
 0.00

 80.50

Total Expenditures $1,338,328.00 $52,654.12 $55,506.65 $156,372.48

SPECIAL ALCOHOL FUND EXPENDITU

CONTINGENCY  0.00  175,371.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  60,000.00 
 0.00

 30,000.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT  0.00  26,074.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND  0.00  54,336.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFERS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $315,781.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00

Period (Month) =  3.00

62



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Current Year

Expenses YTD

SPECIAL HIGHWAY EXPENDITURES

2001 SIDEWALK RAMPS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS  222.00  548,352.00 
 0.00

 43,963.96

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 738.05

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

BUDGETED CAPITAL PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

CONTINGENCY  0.00  50,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

CORR MGT - GENERAL HAYS RD.  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

CORR MGT-REVERSE ACCESS 48-55  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO BOND & INTEREST  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO WATER/SEWER FUND  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFERS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

VINE ST.-MILL & OVERLAY--13/27  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $598,352.00 $222.00 $0.00 $44,702.01

SPECIAL PRK & REC EXPENDITURES

BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

CONTINGENCY  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PROJECTS  200.00  235,786.00 
-150.00

 1,191.64

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $235,786.00 $200.00 -$150.00 $1,191.64

SPORTS COMPLEX-EXPENDITURES

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT EXPENDIT

COMMUNICATION  12.33  750.00 
 12.03

 95.51

CONTINGENCY  0.00  50,000.00 
 0.00

 2,190.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  43.40  7,400.00 
 99.00

 43.40

NEW EQUIPMENT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  10,000.00 
 1.32

 0.00

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  0.00  20,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PROJECTS  0.00  576,544.00 
 0.00

 0.00

SALARIES  1,183.98  31,375.00 
 4,689.02

 5,919.89

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT  0.00  11,851.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND  0.00  64,260.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE  0.00  1,790.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING (2.00) 8,000.00 
 0.00

 422.00

UNIFORMS  0.00  200.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $782,170.00 $1,237.71 $4,801.37 $8,670.80

Period (Month) =  3.00

63



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Current Year

Expenses YTD

SWIMMING POOL

BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

CHEMICALS  0.00  39,500.00 
 0.00

 906.50

ELECTRICITY  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  0.00  10,000.00 
 0.00

 18.75

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  1,210.99  10,700.00 
 1,501.25

 1,767.73

INSURANCE & SURETY BONDS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NATURAL GAS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NEW EQUIPMENT  540.91  14,800.00 
 0.00

 540.91

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  1,020.00  31,700.00 
 1,289.60

 1,085.00

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

RENTALS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES  0.00  8,000.00 
 163.30

 0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures
$114,700.00 $2,771.90 $2,954.15 $4,318.89

TDD SLS TAX   EXPENDITURES

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  14,460.35  0.00 
 15,889.65

 49,759.13

Total Expenditures $0.00 $14,460.35 $15,889.65 $49,759.13

UTILITIES DEPT./WATER CONSERV.

COMMUNICATION  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  0.00  5,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

GRANT FUNDING  0.00  5,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  26.00  2,000.00 
 0.00

 26.00

NEW EQUIPMENT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  0.00  5,000.00 
 0.00

 0.00

OVERTIME  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PROJECTS  6,155.00  335,000.00 
 2,000.00

 11,159.42

SALARIES  4,722.44  81,109.00 
 0.00

 17,950.69

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRAVEL & TRAINING (2.00) 2,000.00 
 0.00

 422.00

UNIFORMS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

Total Expenditures $435,109.00 $10,901.44 $2,000.00 $29,558.11

W/S NON-OPERATING EXPENDITURES

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

CLEAN DRINKING WATER FEE  0.00  20,000.00 
 0.00

 4,352.94

CONTINGENCY  0.00  50,000.00 
 14.93

 53.26

GRANT FUNDING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

INTEREST ON METER DEPOSITS  20.06  1,000.00 
 21.67

 81.70

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  1,247.12  0.00 
 2,478.04

 3,788.19

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

R-9  RANCH EXPENDITURES  600.00  315,000.00 
 2,446.70

 49,634.21

TRANSFER TO BOND & INTEREST  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO EMPLOYEE BENEFIT  0.00  486,662.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND  0.00  961,024.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO NEW EQUIP. RESERVE  0.00  62,926.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER TO STORMWATER MGT  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRANSFER-SALES TAX RESERVE  0.00  2,755,475.00 
 0.00

 0.00

TRNSF TO GEN.  FROM WA SLS TX  0.00  596,850.00 
 0.00

 0.00

WATER TAPS, HYDRANTS, METERS  10,073.31  128,000.00 
 6,116.40

 16,612.18

Total Expenditures $5,376,937.00 $11,940.49 $11,077.74 $74,522.48

Period (Month) =  3.00

64



Expenses 

Current Mo.

Budgeted 

2014

Expenses 

Current Mo. 

Previous Year

Current Year

Expenses YTD

WASTEWATER TREATMENT & COLL.

CHEMICALS  6,091.37  64,050.00 
 6,014.23

 10,844.78

COMMUNICATION  199.42  3,000.00 
 191.79

 399.99

ELECTRICITY  13,852.87  182,905.00 
 12,089.59

 39,107.84

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  13,132.36  92,400.00 
 2,368.26

 18,431.33

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  1,372.31  24,804.00 
 2,458.38

 2,564.88

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

NATURAL GAS  3,359.79  26,966.00 
 2,101.56

 6,163.42

OFFICE SUPPLIES  0.00  600.00 
 0.00

 7.78

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  2,584.74  186,050.00 
 451.58

 6,945.92

OVERTIME  2,771.44  17,000.00 
 1,717.64

 7,694.19

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  1,041.90  29,035.00 
 1,654.00

 2,020.20

PROJECTS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES  13,530.43  51,500.00 
 77.04

 17,755.73

SALARIES  32,166.45  459,300.00 
 32,937.75

 121,347.19

SEASONAL/PART TIME  2,136.16  20,660.00 
 391.40

 7,469.84

TRAVEL & TRAINING  0.00  4,000.00 
 285.76

 0.00

UNIFORMS  188.95  4,500.00 
 1,226.39

 482.74

Total Expenditures $1,166,770.00 $92,428.19 $63,965.37 $241,235.83

WATER PRODUCTION & DIST.

CHEMICALS  31,236.91  520,810.00 
 29,525.62

 74,680.72

COMMUNICATION  79.96  8,400.00 
 771.83

 380.49

ELECTRICITY  21,152.10  275,700.00 
 18,245.93

 59,555.68

EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  4,442.64  56,140.00 
 4,874.83

 4,967.80

GENERAL SUPPLIES & MATERIALS  2,275.80  42,000.00 
 2,524.43

 4,700.09

INSURANCE & SURETY BONDS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & PRINTING  46.87  3,150.00 
 0.00

 46.87

NATURAL GAS  1,788.15  6,100.00 
 1,331.85

 8,095.28

OFFICE SUPPLIES  26.96  1,100.00 
 5.98

 30.85

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES  1,245.89  91,720.00 
 112.10

 3,124.33

OVERTIME  3,283.53  22,000.00 
 1,088.75

 10,145.17

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  0.00  15,540.00 
 0.00

 0.00

PROJECTS  11.53  60,000.00 
 369.06

 60.16

RENTALS  0.00  0.00 
 0.00

 0.00

REPAIRS TO BLDGS & STRUCTURES  27.96  4,500.00 
 1,200.36

 33.90

SALARIES  41,478.35  574,761.00 
 42,579.29

 150,272.60

SEASONAL/PART TIME  0.00  28,276.00 
 1,675.80

 259.25

TRAVEL & TRAINING  54.33  4,000.00 
 20.00

 74.33

UNIFORMS  365.56  5,000.00 
 928.24

 613.34

Total Expenditures $1,719,197.00 $107,516.54 $105,254.07 $317,040.86

$35,133,847.00 $1,443,717.39 
Grand Totals

$1,650,066.40 $6,223,183.53

Period (Month) =  3.00

65



 

66



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 5A  MEETING DATE: 4-24-14 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Cereal Malt Beverage License Applications / Special Event Permits 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approve the Cereal Malt Beverage Licenses for Al's Chickenette and Downtown Hays 
Development Corporation (Blues & BBQ). 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
None 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
None 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Cereal Malt Beverage License Applications 
 
 

 
 
 

67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



 
CITY OF HAYS 

AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
 

       COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 5B               MEETING DATE: 4-24-14 
 
 

 
TOPIC: 
 
Mayoral Appointments for Approval 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Consider approving Mayoral appointments to the CARE Council, Hays Housing Authority Board, Hays Public 
Library Board, and Sister Cities Advisory Board. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The following appointments were recommended at the April 10, 2014 City Commission meeting and are now 
being presented for approval. 
 
CARE Council 
 
Michael Billinger – 2-year term to expire on 3-1-16 (2nd term) 
Olga Detrixhe – 2-year term to expire on 3-1-16 (1st term) 
 
Hays Housing Authority Board 
 
Sue Rouse – 4-year term to expire 2-14-18 (3rd term) 
 
Hays Public Library Board 
 
Katherine Wolfe – unexpired term to expire 4-30-16 (1st term) 
 
Sister Cities Advisory Board 
 
Ang Robson – unexpired term to expire 1-1-15 (1st term) 
  
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION: 
 
Mayor Schwaller  
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Applications 

81



82



83



84



85



86



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

      
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 6  MEETING DATE: 4-24-14 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Contract Sewer Cleaning Contract Extension 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Extend the 2013 contract for sewer cleaning and videoing to 2014 by Mayer Specialty 
Services, LLC at $1.21 per linear foot not to exceed $120,000, to be funded from Wastewater 
Other Contractual Services. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The Utilities Department initiated a multi-year program to clean sewer lines in 2013. Bids 
were solicited with a contract document that had a provision for contract annual renewal. 
Mayer Specialty Service, LLC was chosen in 2013 at $1.19 per linear foot. In summer of 
2013 they cleaned and videoed 19 miles of sewer. Staff was very pleased with the work. 
Mayer Specialty has agreed to continue the contract with a 1.5 % increase from $1.19 to 
$1.21 per foot for 2014. The 2014 Budget included $120,000  
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
Bernie Kitten, Director of Utilities 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Because of good service and a reasonable 1.5% increase, we recommend extending the 
2013 contract for sewer cleaning and videoing to 2014 by Mayer Specialty Services, LLC at 
$1.21 per linear foot not to exceed $120,000, to be funded from Wastewater Other 
Contractual Services.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
NA 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
2014 Map of Cleaned and Televised Sewers 
2014 Mayer Contract Sewer Cleaning Agreement  
2013 Bid Tabs with 2014 Note 
May 2013 Contract and Invitation to Bid  

 

87



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   Bernie Kitten, Utilities Director 
 
Work Session:   April 17, 2014 
 
Subject:  Contract Sewer Cleaning, Second Year 
 
Person(s)   Bernie Kitten, Director of Utilities  
Responsible:    
 
 

Summary 
The Utilities Department initiated a multi year program to clean sewer lines in 2013. Bids 
were solicited with a contract document that had a provision for contract annual renewal. 
Mayer Specialty Service, LLC was chosen in 2013 at $1.19 per linear foot. In summer of 
2013 they cleaned and videoed 19 mile of sewer. Staff was very pleased with the work. 
Meyer Specialty has agreed to continue the contract with a 1.5 % increase from $1.19 to 
$1.21 per foot for 2014. 
 
Staff recommends we continue the contract at $1.21 per foot with Mayer Specialty 
Services, LLC with a not to exceed $120,000. 
 

Background  
Proper operation and maintenance of a collection system is required by the city’s 
wastewater discharge permit. Problems caused by a lack of sewer cleaning include: sewer 
backups, manhole overflows, public exposure to raw sewage, and regulatory fines. On 
average, municipalities are cleaning approximately 29% of their sewer lines per year. In 
Hays, our goal is to get 33% (40 miles) per year.  
 
The Utilities department has existing staff that does emergency call out for sewer backup 
removal. They also clean certain problem lines every 4 months. Currently, there is not 
enough utility staff to achieve the regular line cleaning goal of one third of the town.  
 
In 2013 summer, we cleaned the “flushing maintenance route” and about one sixth of the 
regular lines by using one Operator and one summer helper. We contracted Mayer 
Specialties, who cleaned one sixth, 19 miles. This allowed Utilities to reach the one third 
goal of cleaning for 2013. Our intent is to again hire a contractor in 2014 to do 1/6 of the 
sewers and the Utilities operators to do 1/6 to reach the 2014 goal of 1/3 (40 miles). 
 

88



Discussion 
To begin a progressive program to clean sewer lines in 2013, bids were solicited with a 
contract document that had a provision for contract annual renewal. The price was limited 
to a 3% increase per foot rate. Three bids were received in 2013 to clean and video about 
1/6 of the sewer lines. (19Miles).   
 
Mayer Specialty Service, LLC was chosen in 2013 at $1.19 per linear foot. In summer of 
2013 they cleaned and videoed 19 mile of sewer. Staff was very pleased with the work. 
They completed the work in a timely manner. They placed door hangers on all affected 
customers. They handled customer problems professionally and promptly with follow up. 
They assisted our IT staff with getting the video software operational. The person that 
runs the video camera was experienced and accurate in his logs. Meyer Specialty has 
agreed to continue the contract with a 1.5 % increase from $1.19 to $1.21 per foot for 
2014. 
 
The video that Mayer’s does as they clean will provide early detection of flaws and will 
allow repairs before catastrophic failure. In 2013 many cracks, holes and tree root clogs 
where seen. The 2013 video is being processed by the IT and Utilities Department to 
create work orders for repairs and root removal. City Crews have started the root removal 
and chemical treatment recently, based on sites videoed.  Our goal is a baseline video of 
all 110 miles of sewer lines over the next 6 years to create a record of this asset. We will 
be able to go back and compare baseline with current to see if flaws are changing and 
require expensive repair. 
 
The Utilities Department has developed a good working relationship with Meyer’s. As 
detailed above they did very good work in 2013. They gave a fair price increase so we 
recommend continuing the contract in 2014 and not going out for new bids. 

 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 
 

Financial Consideration 
For 2014, $120,000 is budgeted in the Wastewater Other Contractual Services for this 
service.  This is a sole source request and a continuation of the current contract that has 
an extension clause. Staff negotiated with Meyer Specialty, who has agreed to continue 
the contract with a 1.5 % increase from $1.19 to $1.21 per foot for 2014.  
 

Options 
1. Accept proposal from Mayer Specialty Services, LLC, for contract sewer 

cleaning, at $1.21 per linear foot, not to exceed $120,000. 
 
2. Direct staff to solicit proposals for the 2014 contract sewer cleaning. 

 
3. Provide alternate direction to City Staff  

 

89



Recommendation 
Staff recommends accepting the proposal of $1.21 per foot, from Mayer Specialty 
Services, LLC not to exceed $120,000. 
 

Action Requested 
Consider extending the contract for Sewer cleaning and videoing in 2014 by Mayer 
Specialty Services, LLC at $1.21 per linear foot not to exceed $120,000, to be funded 
from Wastewater Other Contractual Services.  
 

Supporting Documentation 
2014 Map of Cleaned and Televised Sewers 
2014 Mayer Contract Sewer Cleaning Agreement  
2013 Bid Tabs with 2014 note 
May 2013 Contract and Invitation to Bid  

90



V
IN

E
 

A
S

H

12TH

I-70

8TH 

H
A

LL

FO
R

T

M
A

IN

41ST

13TH

17TH 

11TH

6TH 

7TH 

22ND 

20TH 
A

LL
E

N
 

9TH 

H
A

N
E

Y

H
W

Y
 183

27TH 

18TH 

C
A

N
A

L

16TH

F
E

LT
E

N

H
E

N
R

Y

14TH 

37TH 

33RD

O
A

K
 

5TH

D
O

N
A

LD

13TH 

29TH 

JP

C
O

U
N

T
R

Y
 

JA
K

E

16TH 

24TH 

23RD

T
H

U
N

D
E

R
B

IR
D

H
IL

L
C

R
E

S
T

35TH 

N
C

K

A
G

N
E

S

36TH 

38TH 

15TH 

C
A

N
T

E
R

B
U

R
Y

DOUGLAS

43RD 

BARCLAY

M
A

R
JO

R
IE

W
A

LN
U

T

S
H

E
R

M
A

N

21ST

H
O

L
M

E
S

34TH 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
C

U
S

T
E

R

M
A

R
S

H
A

LL
5TH 

T
IM

B
E

R

IN
D

IA
N

B
R

O
A

D
W

A
Y

A
N

T
H

O
N

Y

45TH 

A
U

G
U

S
TA

10TH

P
O

S
T

 

LE
W

IS

P
LA

Z
A

E
LM

 

CODY

32ND 

G
R

A
N

T

V
IN

E
 S

T
 F

R
O

N
TA

G
E

M
A

C
 A

R
T

H
U

R

JO
S

IE

P
IN

E
 

27TH ST

44TH

E
IS

E
N

H
O

W
E

R

31ST

DW
IGHT

DRUM

R
O

T
H

25TH 

39TH 

M
A

D
IS

O
N

43RD

MOPAR

S
T

E
V

E
N

G
O

L
D

E
N

 B
E

LT

30TH 

LIN
C

O
L

N

42ND 

MOTZ 

26TH 

PA
R

K

LY
MAN

A
U

T
U

M
N

P
E

R
S

H
IN

G
C

O
T

T
O

N
W

O
O

D

V
O

LG
A

 

CENTENNIAL

C
O

L
U

M
B

IN
E

19TH 
W

IL
LO

W

28TH 

S
K

Y
LI

N
E

DOWNING

GUSTAD

O
L

D
 U

S
 40

4TH 

3RD

IDA

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 P

L
A

IN
S

PRIVATE

P
LU

M
 

V
IS

TA

6TH

8TH
9TH

H
A

R
V

E
S

T

C
O

LO
N

IA
L

A
R

B
O

R

S
U

M
M

E
R

FA
IR

W
A

Y

METRO

28
TH

C
O

LL
E

G
E

H
IC

K
O

R
Y

NORTH CAMPUS

GREENBRIER

S
TE

R
N

B
E

R
G

CIRCLE

15TH W
H

IT
T

IE
R

 

TA
M

 O
S

H
A

N
TE

R

PATIO

AMHURST

29TH

20TH

14TH

28TH ST

V
IR

G
IN

IA

22ND

SCHWALLER

CLUBHOUSE

LA
W

R
E

N
C

E

OAKMONT

27TH ST FRONTAGE

M
AIN

 ST

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
H

A
Y

S

40TH 

F
IL

LM
O

R
E

M
O

N
TG

O
M

E
R

Y
C

E
D

A
R

JU
D

IT
H

M
A

P
LE

 

C
O

V
E

N
A

N
T

M
IL

N
E

R

PINEHURST

R
O

M
E

2ND 

K
IN

G
'S

 G
A

T
E

T
R

U
M

A
N

E
N

G
LE

W
O

O
D

HIGHLAND

H
A

R
R

IS
O

N
NORTHRIDGE T

R
IN

IT
Y

AGNEW

W
O

O
D

R
O

W

PERSHING

41ST

CANAL

18TH 

V
IN

E
 S

T
 F

R
O

N
TA

G
E

30TH 

32ND 

8TH 

27TH 

33RD

25TH 

5TH

14TH 

9TH

F
O

R
T

12TH

M
A

IN
 S

T23RD

21ST

29TH 

19TH 

23RD

A
S

H

4TH 

19TH 

15TH 

33RD

15TH

P
IN

E
 

F
E

LT
E

N

19TH 
W

IL
LO

W

24TH 

JUDITH

E
LM

 

O
A

K
 

22ND 

M
IL

N
E

R

37TH 

29TH 29TH 

10TH

I-70

15TH 

32ND 

DOW
NING

16TH

13TH

24TH 

E
LM

 

28TH 

3RD

20TH 

E
LM

 

32ND 

24TH 

W
A

LN
U

T

27TH 

11TH

20TH 

7TH 

23RD

10TH

PRIVATE D
O

N
A

LD

VIRGINIA

31ST

32ND 

H
IL

L
C

R
E

S
T

21
S

T

43RD 

26TH 

21ST

36TH 

W
A

LN
U

T

13TH

IN
D

IA
N

12TH

5TH

14TH

21ST

M
IL

N
E

R

DRUM

15TH

37TH 

8TH

H
W

Y
 1

8
3

35TH 

C
A

N
T

E
R

B
U

R
Y

26TH 

24TH 

38TH 

S
K

Y
L

IN
E

21ST

19TH
 

37TH 

E
LM

 
29TH 

8
509

15 42
0

8
38

9

8511.93

15496.53

15
46

7.
8

8

15
39

6.
2

1

18357.1

18
38

5.
2

4

8285.71

8
25

6.
2

6

PACP Inspections Project
2014 - 18 Miles

2012 Pilot Project - 3 Miles

2013 -19 Miles

Flushing Maintenace - 8 Miles

Sanitary Sewer - 120 Miles

91



 
Bernie Kitten 
Hays, City of 
1000 Vine St.  
Hays, KS 67601  

Phone:   785-628-7380 
Fax:   785-628-7382 
Email: bkitten@haysusa.com 

 

 
Project:  2014 Contract Sewer Cleaning 
Bid Date: 3/19/14 
 
Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Extended Price

1 Clean, inspect & and televise sanitary sewer lines 99,173 LF $1.21 $119,999.33
as per city provided database ready for import into 
MSS inspection software.

 
Customer Responsibilities: 

 Provide community awareness of project. 
 Provide clean water for equipment and cleanup and a dumpsite, within reasonable distance, for deposit of debris removed. 
 Provide access for our equipment to all locations as needed; locate, uncover & exercise all manhole lids prior to our arrival. 
 Any excavation, opening, back filling and/or repair of sewers and/or streets required to remove contractor’s equipment caught 

in the sewer pipe due to sewer defects. 
 Provide database with desired cleaning/television inspection district pre-populated with manhole numbers and ready for import 

into ITPipes software. 
 Actual invoice price will be computed utilizing the actual footage cleaned/televised and the per-foot price above.  

Inclusions: 
 Provide notification to affected customers via door hangers supplied by MSS. 
 Provide equipment, labor, materials and mobilization to light clean and televise sanitary sewer lines as per original bid 

specifications. 
 Additional footage may be cleaned and televised at the same rate specified above. Project shall not exceed customer’s budget 

unless additional work is requested and approved by the city via change order. 
 Cleaning reports provided in paper format; television inspection data provided on a hard drive and formatted as to allow for 

import into the city’s mapping program. 
 We are available to start the work in April 2014; a pre-con meeting will be scheduled at a convenient time for both parties 

before any work is started. 
Exclusions: 

 Mayer Specialty Services, LLC accepts no responsibility for damage that may occur because of improperly vented structures, 
pre-existing conditions or anything introduced into the system which is not normal sewage. 

 Heavy cleaning and/or root removal 
 Sales Taxes 
 Permits or connection fees of any kind 
 Bypass Pumping 
 Davis-Bacon Wages 

 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide pricing 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL AND NOTICE TO PROCEED 

 
831 Industrial Rd / PO Box 469 

Goddard, KS 67052 

 
Date: 3/19/2014 
Phone: (316) 794-1165 
Fax: (316) 794-2717 
From: Melinda Lambert 
 ML 
  

 

Authorized Signature                                                                                                                       Date 

 

No retainage may be withheld out of contracts less than $1,000.00 

To ensure pricing, please provide notification of acceptance of this quote within thirty (30) days of bid date 
92



2013 Bid Tabs with 2014 Notes 
 

Bid Tabulation Sheet 
Contract Sewer Line Cleaning 

Bid Opening Date 5-22-13 
 
Mayer Specialty Services, LLC 
831 Industrial Road, PO Box 469 
Goddard, KS 67052 
316-794-1165 
Todd Mayer 

$1.19 per linear foot 

Ace Pipe Cleaning, Inc. 
4000 Truman Road 
Kansas City, MO 64127 
816-241-2891 
Don Uberroth 

$1.50 per linear foot 

Johnson Service Co. 
PO Box 1065 
Kearny, NE 68845 
308-237-6651 
Lewis Hyatt 

$1.87 per linear foot 

 
 
 
 
Note: 
April 17, 2014 
 
Meyer Specialty has agreed to the extension clause in the  2013 
contract. 
They agreed to a 1.5 % increase from $1.19 to $1.21 per foot for 
2014. 
 
 
 

93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



 

102



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 7  MEETING DATE: 4-24-14 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Bike Hays KDOT Agreements for Bicycle Pavement Markings and Pedestrian – Bicycle Path 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approve the agreements with the Kansas Department of Transportation for the Bike Hays 
pavement marking system and pedestrian – bicycle path. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
In 2013, the City of Hays was notified of funding from the Kansas Department of 
Transportation for the Bike Hays plan which includes an on-street system and levee 
multipurpose trail.  The project is at a significant point that it now requires an agreement 
acknowledging both entities’ financial commitment and understanding of the KDOT as the 
project administrator.  
 
The City Commission has allocated necessary funding for the local match.  Staff 
recommends approval of the agreement to proceed with the project.  
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
Paul Briseno, Assistant City Manager 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
City staff recommends approval of the agreements with the Kansas Department of 
Transportation for the Bike Hays pavement marking system and pedestrian – bicycle path. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
KDOT Bicycle Pavement Marking Agreement 
KDOT Pedestrian – Bicycle Path Agreement 

 
 
 

103



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   Paul Briseno, Assistant City Manager 
 
Work Session:   April 17, 2014 
 
Subject: Bike Hays – KDOT Agreement   
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Paul Briseno, Assistant City Manager 
 
 

Summary 
In 2013 the City of Hays was notified of funding from Kansas Department of 
Transportation for the Bike Hays plan which includes an on street system and levee 
multipurpose trail.  The project is at a significant point that it now requires an agreement 
acknowledging both entities financial commitment and understanding of the KDOT as 
the project administrator.  
 
The City Commission has allocated necessary funding for the local match.  Staff 
recommends approval of the agreement to proceed with the project.  
  

Background  
In February 2013, staff submitted an application to Kansas Department of Transportation 
(KDOT) for Transportation Enhancement funding to finance the construction of the Bike 
Hays improvements which include an on street system and levee multipurpose path.  In 
September engineering was contracted to meet KDOT requirements for the on street and 
levee system.   Engineered documents have been submitted and multiple field checks 
began in January.  
 

Discussion 
The City of Hays has entered into agreements with KDOT in the past.  The most recent 
projects include Vine Street reconstruction and 41st Street.  These agreements detail both 
entities commitment and grant the State bid letting authority as well as general oversight 
of the project.   
 
The Bike Hays project is at a significant point in the states process that KDOT now 
requires agreements to proceed.  The agreements ensure 60% of construction costs and 
oversight are covered by the state for the on street system and levee path.  Commission 
has secured the required local match and provided necessary engineering.  
 
KDOT requires multiple reviews of field check plans provided by the engineers.  This 
process is currently underway and construction review will take place in the next few 
months.  The project is on schedule to bid this summer.   In the future, after KDOT opens 

104



bids, a request to authorize award of the bid and construction inspection will come before 
the Commission.   
 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 

 

Financial Consideration 
Previously the City Commission has secured the necessary local match for this project.  
This includes $191,000 from Stormwater and $300,000 from Special Parks.  Engineering 
of the systems cost $97,638.  The construction and inspection costs are projected at 
$983,000.  The State is responsible for $589,800 and City $393,200.  
 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options: 

1. Approve the agreements with the Kansas Department of Transportation 
2. Take no action 
3. Provide alternate direction to city staff 

 

Recommendation 
City staff recommends approval of the agreements with the Kansas Department of 
Transportation for the Bike Hays pavement marking system and pedestrian – bicycle 
path. 
 

Action Requested 
Approve the agreements with the Kansas Department of Transportation for the Bike Hays 
pavement marking system and pedestrian – bicycle path. 

 

Supporting Documentation 
KDOT Bicycle Pavement Marking Agreement 
KDOT Pedestrian – Bicycle Path Agreement 

105



Agreement No. 311-13 
 

 1 

PROJECT NO. 26 TE-0386-01                       
   TEA-T038(601)  
TRANSPORTATION ENHANCEMENT PROJECT 
BICYCLE PAVEMENT MARKINGS 
CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS  
 

A G R E E M E N T 
 
 This Agreement is between MICHAEL S. KING, Secretary of Transportation, Kansas 
Department of Transportation (KDOT) (the “Secretary”) and the City of Hays, Kansas (“City”), 
collectively, the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS: 
 

A. The Secretary is authorized by the current Federal-Aid Transportation Act to set aside certain 
portion of Federal funding allocated under the current Federal-Aid Transportation Act for 
Transportation Enhancement (TE) projects. 

 
B. The Secretary is empowered to pass through Federal Surface Transportation Program (STP) 

funds for TE projects to eligible state agencies or local governments.  
 

C. The Secretary and the City are empowered by the laws of Kansas to enter into agreements for 
Federal STP funding under the Transportation Enhancement Provision of the current Federal-Aid 
Transportation Act.  
 

D. The City has requested and Secretary has authorized a Transportation Enhancement (TE) 
project, as further described in this Agreement. 
 

E. Under the terms of the current Federal-Aid Transportation Act and the rules and regulations of 
the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), states and local governments are, under certain 
circumstances, entitled to receive assistance in the financing of TE projects, provided however, 
that in order to be eligible for such federal-aid, such work is required by Federal law to be done in 
accordance with the laws of the state. 

   
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and the mutual covenants set forth 
herein, the Parties agree to the following terms and provisions. 
 

ARTICLE I 
 
DEFINITIONS: The following terms as used in this Agreement have the designated meanings: 
 

1. “Agreement” means this written document, including all attachments and exhibits, evidencing 
the legally binding terms and conditions of the agreement between the Parties. 
 

2. “City” means the City of Hays, Kansas, with its place of business at 1002 Vine Street, Hays, 
KS 67601. 
 

106



Agreement No. 311-13 
 

 2 

3. “Construction” means the work done on the Project after Letting, consisting of building, 
altering, repairing, improving or demolishing any structure, building or highway; any drainage, 
dredging, excavation, grading or similar work upon real property. 
 

4. “Construction Contingency Items” mean unforeseeable elements of cost within the defined 
project scope identified after the Construction phase commences. 
 

5. “Construction Engineering” means inspection services, material testing, engineering 
consultation and other reengineering activities required during Construction of the Project. 
 

6. “Consultant” means any engineering firm or other entity retained to perform services for the 
Project. 
 

7. “Contractor” means the entity awarded the Construction contract for the Project and any 
subcontractors working for the Contractor with respect to the Project. 
 

8. “Design Plans” means design plans, specifications, estimates, surveys, and any necessary 
studies or investigations, including, but not limited to, environmental, hydraulic, and geological 
investigations or studies necessary for the Project under this Agreement.  
 

9. “Effective Date” means the date this Agreement is signed by the Secretary or the Secretary’s 
designee. 
 

10. “Encroachment” means any building, structure, farming, vehicle parking, storage or other 
object or thing, including but not limited to signs, posters, billboards, roadside stands, fences, 
or other private installations, not authorized to be located within the Right of Way which may 
or may not require removal during Construction pursuant to the Design Plans. 
 

11. “FHWA” means the Federal Highway Administration, a federal agency of the United States. 
 

12. “Hazardous Waste” includes, but is not limited to, any substance which meets the test of 
hazardous waste characteristics by exhibiting flammability, corrosivity, or reactivity, or which 
is defined by state and federal laws and regulations, and any pollutant or contaminant which 
may present an imminent and substantial danger to the public health or welfare, including but 
not limited to leaking underground storage tanks. Any hazardous waste as defined by state and 
federal laws and regulations and amendments occurring after November 11, 1991, is 
incorporated by reference and includes but is not limited to:  (1) 40 C.F.R. § 261 et seq., 
Hazardous Waste Management System; Identification and Listing of Hazardous Waste; 
Toxicity Characteristics Revisions; Final Rule; (2) 40 C.F.R. § 280 et seq., Underground 
Storage Tanks; Technical Requirements and State Program Approval; Final Rules; (3) 40 
C.F.R. § 300, National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan; Final Rule; 
and (4) K.S.A. 65-3430 et seq., Hazardous Waste. 
 

13. “KDOT” means the Kansas Department of Transportation, an agency of the state of Kansas, 
with its principal place of business located at 700 SW Harrison Street, Topeka, KS, 66603-
3745. 
 

107



Agreement No. 311-13 
 

 3 

14. “Letting” or “Let” means the process of receiving bids prior to any award of a Construction 
contract for any portion of the Project. 
 

15. “Non-Participating Costs” means the costs of any items or services which the Secretary, 
acting on the Secretary’s own behalf and on behalf of the FHWA, reasonably determines are 
not Participating Costs. 
 

16. “Participating Costs” means expenditures for items or services which are an integral part of 
highway, bridge and road construction projects, as reasonably determined by the Secretary. 
 

17. “Parties” means the Secretary of Transportation and KDOT, individually and collectively, 
and the City. 
 

18. “Preliminary Engineering” means pre-construction activities, including but not limited to 
design work, generally performed by a consulting engineering firm that takes place before 
Letting. 
 

19. “Project” means all phases and aspects of the Construction endeavor to be undertaken by the 
City, as and when authorized by the Secretary prior to Letting, being: Bicycle pavement 
markings citywide, including bicycle lane marking, sharrows, and parking lanes, in Hays, 
Kansas, and is the subject of this Agreement. 
 

20. “Project Limits” means that area of Construction for the Project, including all areas between 
and within the Right of Way boundaries as shown on the Design Plans. 
 

21. “Responsible Bidder” means one who makes an offer to construct the Project in response to a 
request for bid with the technical capability, financial capacity, human resources, equipment, 
and performance record required to perform the contractual services. 
 

22. “Right of Way” means the real property and interests therein necessary for Construction of 
the Project, including fee simple title, dedications, permanent and temporary easements, and 
access rights, as shown on the Design Plans. 
 

23. “Secretary” means Michael S. King, in his official capacity as Secretary of Transportation of 
the state of Kansas, and his successors. 
 

24. “Useful Life Period” means a sufficient period of time, as specifically designated in this 
Agreement in Article IV, paragraph 2, to secure the investment of federal funds in the Project 
based on the nature and magnitude of Project costs and generally accepted economic or useful 
life cycle norms for the type of Construction involved in the Project. 
 

25. “Utilities” or “Utility” means all privately, publicly or cooperatively owned lines, facilities 
and systems for producing, transmitting or distributing communications, power, electricity, 
light, heat, gas, oil, crude products, water, steam, waste, and other similar commodities, 
including non-transportation fire and police communication systems which directly or 
indirectly serve the public. 

 
 

108



Agreement No. 311-13 
 

 4 

ARTICLE II 
 
 SECRETARY RESPONSIBILITIES:  
 

1. Technical Information on Right of Way Acquisition. The Secretary will provide 
technical information upon request to help the City acquire Right of Way in accordance with the laws 
and with procedures established by KDOT’s Bureau of Right of Way and the Office of Chief Counsel 
and as required by FHWA directives to obtain participation of federal funds in the cost of the Project. 
 

2. Letting and Administration by KDOT. The Secretary shall Let the contract for the 
Project and shall award the contract to the lowest Responsible Bidder upon concurrence in the award 
by the City. The Secretary further agrees, as agent for the City, to administer the Construction of the 
Project in accordance with the final Design Plans, as required by FHWA, to negotiate with and report 
to the FHWA and administer the payments due the Contractor or the Consultant, including the portion 
of the cost borne by the City. 
  

3. Indemnification by Contractors. The Secretary will require the Contractor to 
indemnify, hold harmless, and save the Secretary and the City from personal injury and property 
damage claims arising out of the act or omission of the Contractor, the Contractor’s agent, 
subcontractors (at any tier), or suppliers (at any tier). If the Secretary or the City defends a third party’s 
claim, the Contractor shall indemnify the Secretary and the City for damages paid to the third party and 
all related expenses either the Secretary or the City or both incur in defending the claim. 
  

4. Payment of Costs. The Secretary agrees to be responsible for sixty percent (60%) of 
the total actual costs of Construction (which includes the costs of all Construction Contingency Items) 
and Construction Engineering for the Project. The Secretary shall not be responsible for the total actual 
costs of Preliminary Engineering, Right of Way, and Utility adjustments for the Project. 
 

5. Final Billing. After receipt of FHWA acknowledgement of final voucher claim, the 
Secretary’s Chief of Fiscal Services will, in a timely manner, prepare a complete and final billing of all 
Project costs for which the City is responsible and shall then transmit the complete and final billing to 
the City.   
 

ARTICLE III 
 

CITY RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

1. Secretary Authorization. The Project shall be undertaken, prosecuted and completed 
for and on behalf of the City by the Secretary acting in all things as its agent, and the City hereby 
constitutes and appoints the Secretary as its agent, and all things hereinafter done by the Secretary in 
connection with the Project are hereby by the City authorized, adopted, ratified and confirmed to the 
same extent and with the same effect as though done directly by the City acting in its own individual 
corporate capacity instead of by its agent. The Secretary is authorized by the City to take such steps as 
are deemed by the Secretary to be necessary or advisable for the purpose of securing the benefits of the 
current Federal-Aid Transportation Act for this Project. 
 

109



Agreement No. 311-13 
 

 5 

2. Legal Authority. The City agrees to adopt all necessary ordinances and/or resolutions 
and to take such administrative or legal steps as may be required to give full effect to the terms of this 
Agreement. 
 

3. Conformity with State and Federal Requirements. The City shall be responsible to 
design the Project or contract to have the Project designed in conformity with the state and federal 
design criteria appropriate for the Project in accordance with the current the American Institute of 
Architects (AIA) standards, the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic 
Properties, the American Society of Landscape Architects guidelines, KDOT’s Design Engineering 
Requirements, the current Local Projects LPA Project Development Manual, Bureau of Local Project’s 
(BLP’s) project memorandums, memos, the KDOT Design Manual, Geotechnical Bridge Foundation 
Investigation Guidelines, Bureau of Design’s road memorandums, the latest version, as adopted by the 
Secretary, of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), the current version of the 
Bureau of Transportation Safety and Technology’s Traffic Engineering Guidelines, and the current 
version of the KDOT Standard Specifications for State Road and Bridge Construction with Special 
Provisions, and any necessary Project Special Provisions, and with the rules and regulations of the 
FHWA pertaining to the Project.  
 

4. Design and Specifications. The City shall be responsible to make or contract to have 
made Design Plans for the Project.  
 

5. Submission of Design Plans to Secretary. Upon their completion, the City shall have 
the Design Plans submitted to the Secretary by a licensed professional engineer, a licensed professional 
architect, and/or licensed landscape architect, as applicable, attesting to the conformity of the Design 
Plans with the items in Article III, paragraph 3 above. The Design Plans must be signed and sealed by 
the licensed professional engineer, licensed professional architect, and/or licensed landscape architect, 
as applicable, responsible for preparation of the Design Plans. In addition, geological investigations or 
studies must be signed and sealed by either a licensed geologist or licensed professional engineer in 
accordance with K.S.A. 74-7042, who is responsible for the preparation of the geological 
investigations or studies.  
 

6. Consultant Contract Language. The City shall include language requiring conformity 
with Article III, paragraph 3 above, in all contracts between the City and any Consultant with whom 
the City has contracted to perform services for the Project. In addition, any contract between the City 
and any Consultant retained by them to perform any of the services described or referenced in this 
paragraph for the Project covered by this Agreement must contain language requiring conformity with 
Article III, paragraph 3 above. In addition, any contract between the City and any Consultant with 
whom the City has contracted to prepare and certify Design Plans for the Project covered by this 
Agreement must also contain the following provisions: 
  

(a) Completion of Design. Language requiring completion of all plan 
development stages no later than the current Project schedule’s due dates 
as issued by KDOT, exclusive of delays beyond the Consultant’s control. 

 
(b) Progress Reports. Language requiring the Consultant to submit to the 

City (and to the Secretary upon request) progress reports at monthly or at 
mutually agreed intervals in conformity with the official Project 
schedule. 

110



Agreement No. 311-13 
 

 6 

 
(c) Third Party Beneficiary. Language making the Secretary a third party 

beneficiary in the agreement between the City and the Consultant. Such 
language shall read: 

                                 
“Because of the Secretary of Transportation of the State of Kansas’ 
(Secretary’s) obligation to administer state funds, federal funds, or both, 
the Secretary shall be a third party beneficiary to this agreement between 
the City and the Consultant. This third party beneficiary status is for the 
limited purpose of seeking payment or reimbursement for damages and 
costs the Secretary or the City or both incurred or will incur because the 
Consultant failed to comply with its contract obligations under this 
Agreement or because of the Consultant’s negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions. Nothing in this provision precludes the City from seeking 
recovery or settling any dispute with the Consultant as long as such 
settlement does not restrict the Secretary’s right to payment or 
reimbursement.”  

 
7. Responsibility for Adequacy of Design. The City shall be responsible for and require 

any Consultant retained by it to be responsible for the adequacy and accuracy of the Design Plans for 
the Project. Any review of these items performed by the Secretary or the Secretary’s representatives is 
not intended to and shall not be construed to be an undertaking of the City’s and its Consultant’s duty 
to provide adequate and accurate Design Plans for the Project. Reviews by the Secretary are not done 
for the benefit of the Consultant, the construction Contractor, the City, any other political subdivision, 
or the traveling public. The Secretary makes no representation, express or implied warranty to any 
person or entity concerning the adequacy or accuracy of the Design Plans for the Project, or any other 
work performed by the Consultant or the City. 

 
8. Design Exception Indemnification. Any design exception to the current version of the 

American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) shall be in 
accordance with 23 C.F.R. § 625. For any design exception, the City agrees to the extent permitted by 
law and subject to the maximum liability provisions of the Kansas Tort Claims Act, to defend, 
indemnify, hold harmless, and save the Secretary and the Secretary’s authorized representatives from 
any and all costs, liabilities, expenses, suits, judgments, damages to persons or property or claims of 
any nature whatsoever arising out of or in connection with the design exceptions for this Agreement by 
the City, the City’s employees, or subcontractors. 
 

9. Authorization of Signatory. The City shall authorize a duly appointed representative 
to sign for the City any or all routine reports as may be required or requested by the Secretary in the 
completion of the Project.  
 

10. Right of Way. The City agrees to the following with regard to Right of Way: 
 

(a) Right of Way Acquisition. The City will, in its own name, as provided by law, 
acquire by purchase, dedication or condemnation all the Right of Way shown on the final 
Design Plans in accordance with the schedule established by KDOT. The City agrees the 
necessary Right of Way shall be acquired in compliance with the Uniform Relocation 
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 as amended by the Surface 

111



Agreement No. 311-13 
 

 7 

Transportation and Uniform Relocation Assistance Act of 1987, and administrative regulations 
contained in 49 C.F.R. Part 24, entitled Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 
Acquisition for Federal and Federally Assisted Programs. The City shall certify to the 
Secretary, on forms provided by the KDOT’s Bureau of Local Projects, such Right of Way has 
been acquired. The City further agrees it will have recorded in the Office of the Register of 
Deeds all Right of Way, deeds, dedications, permanent easements and temporary easements. 
 

(b) Right of Way Documentation. The City will provide all legal descriptions 
required for Right of Way acquisition work. Right of Way descriptions must be signed and 
sealed by a licensed land surveyor responsible for the preparation of the Right of Way 
descriptions. The City further agrees to acquire Right of Way in accordance with the laws and 
with procedures established by KDOT’s Bureau of Right of Way and the Office of Chief 
Counsel and as required by FHWA directives for the participation of federal funds in the cost 
of the Project. The City agrees copies of all documents, including recommendations and 
coordination for appeals, bills, contracts, journal entries, case files, or documentation requested 
by the Office of Chief Counsel will be delivered within the time limits set by the Secretary. 
 

(c) Relocation Assistance. The City will contact the Secretary if there will be any 
displaced person on the Project prior to making the offer for the property. The Parties mutually 
agree the Secretary will provide relocation assistance for eligible persons as defined in the 
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 as amended 
by the Surface Transportation and Uniform Relocation Assistance Act of 1987, and as provided 
in 49 C.F.R. Part 24, entitled Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition for 
Federal and Federally Assisted Programs, and in general accordance with K.S.A. 58-3501 to 
58-3507, inclusive, and Kansas Administrative Regulations 36-16-1 et seq. 
 

(d) Non-Highway Use of Right of Way. Except as otherwise provided, all Right of 
Way provided for the Project shall be used solely for public street purposes. Any disposal of or 
change in the use of Right of Way or in access after Construction of the Project will require 
prior written approval by the Secretary. 
 

(e) Trails and Sidewalks on KDOT Right of Way. Intentionally deleted. 
  

11. Removal of Encroachments. The City shall initiate and proceed with diligence to 
remove or require the removal of all Encroachments either on or above the limits of the Right of Way 
within its jurisdiction as shown on the final Design Plans for this Project. It is further agreed all such 
Encroachments will be removed before the Project is advertised for Letting; except the Secretary may 
permit the Project to be advertised for Letting before such Encroachment is fully removed if the 
Secretary determines the City and the owner of the Encroachment have fully provided for the physical 
removal of the Encroachment and such removal will be accomplished within a time sufficiently short 
to present no hindrance or delay to the Construction of the Project.   
 

12. Future Encroachments. Except as provided by state and federal laws, the City agrees 
it will not in the future permit Encroachments upon the Right of Way of the Project, and specifically 
will require any gas and fuel dispensing pumps erected, moved, or installed along the Project be placed 
no less than the distance permitted by the National Fire Code from the Right of Way line.   
 

13. Utilities. The City agrees to the following with regard to Utilities: 

112



Agreement No. 311-13 
 

 8 

 
(a) Utility Relocation. The City will move or adjust, or cause to be moved or 

adjusted, and will be responsible for such removal or adjustment of all existing Utilities 
necessary to construct the Project in accordance with the final Design Plans. New or existing 
Utilities to be installed, moved, or adjusted will be located or relocated in accordance with the 
current version of the KDOT Utility Accommodation Policy (UAP), as amended or 
supplemented. 
 

(b) Status of Utilities. The City shall furnish the Secretary a list identifying existing 
and known Utilities affected, together with locations and proposed adjustments of the same and 
designate a representative to be responsible for coordinating the necessary removal or 
adjustment of Utilities. 
 

(c) Time of Relocation. The City will expeditiously take such steps as are necessary 
to facilitate the early adjustment of any Utilities, initiate the removal or adjustment of the 
Utilities, and proceed with reasonable diligence to prosecute this work to completion. The City 
shall certify to the Secretary on forms supplied by the Secretary that all Utilities required to be 
moved prior to Construction have either been moved or a date provided by the City as to when, 
prior to the scheduled Letting and Construction, Utilities will be moved. The City shall move or 
adjust or cause to be moved or adjusted all necessary Utilities within the time specified in the 
City’s certified form except those necessary to be moved or adjusted during Construction and 
those which would disturb the existing street surface. The City will initiate and proceed to 
complete adjusting the remaining Utilities not required to be moved during Construction so as 
not to delay the Contractor in Construction of the Project. 
 

(d) Permitting of Private Utilities. The City shall certify to the Secretary all 
privately owned Utilities occupying public Right of Way required for the Construction of the 
Project are permitted at the location by franchise, ordinance, agreement or permit and the 
instrument shall include a statement as to which party will bear the cost of future adjustments 
or relocations required as a result of street or highway improvements. 
 

(e) Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, the City will indemnify, hold 
harmless, and save the Secretary and the Contractor for damages incurred by the Secretary and 
Contractor because identified Utilities have not been moved or adjusted timely or accurately. 
 

(f) Cost of Relocation. Except as provided by state and federal laws, the expense of 
the removal or adjustment of the Utilities located on public Right of Way shall be borne by the 
owners. The expense of the removal or adjustment of privately owned Utilities located on 
private Right of Way or easements shall be borne by the City except as provided by state and 
federal laws. 

 
14. Hazardous Waste. The City agrees to the following with regard to Hazardous Waste:  
 

(a) Removal of Hazardous Waste. The City shall locate and be responsible for 
remediation and cleanup of any Hazardous Waste discovered within the Project Limits. The 
City shall take appropriate action to cleanup and remediate any identified Hazardous Waste 
prior to Letting. The City will also investigate all Hazardous Waste discovered during 
Construction and shall take appropriate action to cleanup and remediate Hazardous Waste. The 

113



Agreement No. 311-13 
 

 9 

standards to establish cleanup and remediation of Hazardous Waste include, but are not limited 
to, federal programs administered by the Environmental Protection Agency, State of Kansas 
environmental laws and regulations, and City and County standards where the Hazardous 
Waste is located. 
 

(b) Responsibility for Hazardous Waste Remediation Costs. The City shall be 
responsible for all damages, fines or penalties, expenses, fees, claims and costs incurred from 
remediation and cleanup of any Hazardous Waste within the Project Limits which is discovered 
prior to Letting or during Construction.  
 

(c) Hazardous Waste Indemnification. The City shall hold harmless, defend, and 
indemnify the Secretary, the Secretary’s agents and employees from all claims, including 
contract claims and associated expenses, and from all fines, penalties, fees or costs imposed 
under state or federal laws arising out of or related to any act of omission by the City in 
undertaking cleanup or remediation for any Hazardous Waste. 
 

(d) No Waiver. By signing this Agreement the City has not repudiated, abandoned, 
surrendered, waived or forfeited its right to bring any action, seek indemnification or seek any 
other form of recovery or remedy against any third party responsible for any Hazardous Waste 
on any Right of Way within the Project Limits. The City reserves the right to bring any action 
against any third party for any Hazardous Waste on any Right of Way within the Project 
Limits. 

 
15. Inspections. The City is responsible to provide Construction Engineering for the 

Project in accordance with the rules and guidelines developed for the current KDOT approved 
construction engineering program and in accordance with the current edition of the KDOT Standard 
Specifications for State Road and Bridge Construction with Special Provisions and any necessary 
Project Special Provisions. The detailed inspection is to be performed by the City or the Consultant. 
The Secretary does not undertake for the benefit of the City, the Contractor, the Consultant or any third 
party the duty to perform the day-to-day detailed inspection of the Project, or to catch the Contractor’s 
errors, omissions, or deviations from the final Design Plans. The City will require at a minimum all 
City personnel and all Consultant personnel performing Construction Engineering comply with the 
high visibility apparel requirements of the KDOT Safety Manual, Chapter 4, Section 8 Fluorescent 
Vests. The agreement for inspection services between the Secretary and the City and/or the Consultant 
must contain this requirement as a minimum. The City may require additional clothing requirements 
for adequate visibility of personnel. 
 

16. Traffic Control. The City agrees to the following with regard to traffic control for the 
Project:  
 

(a) Temporary Traffic Control. The City shall provide a temporary traffic control 
plan within the Design Plans, which includes the City’s plan for handling multi-modal traffic 
during Construction, including detour routes and road closings, if necessary, and installation of 
alternate or temporary pedestrian accessible paths to pedestrian facilities in the public Right of 
Way within the Project Limits. The City’s temporary traffic control plan must be in conformity 
with the latest version of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), as 
adopted by the Secretary, and be in compliance with the American Disabilities Act of 1990 
(ADA) and its implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 35, and FHWA rules, regulations, 

114



Agreement No. 311-13 
 

 10 

and guidance pertaining to the same. The Secretary or the Secretary’s authorized representative 
may act as the City’s agent with full authority to determine the dates when any road closings 
will commence and terminate. The Secretary or the Secretary’s authorized representative shall 
notify the City of the determinations made pursuant to this section. 
 

(b) Permanent Traffic Control. The location, form and character of informational, 
regulatory and warning signs, of traffic signals and of curb and pavement or other markings 
installed or placed by any public authority, or other agency as authorized by K.S.A. 8-2005, 
must conform to the manual and specifications adopted under K.S.A. 8-2003, and any 
amendments thereto are incorporated by reference and shall be subject to FHWA approval. 
 

(c) Parking Control. The City will control parking of vehicles on the city streets 
throughout the length of the Project covered by this Agreement. On-street parking will be 
permitted until such time as parking interferes with the orderly flow of traffic along the street. 
 

(d) Traffic Movements. The arterial characteristics inherent in the Project require 
uniformity in information and regulations to the end that traffic may be safely and 
expeditiously served. The City shall adopt and enforce rules and regulations governing traffic 
movements as may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Secretary and the FHWA. 

 
17. Access Control. The City will maintain the control of access rights and prohibit the 

construction or use of any entrances or access points along the Project within the City other than those 
shown on the final Design Plans, unless prior approval is obtained from the Secretary.  
 

18. Maintenance. When the Project is completed and final acceptance is issued and until 
expiration of the Useful Life Period, the City will, at its own cost and expense, maintain the Project 
and will make ample provision each year for such maintenance. If notified by the State Transportation 
Engineer of any unsatisfactory maintenance condition, the City will begin the necessary repairs within 
thirty (30) days and will prosecute the work continuously until it is satisfactorily completed. 
 

19. Financial Obligation. The City will be responsible for forty percent (40%) of the total 
actual costs of Construction (which includes the costs of all Construction Contingency Items) and 
Construction Engineering for the Project. Further, the City agrees to be responsible for one hundred 
percent (100%) of the total actual costs of Preliminary Engineering, Right of Way, and Utility 
adjustments for the Project. The City shall also pay for any Non-Participating Costs incurred for the 
Project along with the associated Non-Participating Construction Engineering costs. 

 
20. Cost Estimates. The estimated cost for Construction is $303,450, and for Construction 

Engineering is $53,550, for total estimated costs of $357,000. It is mutually agreed these estimated 
cost figures are to be used for encumbrance purposes and adjustments will be made based on the actual 
Project costs, as approved by the Secretary. 
 

21. Remittance of Estimated Share. The City shall deposit with the Secretary its 
estimated share of the total Project expenses based upon estimated approved contract quantities. The 
City will remit its estimated share by the date indicated on the resolution form Authorization to Award 
Contract, Commitment of City Funds received by the City from the Secretary. The date indicated for 
the City to deposit its estimated share of the total Project expenses is fifty (50) days after the Letting 
date. 

115



Agreement No. 311-13 
 

 11 

 
22. Payment of Final Billing. If any payment is due to the Secretary, such payment shall 

be made within thirty (30) days after receipt of a complete and final billing from the Secretary’s Chief 
of Fiscal Services. 
 

23. Audit. All local governmental units, Non-Profit Organizations, and Indian Tribal 
governments shall comply with Federal-Aid Transportation Act and OMB Circular A-133 “Audits of 
State and Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.” Further, the City agrees to the following 
provisions: 
 

(a) Common Rule. It is the policy of the Secretary to make any final payments to 
the City for services related to the Project in a timely manner. The Single Audit Standards set 
forth in Federal O.M.B. Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments and Non Profit 
Organizations” in 49 C.F.R. Part 18 (Common Rule), require an audit be performed by an 
independent certified public accountant in accordance with these standards. All information 
audited shall comply with 49 C.F.R. Part 18 (Common Rule). 
 

(b) Single Audit. The Secretary may pay any final amount due for the authorized 
work performed based upon the City’s most recent Single Audit Report available and a desk 
review of the claim by the Contract Audit Section of KDOT’s Bureau of Fiscal Services. The 
City, by acceptance of this Agreement, acknowledges the final payment is subject to all single 
audits which cover the time period of the expenses being claimed for reimbursement. The 
Parties agree as the Single Audit Report becomes available for the reimbursement period 
(normally should occur within a period of 1-2 years), the Secretary will review the Single Audit 
Report for items which are declared as not eligible for reimbursement. The City agrees to 
refund payment made by the Secretary to the City for items subsequently found to be not 
eligible for reimbursement by audit. 
 
24. Accounting. Upon request by the Secretary and in order to enable the Secretary to 

report all costs of the Project to the legislature, the City shall provide the Secretary an accounting of all 
actual Non-Participating Costs which are paid directly by the City to any party outside of the Secretary 
and all costs incurred by the City not to be reimbursed by the Secretary for Preliminary Engineering, 
Right of Way, Utility adjustments, Construction, and Construction Engineering work phases, or any 
other major expense associated with the Project.  
 

25. Organizational Registration Requirements.  
 

(a) Dun & Bradstreet. If it has not already done so, the City shall obtain a Data 
Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number, which may be obtained from Dun and 
Bradstreet, Inc. (D & B) by telephone (currently 866-705-5711) or the Internet (currently 
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform). 
 

(b) System for Award Management. The City agrees it shall maintain current 
registrations in the System for Award Management (http://www.sam.gov) at all times during 
which it has active federal awards. 

 
26. Cancellation by City. If the City cancels the Project, it will reimburse the Secretary for 

any costs incurred by the Secretary prior to the cancellation of the Project. The City agrees to 

116



Agreement No. 311-13 
 

 12 

reimburse the Secretary within thirty (30) days after receipt by the City of the Secretary’s statement of 
the cost incurred by the Secretary prior to the cancellation of the Project. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

 
SPECIAL TRANSPORTATION ENHANCEMENT REQUIREMENTS: 

 
1. No 4(f) Status. It is the Parties’ intention that neither this Agreement nor the Project 

create or expand the status of any land involved in this Project as a “significant publicly owned public 
park, recreation area, or wildlife and waterfowl refuge, or any significant historic site,” for purposes of 
49 U.S.C. § 303 and 23 C.F.R. 771.135 (“4(f) status”), except as otherwise modified by this 
Agreement. 

 
(a) Transportation Enhancement. Unless otherwise stated below in this section, the 

Parties agree the major purposes or functions of land involved in the Project are to preserve or 
enhance the scenic, historic, environmental or archeological aspects, or the usefulness for 
intermodal users (including bicyclists, pedestrians, and other non-motorized transportation 
users) of existing or new transportation facilities. It is further agreed any park, recreation or 
refuge purposes or functions are secondary or incidental for purposes of 49 U.S.C. § 303 and 
23 C.F.R. 771.135. Exceptions: NONE. 

 
(b) 4(f) Determinations. The Parties agree for purposes of any future determinations 

of 4(f) status issues as required by 49 U.S.C. § 303 or applicable regulations the Secretary is 
hereby designated as the public official having jurisdiction of such determinations. However, it 
is not the intent of this section to affect the determination of whether a historic or 
archaeological site is on or eligible for inclusion on the National Register of Historic Places. 
 
2. Useful Life.  

 
(a) Useful Life Period. The Parties agree the Useful Life Period of the Project is 10 

years, commencing on the date the Secretary gives notice of final acceptance of the Project. 
 
(b) Insurance. If the Project includes improvements to a building, the City will 

purchase and maintain insurance for property damage to the building continuously during the 
Useful Life Period of the Project in an amount equal to or in excess of the federal funds 
expended on the Project. 

  
(c) Change in Public Use. After the Project is completed and during the entire 

Useful Life Period, any change in the public use of the real property for the Project will require 
written approval from the Secretary with FHWA concurrence. 

  
(d) Recapture of Federal Investment.  

 
(i) During the first 5 years of the Useful Life Period, if the Project is not 
used for the purpose set forth in this Agreement or other use approved by the 
Secretary and the FHWA under subparagraph (c) above, then the City shall pay 
to the Secretary 100% of the federal funds invested in the Project. 
 

117



Agreement No. 311-13 
 

 13 

(ii) Following the first 5 years of the Useful Life Period and until the Useful 
Life Period expires, if the Project is not used for the purpose set forth in this 
Agreement or other use approved by the Secretary and the FHWA under 
subparagraph (c) above, then the City shall pay to the Secretary as recapture of 
federal funds invested in the Project an amount, which will be determined 
according to the following formula:  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(iii) Any payments due to the Secretary pursuant to this subparagraph (d) 
shall be made within ninety (90) days after receipt of billing from the 
Secretary’s Chief of Fiscal Services. 

 
ARTICLE V 

  
 GENERAL PROVISIONS: 
 

1. Incorporation of Design Plans. The final Design Plans for the Project are by this 
reference made a part of this Agreement. 
 

2. Civil Rights Act. The “Special Attachment No. 1,” pertaining to the implementation of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, is attached and made a part of this Agreement. 

 
3. Contractual Provisions. The Provisions found in Contractual Provisions Attachment 

(Form DA-146a, Rev. 06-12), which is attached hereto, are hereby incorporated in this contract and 
made a part hereof. 

 
4. Headings. All headings in this Agreement have been included for convenience of 

reference only and are not be deemed to control or affect the meaning or construction or the provisions 
herein. 

 
5. Termination. If, in the judgment of the Secretary, sufficient funds are not appropriated 

to continue the function performed in this Agreement and for the payment of the charges hereunder, 
the Secretary may terminate this Agreement at the end of its current fiscal year. The Secretary will 
participate in all costs approved by the Secretary incurred prior to the termination of the Agreement. 
 

6. Binding Agreement. This Agreement and all contracts entered into under the 
provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon the Secretary and the City and their successors in 
office. 
 

Total Amount  

of Federal Funds Invested in the Project 

_________________________________ 

 

Entire Useful Life Period 

for the Project 

 

 

x 

 

 

 

Number of Full Years 

Remaining in the Useful 

Life Period at the time of 

unauthorized change in use 

 

 

 

       Recapture 

=    Amount 

    

118



Agreement No. 311-13 
 

 14 

7. No Third Party Beneficiaries. No third party beneficiaries are intended to be created 
by this Agreement and nothing in this Agreement authorizes third parties to maintain a suit for 
damages pursuant to the terms or provisions of this Agreement. 
  
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by their duly 
authorized officers as of the Effective Date. 
 
 
ATTEST:    THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 
 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
CITY CLERK          (Date)           MAYOR 
 
(SEAL) 
 

Michael S. King, Secretary of Transportation 
Kansas Department of Transportation 

 
 
                                 By: _________________________________ 

Jerome T. Younger, P.E.             (Date) 
      Deputy Secretary and 

State Transportation Engineer 

119



Special Attachment No. 1 
Page 1 of 2 

 

(Revised 9/29/11) 

KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

Special Attachment 
To Contracts or Agreements Entered Into 

By the Secretary of Transportation of the State of Kansas 
 
NOTE:  Whenever this Special Attachment conflicts with provisions of the Document to which it is attached, this Special 
Attachment shall govern. 
 

 
THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964, and any amendments thereto, 
REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973, and any amendments thereto, 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990, and any amendments thereto, 
AGE DISCRIMINATION ACT OF 1975, and any amendments thereto, 

EXECUTIVE ORDER 12898, FEDERAL ACTIONS TO ADDRESS ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE IN MINORITY 
POPULATIONS AND LOW INCOME POPULATIONS 1994, and any amendments thereto, 

49 C.F.R. Part 26.1 (DBE Program), and any amendments thereto 
 

NOTIFICATION 
 

The Secretary of Transportation for the State of Kansas, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI and Title VII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252), §504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (87 Stat. 355) and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC 12101), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 USC 6101), the regulations of the U.S. 
Department of Transportation (49 C.F.R., Part 21, 23, and 27), issued pursuant to such Act, Executive Order 12898, Federal 
Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low Income Populations (1994), and the DBE 
Program (49 C.F.R., Part 26.1), hereby notifies all contracting parties that, the contracting parties will affirmatively ensure 
that this contract will be implemented without discrimination on the grounds of race, religion, color, gender, age, disability, 
national origin, or minority populations and low income populations as more specifically set out in the following 
“Nondiscrimination Clauses”. 
 

CLARIFICATION 
 
Where the term “Consultant” appears in the following “Nondiscrimination Clauses”, the term “Consultant” is understood to 
include all parties to contracts or agreements with the Secretary of Transportation of the State of Kansas. 
 

Nondiscrimination Clauses 
 
During the performance of this contract, the Consultant, or the Consultant’s assignees and successors in interest (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Consultant”), agrees as follows: 
 
1) Compliance with regulations:  The Consultant will comply with the regulations of the U.S. Department of 

Transportation relating to nondiscrimination in its federally-assisted programs and codified at Title 49, Code of Federal 
Regulations, Parts 21, 23 and 27, (hereinafter referred to as the “Regulations”).  The Regulations are herein 
incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

 
2) Nondiscrimination:  The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by the Consultant after award and prior to the 

completion of the contract work, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, religion, color, gender, age, disability, 
national origin or minority populations and low income populations in the selection and retention of subcontractors, 
including in the procurements of materials and leases of equipment.  The Consultant will not participate either directly 
or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when 
the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations. 

 
3) Solicitations for Subcontractors, including Procurements of Material and Equipment:  In all solicitations, either 

competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Consultant for work to be performed under a subcontract including 
procurements of materials and equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the Consultant 
of the Consultant’s obligation under this contract and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of 
race, religion, color, gender, age, disability, national origin or minority populations and low income populations. 

 

120



Special Attachment No. 1 
Page 2 of 2 

 

(Revised 9/29/11) 

4) Information and Reports:  The Consultant will provide all information and reports required by the Regulations, or 
orders and instructions issued pursuant thereto, and the Secretary of the Transportation of the State of Kansas will be 
permitted access to the Consultant’s books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and facilities as may be 
determined by the Secretary of Transportation of the State of Kansas to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such 
Regulations, orders and instructions.  Where any information required of a Consultant is in the exclusive possession of 
another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Consultant shall so certify to the Secretary of 
Transportation of the State of Kansas and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

 
5) Employment:  The Consultant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 

religion, color, gender, age, disability, or national origin. 
 
6) Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of the Consultant’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination provisions 

of this contract, the Secretary of Transportation of the State of Kansas shall impose such contract sanctions as the 
Secretary of Transportation of the State of Kansas may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to, 

 
(a) withholding of payments to the Consultant under the contract until the Consultant complies, and/or 

 
(b) cancellation, termination or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part. 

 
7) Disadvantaged Business Obligation 

 
(a) Disadvantaged Business as defined in the Regulations shall have a level playing field to compete for contracts 

financed in whole or in part with federal funds under this contract. 
 
(b) All necessary and reasonable steps shall be taken in accordance with the Regulations to ensure that Disadvantaged 

Businesses have equal opportunity to compete for and perform contracts.  No person(s) shall be discriminated 
against on the basis of race, color, gender, or national origin in the award and performance of federally-assisted 
contracts. 

 
(c) The Consultant, sub recipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or 

sex in the performance of this contract.  The Consultant shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 
26 in the award and administration of Federally-assisted contracts.  Failure by the Consultant to carry out these 
requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other 
remedy, as the recipient deems appropriate. 

 
8) Executive Order 12898 
 

(a) To the extent permitted by existing law, and whenever practical and appropriate, all necessary and reasonable steps 
shall be taken in accordance with Executive Order 12898 to collect, maintain, and analyze information on the race, 
color, national origin and income level of persons affected by programs, policies and activities of the Secretary of 
Transportation of the State of Kansas and use such information in complying with Executive Order 12898. 

 
9) Incorporation of Provisions: The Consultant will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every 

subcontract, including procurements of materials and equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, order, or 
instructions issued pursuant thereto.  The Consultant will take such action with respect to any subcontract or 
procurement as the Secretary of Transportation of the State of Kansas may direct as a means of enforcing such 
provisions including sanctions for noncompliance:  PROVIDED, however, that, in the event a Consultant becomes 
involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the Consultant 
may request the State to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State. 

 
 

121



State of Kansas 
Department of Administration 
DA-146a    (Rev. 06-12) 

CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS ATTACHMENT 
 
Important: This form contains mandatory contract provisions and must be attached to or incorporated in all copies of any contractual agreement.  If it 

is attached to the vendor/contractor's standard contract form, then that form must be altered to contain the following provision: 
 
 "The Provisions found in Contractual Provisions Attachment (Form DA-146a, Rev. 06-12), which is attached hereto, are hereby 

incorporated in this contract and made a part thereof." 
 
 The parties agree that the following provisions are hereby incorporated into the contract to which it is attached and made a part thereof, 

said contract being the _____ day of ____________________, 20_____. 
 
 1. Terms Herein Controlling Provisions:  It is expressly agreed that the terms of each and every provision in this attachment shall prevail and 

control over the terms of any other conflicting provision in any other document relating to and a part of the contract in which this attachment is 
incorporated.  Any terms that conflict or could be interpreted to conflict with this attachment are nullified. 

 
 2. Kansas Law and Venue:  This contract shall be subject to, governed by, and construed according to the laws of the State of Kansas, and 

jurisdiction and venue of any suit in connection with this contract shall reside only in courts located in the State of Kansas. 
 
 3. Termination Due To Lack Of Funding Appropriation:  If, in the judgment of the Director of Accounts and Reports, Department of Administration, 

sufficient funds are not appropriated to continue the function performed in this agreement and for the payment of the charges hereunder, State may 
terminate this agreement at the end of its current fiscal year.  State agrees to give written notice of termination to contractor at least 30 days prior to 
the end of its current fiscal year, and shall give such notice for a greater period prior to the end of such fiscal year as may be provided in this 
contract, except that such notice shall not be required prior to 90 days before the end of such fiscal year.  Contractor shall have the right, at the end 
of such fiscal year, to take possession of any equipment provided State under the contract.  State will pay to the contractor all regular contractual 
payments incurred through the end of such fiscal year, plus contractual charges incidental to the return of any such equipment.  Upon termination 
of the agreement by State, title to any such equipment shall revert to contractor at the end of the State's current fiscal year.  The termination of the 
contract pursuant to this paragraph shall not cause any penalty to be charged to the agency or the contractor. 

 
 4. Disclaimer Of Liability:  No provision of this contract will be given effect that attempts to require the State of Kansas or its agencies to defend, 

hold harmless, or indemnify any contractor or third party for any acts or omissions. The liability of the State of Kansas is defined under the Kansas 
Tort Claims Act (K.S.A. 75-6101 et seq.). 

 
 5. Anti-Discrimination Clause:  The contractor agrees: (a) to comply with the Kansas Act Against Discrimination (K.S.A. 44-1001 et seq.) and the 

Kansas Age Discrimination in Employment Act (K.S.A. 44-1111 et seq.) and the applicable provisions of the Americans With Disabilities Act (42 
U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) (ADA) and to not discriminate against any person because of race, religion, color, sex, disability, national origin or ancestry, 
or age in the admission or access to, or treatment or employment in, its programs or activities; (b) to include in all solicitations or advertisements for 
employees, the phrase "equal opportunity employer"; (c) to comply with the reporting requirements set out at K.S.A. 44-1031 and K.S.A. 44-1116; 
(d) to include those provisions in every subcontract or purchase order so that they are binding upon such subcontractor or vendor; (e) that a failure 
to comply with the reporting requirements of (c) above or if the contractor is found guilty of any violation of such acts by the Kansas Human Rights 
Commission, such violation shall constitute a breach of contract and the contract may be cancelled, terminated or suspended, in whole or in part, 
by the contracting state agency or the Kansas Department of Administration; (f) if it is determined that the contractor has violated applicable 
provisions of ADA, such violation shall constitute a breach of contract and the contract may be cancelled, terminated or suspended, in whole or in 
part, by the contracting state agency or the Kansas Department of Administration. 

 
 Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable state and federal anti-discrimination laws. 
 
 The provisions of this paragraph number 5 (with the exception of those provisions relating to the ADA) are not applicable to a contractor who 

employs fewer than four employees during the term of such contract or whose contracts with the contracting State agency cumulatively total $5,000 
or less during the fiscal year of such agency. 

 
 6. Acceptance Of Contract:  This contract shall not be considered accepted, approved or otherwise effective until the statutorily required approvals 

and certifications have been given. 
 
 7. Arbitration, Damages, Warranties:  Notwithstanding any language to the contrary, no interpretation of this contract shall find that the State or its 

agencies have agreed to binding arbitration, or the payment of damages or penalties. Further, the State of Kansas and its agencies do not agree to 
pay attorney fees, costs, or late payment charges beyond those available under the Kansas Prompt Payment Act (K.S.A. 75-6403), and no 
provision will be given effect that attempts to exclude, modify, disclaim or otherwise attempt to limit any damages available to the State of Kansas 
or its agencies at law, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. 

 
 8. Representative's Authority To Contract:  By signing this contract, the representative of the contractor thereby represents that such person is duly 

authorized by the contractor to execute this contract on behalf of the contractor and that the contractor agrees to be bound by the provisions 
thereof. 

 
 9. Responsibility For Taxes:  The State of Kansas and its agencies shall not be responsible for, nor indemnify a contractor for, any federal, state or 

local taxes which may be imposed or levied upon the subject matter of this contract. 
 
10. Insurance:  The State of Kansas and its agencies shall not be required to purchase any insurance against loss or damage to property or any other 

subject matter relating to this contract, nor shall this contract require them to establish a "self-insurance" fund to protect against any such loss or 
damage.  Subject to the provisions of the Kansas Tort Claims Act (K.S.A. 75-6101 et seq.), the contractor shall bear the risk of any loss or damage 
to any property in which the contractor holds title. 

 
11. Information:  No provision of this contract shall be construed as limiting the Legislative Division of Post Audit from having access to 

information pursuant to K.S.A. 46-1101 et seq. 
 
12. The Eleventh Amendment:  "The Eleventh Amendment is an inherent and incumbent protection with the State of Kansas and need not be 

reserved, but prudence requires the State to reiterate that nothing related to this contract shall be deemed a waiver of the Eleventh Amendment." 
 
13. Campaign Contributions / Lobbying:  Funds provided through a grant award or contract shall not be given or received in exchange for the 

making of a campaign contribution.  No part of the funds provided through this contract shall be used to influence or attempt to influence an officer 
or employee of any State of Kansas agency or a member of the Legislature regarding any pending legislation or the awarding, extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any government contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

122



Agreement No. 291-13 
 

 1 

PROJECT NO. 26 TE-0387-01                       
   TEA-T038(701)  
TRANSPORTATION ENHANCEMENT PROJECT 
PEDESTRIAN - BICYCLE PATH 
CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS  
 

A G R E E M E N T 
 
 This Agreement is between MICHAEL S. KING, Secretary of Transportation, Kansas 
Department of Transportation (KDOT) (the “Secretary”) and the City of Hays, Kansas (“City”), 
collectively, the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS: 
 

A. The Secretary is authorized by the current Federal-Aid Transportation Act to set aside certain 
portion of Federal funding allocated under the current Federal-Aid Transportation Act for 
Transportation Enhancement (TE) projects. 

 
B. The Secretary is empowered to pass through Federal Surface Transportation Program (STP) 

funds for TE projects to eligible state agencies or local governments.  
 

C. The Secretary and the City are empowered by the laws of Kansas to enter into agreements for 
Federal STP funding under the Transportation Enhancement Provision of the current Federal-Aid 
Transportation Act.  
 

D. The City has requested and Secretary has authorized a Transportation Enhancement (TE) 
project, as further described in this Agreement. 
 

E. Under the terms of the current Federal-Aid Transportation Act and the rules and regulations of 
the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), states and local governments are, under certain 
circumstances, entitled to receive assistance in the financing of TE projects, provided however, 
that in order to be eligible for such federal-aid, such work is required by Federal law to be done in 
accordance with the laws of the state. 

   
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and the mutual covenants set forth 
herein, the Parties agree to the following terms and provisions. 
 

ARTICLE I 
 
DEFINITIONS: The following terms as used in this Agreement have the designated meanings: 
 

1. “Agreement” means this written document, including all attachments and exhibits, evidencing 
the legally binding terms and conditions of the agreement between the Parties. 
 

2. “City” means the City of Hays, Kansas, with its place of business at 1002 Vine Street, Hays, 
KS 67601. 
 

123



Agreement No. 291-13 
 

 2 

3. “Construction” means the work done on the Project after Letting, consisting of building, 
altering, repairing, improving or demolishing any structure, building or highway; any drainage, 
dredging, excavation, grading or similar work upon real property. 
 

4. “Construction Contingency Items” mean unforeseeable elements of cost within the defined 
project scope identified after the Construction phase commences. 
 

5. “Construction Engineering” means inspection services, material testing, engineering 
consultation and other reengineering activities required during Construction of the Project. 
 

6. “Consultant” means any engineering firm or other entity retained to perform services for the 
Project. 
 

7. “Contractor” means the entity awarded the Construction contract for the Project and any 
subcontractors working for the Contractor with respect to the Project. 
 

8. “Design Plans” means design plans, specifications, estimates, surveys, and any necessary 
studies or investigations, including, but not limited to, environmental, hydraulic, and geological 
investigations or studies necessary for the Project under this Agreement.  
 

9. “Effective Date” means the date this Agreement is signed by the Secretary or the Secretary’s 
designee. 
 

10. “Encroachment” means any building, structure, farming, vehicle parking, storage or other 
object or thing, including but not limited to signs, posters, billboards, roadside stands, fences, 
or other private installations, not authorized to be located within the Right of Way which may 
or may not require removal during Construction pursuant to the Design Plans. 
 

11. “FHWA” means the Federal Highway Administration, a federal agency of the United States. 
 

12. “Hazardous Waste” includes, but is not limited to, any substance which meets the test of 
hazardous waste characteristics by exhibiting flammability, corrosivity, or reactivity, or which 
is defined by state and federal laws and regulations, and any pollutant or contaminant which 
may present an imminent and substantial danger to the public health or welfare, including but 
not limited to leaking underground storage tanks. Any hazardous waste as defined by state and 
federal laws and regulations and amendments occurring after November 11, 1991, is 
incorporated by reference and includes but is not limited to:  (1) 40 C.F.R. § 261 et seq., 
Hazardous Waste Management System; Identification and Listing of Hazardous Waste; 
Toxicity Characteristics Revisions; Final Rule; (2) 40 C.F.R. § 280 et seq., Underground 
Storage Tanks; Technical Requirements and State Program Approval; Final Rules; (3) 40 
C.F.R. § 300, National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan; Final Rule; 
and (4) K.S.A. 65-3430 et seq., Hazardous Waste. 
 

13. “KDOT” means the Kansas Department of Transportation, an agency of the state of Kansas, 
with its principal place of business located at 700 SW Harrison Street, Topeka, KS, 66603-
3745. 
 

124



Agreement No. 291-13 
 

 3 

14. “Letting” or “Let” means the process of receiving bids prior to any award of a Construction 
contract for any portion of the Project. 
 

15. “Non-Participating Costs” means the costs of any items or services which the Secretary, 
acting on the Secretary’s own behalf and on behalf of the FHWA, reasonably determines are 
not Participating Costs. 
 

16. “Participating Costs” means expenditures for items or services which are an integral part of 
highway, bridge and road construction projects, as reasonably determined by the Secretary. 
 

17. “Parties” means the Secretary of Transportation and KDOT, individually and collectively, 
and the City. 
 

18. “Preliminary Engineering” means pre-construction activities, including but not limited to 
design work, generally performed by a consulting engineering firm that takes place before 
Letting. 
 

19. “Project” means all phases and aspects of the Construction endeavor to be undertaken by the 
City, as and when authorized by the Secretary prior to Letting, being: Construction of shared 
use trail; paving of the Big Creek Trail (Levee Trail) in Hays, Kansas, and is the subject of 
this Agreement. 
 

20. “Project Limits” means that area of Construction for the Project, including all areas between 
and within the Right of Way boundaries as shown on the Design Plans. 
 

21. “Responsible Bidder” means one who makes an offer to construct the Project in response to a 
request for bid with the technical capability, financial capacity, human resources, equipment, 
and performance record required to perform the contractual services. 
 

22. “Right of Way” means the real property and interests therein necessary for Construction of 
the Project, including fee simple title, dedications, permanent and temporary easements, and 
access rights, as shown on the Design Plans. 
 

23. “Secretary” means Michael S. King, in his official capacity as Secretary of Transportation of 
the state of Kansas, and his successors. 
 

24. “Useful Life Period” means a sufficient period of time, as specifically designated in this 
Agreement in Article IV, paragraph 2, to secure the investment of federal funds in the Project 
based on the nature and magnitude of Project costs and generally accepted economic or useful 
life cycle norms for the type of Construction involved in the Project. 
 

25. “Utilities” or “Utility” means all privately, publicly or cooperatively owned lines, facilities 
and systems for producing, transmitting or distributing communications, power, electricity, 
light, heat, gas, oil, crude products, water, steam, waste, and other similar commodities, 
including non-transportation fire and police communication systems which directly or 
indirectly serve the public. 

 
 

125



Agreement No. 291-13 
 

 4 

ARTICLE II 
 
 SECRETARY RESPONSIBILITIES:  
 

1. Technical Information on Right of Way Acquisition. The Secretary will provide 
technical information upon request to help the City acquire Right of Way in accordance with the laws 
and with procedures established by KDOT’s Bureau of Right of Way and the Office of Chief Counsel 
and as required by FHWA directives to obtain participation of federal funds in the cost of the Project. 
 

2. Letting and Administration by KDOT. The Secretary shall Let the contract for the 
Project and shall award the contract to the lowest Responsible Bidder upon concurrence in the award 
by the City. The Secretary further agrees, as agent for the City, to administer the Construction of the 
Project in accordance with the final Design Plans, as required by FHWA, to negotiate with and report 
to the FHWA and administer the payments due the Contractor or the Consultant, including the portion 
of the cost borne by the City. 
  

3. Indemnification by Contractors. The Secretary will require the Contractor to 
indemnify, hold harmless, and save the Secretary and the City from personal injury and property 
damage claims arising out of the act or omission of the Contractor, the Contractor’s agent, 
subcontractors (at any tier), or suppliers (at any tier). If the Secretary or the City defends a third party’s 
claim, the Contractor shall indemnify the Secretary and the City for damages paid to the third party and 
all related expenses either the Secretary or the City or both incur in defending the claim. 
  

4. Payment of Costs. The Secretary agrees to be responsible for sixty percent (60%) of 
the total actual costs of Construction (which includes the costs of all Construction Contingency Items) 
and Construction Engineering for the Project. The Secretary shall not be responsible for the total actual 
costs of Preliminary Engineering, Right of Way, and Utility adjustments for the Project. 
 

5. Final Billing. After receipt of FHWA acknowledgement of final voucher claim, the 
Secretary’s Chief of Fiscal Services will, in a timely manner, prepare a complete and final billing of all 
Project costs for which the City is responsible and shall then transmit the complete and final billing to 
the City.   
 

ARTICLE III 
 

CITY RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

1. Secretary Authorization. The Project shall be undertaken, prosecuted and completed 
for and on behalf of the City by the Secretary acting in all things as its agent, and the City hereby 
constitutes and appoints the Secretary as its agent, and all things hereinafter done by the Secretary in 
connection with the Project are hereby by the City authorized, adopted, ratified and confirmed to the 
same extent and with the same effect as though done directly by the City acting in its own individual 
corporate capacity instead of by its agent. The Secretary is authorized by the City to take such steps as 
are deemed by the Secretary to be necessary or advisable for the purpose of securing the benefits of the 
current Federal-Aid Transportation Act for this Project. 
 

126



Agreement No. 291-13 
 

 5 

2. Legal Authority. The City agrees to adopt all necessary ordinances and/or resolutions 
and to take such administrative or legal steps as may be required to give full effect to the terms of this 
Agreement. 
 

3. Conformity with State and Federal Requirements. The City shall be responsible to 
design the Project or contract to have the Project designed in conformity with the state and federal 
design criteria appropriate for the Project in accordance with the current the American Institute of 
Architects (AIA) standards, the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic 
Properties, the American Society of Landscape Architects guidelines, KDOT’s Design Engineering 
Requirements, the current Local Projects LPA Project Development Manual, Bureau of Local Project’s 
(BLP’s) project memorandums, memos, the KDOT Design Manual, Geotechnical Bridge Foundation 
Investigation Guidelines, Bureau of Design’s road memorandums, the latest version, as adopted by the 
Secretary, of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), the current version of the 
Bureau of Transportation Safety and Technology’s Traffic Engineering Guidelines, and the current 
version of the KDOT Standard Specifications for State Road and Bridge Construction with Special 
Provisions, and any necessary Project Special Provisions, and with the rules and regulations of the 
FHWA pertaining to the Project.  
 

4. Design and Specifications. The City shall be responsible to make or contract to have 
made Design Plans for the Project.  
 

5. Submission of Design Plans to Secretary. Upon their completion, the City shall have 
the Design Plans submitted to the Secretary by a licensed professional engineer, a licensed professional 
architect, and/or licensed landscape architect, as applicable, attesting to the conformity of the Design 
Plans with the items in Article III, paragraph 3 above. The Design Plans must be signed and sealed by 
the licensed professional engineer, licensed professional architect, and/or licensed landscape architect, 
as applicable, responsible for preparation of the Design Plans. In addition, geological investigations or 
studies must be signed and sealed by either a licensed geologist or licensed professional engineer in 
accordance with K.S.A. 74-7042, who is responsible for the preparation of the geological 
investigations or studies.  
 

6. Consultant Contract Language. The City shall include language requiring conformity 
with Article III, paragraph 3 above, in all contracts between the City and any Consultant with whom 
the City has contracted to perform services for the Project. In addition, any contract between the City 
and any Consultant retained by them to perform any of the services described or referenced in this 
paragraph for the Project covered by this Agreement must contain language requiring conformity with 
Article III, paragraph 3 above. In addition, any contract between the City and any Consultant with 
whom the City has contracted to prepare and certify Design Plans for the Project covered by this 
Agreement must also contain the following provisions: 
  

(a) Completion of Design. Language requiring completion of all plan 
development stages no later than the current Project schedule’s due dates 
as issued by KDOT, exclusive of delays beyond the Consultant’s control. 

 
(b) Progress Reports. Language requiring the Consultant to submit to the 

City (and to the Secretary upon request) progress reports at monthly or at 
mutually agreed intervals in conformity with the official Project 
schedule. 

127



Agreement No. 291-13 
 

 6 

 
(c) Third Party Beneficiary. Language making the Secretary a third party 

beneficiary in the agreement between the City and the Consultant. Such 
language shall read: 

                                 
“Because of the Secretary of Transportation of the State of Kansas’ 
(Secretary’s) obligation to administer state funds, federal funds, or both, 
the Secretary shall be a third party beneficiary to this agreement between 
the City and the Consultant. This third party beneficiary status is for the 
limited purpose of seeking payment or reimbursement for damages and 
costs the Secretary or the City or both incurred or will incur because the 
Consultant failed to comply with its contract obligations under this 
Agreement or because of the Consultant’s negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions. Nothing in this provision precludes the City from seeking 
recovery or settling any dispute with the Consultant as long as such 
settlement does not restrict the Secretary’s right to payment or 
reimbursement.”  

 
7. Responsibility for Adequacy of Design. The City shall be responsible for and require 

any Consultant retained by it to be responsible for the adequacy and accuracy of the Design Plans for 
the Project. Any review of these items performed by the Secretary or the Secretary’s representatives is 
not intended to and shall not be construed to be an undertaking of the City’s and its Consultant’s duty 
to provide adequate and accurate Design Plans for the Project. Reviews by the Secretary are not done 
for the benefit of the Consultant, the construction Contractor, the City, any other political subdivision, 
or the traveling public. The Secretary makes no representation, express or implied warranty to any 
person or entity concerning the adequacy or accuracy of the Design Plans for the Project, or any other 
work performed by the Consultant or the City. 

 
8. Design Exception Indemnification. Any design exception to the current version of the 

American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) shall be in 
accordance with 23 C.F.R. § 625. For any design exception, the City agrees to the extent permitted by 
law and subject to the maximum liability provisions of the Kansas Tort Claims Act, to defend, 
indemnify, hold harmless, and save the Secretary and the Secretary’s authorized representatives from 
any and all costs, liabilities, expenses, suits, judgments, damages to persons or property or claims of 
any nature whatsoever arising out of or in connection with the design exceptions for this Agreement by 
the City, the City’s employees, or subcontractors. 
 

9. Authorization of Signatory. The City shall authorize a duly appointed representative 
to sign for the City any or all routine reports as may be required or requested by the Secretary in the 
completion of the Project.  
 

10. Right of Way. The City agrees to the following with regard to Right of Way: 
 

(a) Right of Way Acquisition. The City will, in its own name, as provided by law, 
acquire by purchase, dedication or condemnation all the Right of Way shown on the final 
Design Plans in accordance with the schedule established by KDOT. The City agrees the 
necessary Right of Way shall be acquired in compliance with the Uniform Relocation 
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 as amended by the Surface 

128



Agreement No. 291-13 
 

 7 

Transportation and Uniform Relocation Assistance Act of 1987, and administrative regulations 
contained in 49 C.F.R. Part 24, entitled Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 
Acquisition for Federal and Federally Assisted Programs. The City shall certify to the 
Secretary, on forms provided by the KDOT’s Bureau of Local Projects, such Right of Way has 
been acquired. The City further agrees it will have recorded in the Office of the Register of 
Deeds all Right of Way, deeds, dedications, permanent easements and temporary easements. 
 

(b) Right of Way Documentation. The City will provide all legal descriptions 
required for Right of Way acquisition work. Right of Way descriptions must be signed and 
sealed by a licensed land surveyor responsible for the preparation of the Right of Way 
descriptions. The City further agrees to acquire Right of Way in accordance with the laws and 
with procedures established by KDOT’s Bureau of Right of Way and the Office of Chief 
Counsel and as required by FHWA directives for the participation of federal funds in the cost 
of the Project. The City agrees copies of all documents, including recommendations and 
coordination for appeals, bills, contracts, journal entries, case files, or documentation requested 
by the Office of Chief Counsel will be delivered within the time limits set by the Secretary. 
 

(c) Relocation Assistance. The City will contact the Secretary if there will be any 
displaced person on the Project prior to making the offer for the property. The Parties mutually 
agree the Secretary will provide relocation assistance for eligible persons as defined in the 
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 as amended 
by the Surface Transportation and Uniform Relocation Assistance Act of 1987, and as provided 
in 49 C.F.R. Part 24, entitled Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition for 
Federal and Federally Assisted Programs, and in general accordance with K.S.A. 58-3501 to 
58-3507, inclusive, and Kansas Administrative Regulations 36-16-1 et seq. 
 

(d) Non-Highway Use of Right of Way. Except as otherwise provided, all Right of 
Way provided for the Project shall be used solely for public street purposes. Any disposal of or 
change in the use of Right of Way or in access after Construction of the Project will require 
prior written approval by the Secretary. 
 

(e) Trails and Sidewalks on KDOT Right of Way. Intentionally deleted. 
  

11. Removal of Encroachments. The City shall initiate and proceed with diligence to 
remove or require the removal of all Encroachments either on or above the limits of the Right of Way 
within its jurisdiction as shown on the final Design Plans for this Project. It is further agreed all such 
Encroachments will be removed before the Project is advertised for Letting; except the Secretary may 
permit the Project to be advertised for Letting before such Encroachment is fully removed if the 
Secretary determines the City and the owner of the Encroachment have fully provided for the physical 
removal of the Encroachment and such removal will be accomplished within a time sufficiently short 
to present no hindrance or delay to the Construction of the Project.   
 

12. Future Encroachments. Except as provided by state and federal laws, the City agrees 
it will not in the future permit Encroachments upon the Right of Way of the Project, and specifically 
will require any gas and fuel dispensing pumps erected, moved, or installed along the Project be placed 
no less than the distance permitted by the National Fire Code from the Right of Way line.   
 

13. Utilities. The City agrees to the following with regard to Utilities: 

129



Agreement No. 291-13 
 

 8 

 
(a) Utility Relocation. The City will move or adjust, or cause to be moved or 

adjusted, and will be responsible for such removal or adjustment of all existing Utilities 
necessary to construct the Project in accordance with the final Design Plans. New or existing 
Utilities to be installed, moved, or adjusted will be located or relocated in accordance with the 
current version of the KDOT Utility Accommodation Policy (UAP), as amended or 
supplemented. 
 

(b) Status of Utilities. The City shall furnish the Secretary a list identifying existing 
and known Utilities affected, together with locations and proposed adjustments of the same and 
designate a representative to be responsible for coordinating the necessary removal or 
adjustment of Utilities. 
 

(c) Time of Relocation. The City will expeditiously take such steps as are necessary 
to facilitate the early adjustment of any Utilities, initiate the removal or adjustment of the 
Utilities, and proceed with reasonable diligence to prosecute this work to completion. The City 
shall certify to the Secretary on forms supplied by the Secretary that all Utilities required to be 
moved prior to Construction have either been moved or a date provided by the City as to when, 
prior to the scheduled Letting and Construction, Utilities will be moved. The City shall move or 
adjust or cause to be moved or adjusted all necessary Utilities within the time specified in the 
City’s certified form except those necessary to be moved or adjusted during Construction and 
those which would disturb the existing street surface. The City will initiate and proceed to 
complete adjusting the remaining Utilities not required to be moved during Construction so as 
not to delay the Contractor in Construction of the Project. 
 

(d) Permitting of Private Utilities. The City shall certify to the Secretary all 
privately owned Utilities occupying public Right of Way required for the Construction of the 
Project are permitted at the location by franchise, ordinance, agreement or permit and the 
instrument shall include a statement as to which party will bear the cost of future adjustments 
or relocations required as a result of street or highway improvements. 
 

(e) Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, the City will indemnify, hold 
harmless, and save the Secretary and the Contractor for damages incurred by the Secretary and 
Contractor because identified Utilities have not been moved or adjusted timely or accurately. 
 

(f) Cost of Relocation. Except as provided by state and federal laws, the expense of 
the removal or adjustment of the Utilities located on public Right of Way shall be borne by the 
owners. The expense of the removal or adjustment of privately owned Utilities located on 
private Right of Way or easements shall be borne by the City except as provided by state and 
federal laws. 

 
14. Hazardous Waste. The City agrees to the following with regard to Hazardous Waste:  
 

(a) Removal of Hazardous Waste. The City shall locate and be responsible for 
remediation and cleanup of any Hazardous Waste discovered within the Project Limits. The 
City shall take appropriate action to cleanup and remediate any identified Hazardous Waste 
prior to Letting. The City will also investigate all Hazardous Waste discovered during 
Construction and shall take appropriate action to cleanup and remediate Hazardous Waste. The 

130



Agreement No. 291-13 
 

 9 

standards to establish cleanup and remediation of Hazardous Waste include, but are not limited 
to, federal programs administered by the Environmental Protection Agency, State of Kansas 
environmental laws and regulations, and City and County standards where the Hazardous 
Waste is located. 
 

(b) Responsibility for Hazardous Waste Remediation Costs. The City shall be 
responsible for all damages, fines or penalties, expenses, fees, claims and costs incurred from 
remediation and cleanup of any Hazardous Waste within the Project Limits which is discovered 
prior to Letting or during Construction.  
 

(c) Hazardous Waste Indemnification. The City shall hold harmless, defend, and 
indemnify the Secretary, the Secretary’s agents and employees from all claims, including 
contract claims and associated expenses, and from all fines, penalties, fees or costs imposed 
under state or federal laws arising out of or related to any act of omission by the City in 
undertaking cleanup or remediation for any Hazardous Waste. 
 

(d) No Waiver. By signing this Agreement the City has not repudiated, abandoned, 
surrendered, waived or forfeited its right to bring any action, seek indemnification or seek any 
other form of recovery or remedy against any third party responsible for any Hazardous Waste 
on any Right of Way within the Project Limits. The City reserves the right to bring any action 
against any third party for any Hazardous Waste on any Right of Way within the Project 
Limits. 

 
15. Inspections. The City is responsible to provide Construction Engineering for the 

Project in accordance with the rules and guidelines developed for the current KDOT approved 
construction engineering program and in accordance with the current edition of the KDOT Standard 
Specifications for State Road and Bridge Construction with Special Provisions and any necessary 
Project Special Provisions. The detailed inspection is to be performed by the City or the Consultant. 
The Secretary does not undertake for the benefit of the City, the Contractor, the Consultant or any third 
party the duty to perform the day-to-day detailed inspection of the Project, or to catch the Contractor’s 
errors, omissions, or deviations from the final Design Plans. The City will require at a minimum all 
City personnel and all Consultant personnel performing Construction Engineering comply with the 
high visibility apparel requirements of the KDOT Safety Manual, Chapter 4, Section 8 Fluorescent 
Vests. The agreement for inspection services between the Secretary and the City and/or the Consultant 
must contain this requirement as a minimum. The City may require additional clothing requirements 
for adequate visibility of personnel. 
 

16. Traffic Control. The City agrees to the following with regard to traffic control for the 
Project:  
 

(a) Temporary Traffic Control. The City shall provide a temporary traffic control 
plan within the Design Plans, which includes the City’s plan for handling multi-modal traffic 
during Construction, including detour routes and road closings, if necessary, and installation of 
alternate or temporary pedestrian accessible paths to pedestrian facilities in the public Right of 
Way within the Project Limits. The City’s temporary traffic control plan must be in conformity 
with the latest version of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), as 
adopted by the Secretary, and be in compliance with the American Disabilities Act of 1990 
(ADA) and its implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 35, and FHWA rules, regulations, 

131



Agreement No. 291-13 
 

 10 

and guidance pertaining to the same. The Secretary or the Secretary’s authorized representative 
may act as the City’s agent with full authority to determine the dates when any road closings 
will commence and terminate. The Secretary or the Secretary’s authorized representative shall 
notify the City of the determinations made pursuant to this section. 
 

(b) Permanent Traffic Control. The location, form and character of informational, 
regulatory and warning signs, of traffic signals and of curb and pavement or other markings 
installed or placed by any public authority, or other agency as authorized by K.S.A. 8-2005, 
must conform to the manual and specifications adopted under K.S.A. 8-2003, and any 
amendments thereto are incorporated by reference and shall be subject to FHWA approval. 
 

(c) Parking Control. The City will control parking of vehicles on the city streets 
throughout the length of the Project covered by this Agreement. On-street parking will be 
permitted until such time as parking interferes with the orderly flow of traffic along the street. 
 

(d) Traffic Movements. The arterial characteristics inherent in the Project require 
uniformity in information and regulations to the end that traffic may be safely and 
expeditiously served. The City shall adopt and enforce rules and regulations governing traffic 
movements as may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Secretary and the FHWA. 

 
17. Access Control. The City will maintain the control of access rights and prohibit the 

construction or use of any entrances or access points along the Project within the City other than those 
shown on the final Design Plans, unless prior approval is obtained from the Secretary.  
 

18. Maintenance. When the Project is completed and final acceptance is issued and until 
expiration of the Useful Life Period, the City will, at its own cost and expense, maintain the Project 
and will make ample provision each year for such maintenance. If notified by the State Transportation 
Engineer of any unsatisfactory maintenance condition, the City will begin the necessary repairs within 
thirty (30) days and will prosecute the work continuously until it is satisfactorily completed. 
 

19. Financial Obligation. The City will be responsible for forty percent (40%) of the total 
actual costs of Construction (which includes the costs of all Construction Contingency Items) and 
Construction Engineering for the Project. Further, the City agrees to be responsible for one hundred 
percent (100%) of the total actual costs of Preliminary Engineering, Right of Way, and Utility 
adjustments for the Project. The City shall also pay for any Non-Participating Costs incurred for the 
Project along with the associated Non-Participating Construction Engineering costs. 
 

20. Cost Estimates. The estimated cost for Construction is $544,348, and for Construction 
Engineering is $81,652, for total estimated costs of $626,000. It is mutually agreed these estimated 
cost figures are to be used for encumbrance purposes and adjustments will be made based on the actual 
Project costs, as approved by the Secretary. 

 
21. Remittance of Estimated Share. The City shall deposit with the Secretary its 

estimated share of the total Project expenses based upon estimated approved contract quantities. The 
City will remit its estimated share by the date indicated on the resolution form Authorization to Award 
Contract, Commitment of City Funds received by the City from the Secretary. The date indicated for 
the City to deposit its estimated share of the total Project expenses is fifty (50) days after the Letting 
date. 

132



Agreement No. 291-13 
 

 11 

 
22. Payment of Final Billing. If any payment is due to the Secretary, such payment shall 

be made within thirty (30) days after receipt of a complete and final billing from the Secretary’s Chief 
of Fiscal Services. 
 

23. Audit. All local governmental units, Non-Profit Organizations, and Indian Tribal 
governments shall comply with Federal-Aid Transportation Act and OMB Circular A-133 “Audits of 
State and Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.” Further, the City agrees to the following 
provisions: 
 

(a) Common Rule. It is the policy of the Secretary to make any final payments to 
the City for services related to the Project in a timely manner. The Single Audit Standards set 
forth in Federal O.M.B. Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments and Non Profit 
Organizations” in 49 C.F.R. Part 18 (Common Rule), require an audit be performed by an 
independent certified public accountant in accordance with these standards. All information 
audited shall comply with 49 C.F.R. Part 18 (Common Rule). 
 

(b) Single Audit. The Secretary may pay any final amount due for the authorized 
work performed based upon the City’s most recent Single Audit Report available and a desk 
review of the claim by the Contract Audit Section of KDOT’s Bureau of Fiscal Services. The 
City, by acceptance of this Agreement, acknowledges the final payment is subject to all single 
audits which cover the time period of the expenses being claimed for reimbursement. The 
Parties agree as the Single Audit Report becomes available for the reimbursement period 
(normally should occur within a period of 1-2 years), the Secretary will review the Single Audit 
Report for items which are declared as not eligible for reimbursement. The City agrees to 
refund payment made by the Secretary to the City for items subsequently found to be not 
eligible for reimbursement by audit. 
 
24. Accounting. Upon request by the Secretary and in order to enable the Secretary to 

report all costs of the Project to the legislature, the City shall provide the Secretary an accounting of all 
actual Non-Participating Costs which are paid directly by the City to any party outside of the Secretary 
and all costs incurred by the City not to be reimbursed by the Secretary for Preliminary Engineering, 
Right of Way, Utility adjustments, Construction, and Construction Engineering work phases, or any 
other major expense associated with the Project.  
 

25. Organizational Registration Requirements.  
 

(a) Dun & Bradstreet. If it has not already done so, the City shall obtain a Data 
Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number, which may be obtained from Dun and 
Bradstreet, Inc. (D & B) by telephone (currently 866-705-5711) or the Internet (currently 
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform). 
 

(b) System for Award Management. The City agrees it shall maintain current 
registrations in the System for Award Management (http://www.sam.gov) at all times during 
which it has active federal awards. 

 
26. Cancellation by City. If the City cancels the Project, it will reimburse the Secretary for 

any costs incurred by the Secretary prior to the cancellation of the Project. The City agrees to 

133



Agreement No. 291-13 
 

 12 

reimburse the Secretary within thirty (30) days after receipt by the City of the Secretary’s statement of 
the cost incurred by the Secretary prior to the cancellation of the Project. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

 
SPECIAL TRANSPORTATION ENHANCEMENT REQUIREMENTS: 

 
1. No 4(f) Status. It is the Parties’ intention that neither this Agreement nor the Project 

create or expand the status of any land involved in this Project as a “significant publicly owned public 
park, recreation area, or wildlife and waterfowl refuge, or any significant historic site,” for purposes of 
49 U.S.C. § 303 and 23 C.F.R. 771.135 (“4(f) status”), except as otherwise modified by this 
Agreement. 

 
(a) Transportation Enhancement. Unless otherwise stated below in this section, the 

Parties agree the major purposes or functions of land involved in the Project are to preserve or 
enhance the scenic, historic, environmental or archeological aspects, or the usefulness for 
intermodal users (including bicyclists, pedestrians, and other non-motorized transportation 
users) of existing or new transportation facilities. It is further agreed any park, recreation or 
refuge purposes or functions are secondary or incidental for purposes of 49 U.S.C. § 303 and 
23 C.F.R. 771.135. Exceptions: NONE. 

 
(b) 4(f) Determinations. The Parties agree for purposes of any future determinations 

of 4(f) status issues as required by 49 U.S.C. § 303 or applicable regulations the Secretary is 
hereby designated as the public official having jurisdiction of such determinations. However, it 
is not the intent of this section to affect the determination of whether a historic or 
archaeological site is on or eligible for inclusion on the National Register of Historic Places. 
 
2. Useful Life.  

 
(a) Useful Life Period. The Parties agree the Useful Life Period of the Project is 10 

years, commencing on the date the Secretary gives notice of final acceptance of the Project. 
 
(b) Insurance. If the Project includes improvements to a building, the City will 

purchase and maintain insurance for property damage to the building continuously during the 
Useful Life Period of the Project in an amount equal to or in excess of the federal funds 
expended on the Project. 

  
(c) Change in Public Use. After the Project is completed and during the entire 

Useful Life Period, any change in the public use of the real property for the Project will require 
written approval from the Secretary with FHWA concurrence. 

  
(d) Recapture of Federal Investment.  

 
(i) During the first 5 years of the Useful Life Period, if the Project is not 
used for the purpose set forth in this Agreement or other use approved by the 
Secretary and the FHWA under subparagraph (c) above, then the City shall pay 
to the Secretary 100% of the federal funds invested in the Project. 
 

134



Agreement No. 291-13 
 

 13 

(ii) Following the first 5 years of the Useful Life Period and until the Useful 
Life Period expires, if the Project is not used for the purpose set forth in this 
Agreement or other use approved by the Secretary and the FHWA under 
subparagraph (c) above, then the City shall pay to the Secretary as recapture of 
federal funds invested in the Project an amount, which will be determined 
according to the following formula:  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(iii) Any payments due to the Secretary pursuant to this subparagraph (d) 
shall be made within ninety (90) days after receipt of billing from the 
Secretary’s Chief of Fiscal Services. 

 
ARTICLE V 

  
 GENERAL PROVISIONS: 
 

1. Incorporation of Design Plans. The final Design Plans for the Project are by this 
reference made a part of this Agreement. 
 

2. Civil Rights Act. The “Special Attachment No. 1,” pertaining to the implementation of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, is attached and made a part of this Agreement. 

 
3. Contractual Provisions. The Provisions found in Contractual Provisions Attachment 

(Form DA-146a, Rev. 06-12), which is attached hereto, are hereby incorporated in this contract and 
made a part hereof. 

 
4. Headings. All headings in this Agreement have been included for convenience of 

reference only and are not be deemed to control or affect the meaning or construction or the provisions 
herein. 

 
5. Termination. If, in the judgment of the Secretary, sufficient funds are not appropriated 

to continue the function performed in this Agreement and for the payment of the charges hereunder, 
the Secretary may terminate this Agreement at the end of its current fiscal year. The Secretary will 
participate in all costs approved by the Secretary incurred prior to the termination of the Agreement. 
 

6. Binding Agreement. This Agreement and all contracts entered into under the 
provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon the Secretary and the City and their successors in 
office. 
 

Total Amount  

of Federal Funds Invested in the Project 

_________________________________ 

 

Entire Useful Life Period 

for the Project 

 

 

x 

 

 

 

Number of Full Years 

Remaining in the Useful 

Life Period at the time of 

unauthorized change in use 

 

 

 

       Recapture 

=    Amount 

    

135



Agreement No. 291-13 
 

 14 

7. No Third Party Beneficiaries. No third party beneficiaries are intended to be created 
by this Agreement and nothing in this Agreement authorizes third parties to maintain a suit for 
damages pursuant to the terms or provisions of this Agreement. 
  
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by their duly 
authorized officers as of the Effective Date. 
 
 
ATTEST:    THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 
 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
CITY CLERK          (Date)           MAYOR 
 
(SEAL) 
 

Michael S. King, Secretary of Transportation 
Kansas Department of Transportation 

 
 
                                 By: _________________________________ 

Jerome T. Younger, P.E.             (Date) 
      Deputy Secretary and 

State Transportation Engineer 

136



Special Attachment No. 1 
Page 1 of 2 

 

(Revised 9/29/11) 

KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

Special Attachment 
To Contracts or Agreements Entered Into 

By the Secretary of Transportation of the State of Kansas 
 
NOTE:  Whenever this Special Attachment conflicts with provisions of the Document to which it is attached, this Special 
Attachment shall govern. 
 

 
THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964, and any amendments thereto, 
REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973, and any amendments thereto, 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990, and any amendments thereto, 
AGE DISCRIMINATION ACT OF 1975, and any amendments thereto, 

EXECUTIVE ORDER 12898, FEDERAL ACTIONS TO ADDRESS ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE IN MINORITY 
POPULATIONS AND LOW INCOME POPULATIONS 1994, and any amendments thereto, 

49 C.F.R. Part 26.1 (DBE Program), and any amendments thereto 
 

NOTIFICATION 
 

The Secretary of Transportation for the State of Kansas, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI and Title VII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252), §504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (87 Stat. 355) and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC 12101), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 USC 6101), the regulations of the U.S. 
Department of Transportation (49 C.F.R., Part 21, 23, and 27), issued pursuant to such Act, Executive Order 12898, Federal 
Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low Income Populations (1994), and the DBE 
Program (49 C.F.R., Part 26.1), hereby notifies all contracting parties that, the contracting parties will affirmatively ensure 
that this contract will be implemented without discrimination on the grounds of race, religion, color, gender, age, disability, 
national origin, or minority populations and low income populations as more specifically set out in the following 
“Nondiscrimination Clauses”. 
 

CLARIFICATION 
 
Where the term “Consultant” appears in the following “Nondiscrimination Clauses”, the term “Consultant” is understood to 
include all parties to contracts or agreements with the Secretary of Transportation of the State of Kansas. 
 

Nondiscrimination Clauses 
 
During the performance of this contract, the Consultant, or the Consultant’s assignees and successors in interest (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Consultant”), agrees as follows: 
 
1) Compliance with regulations:  The Consultant will comply with the regulations of the U.S. Department of 

Transportation relating to nondiscrimination in its federally-assisted programs and codified at Title 49, Code of Federal 
Regulations, Parts 21, 23 and 27, (hereinafter referred to as the “Regulations”).  The Regulations are herein 
incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

 
2) Nondiscrimination:  The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by the Consultant after award and prior to the 

completion of the contract work, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, religion, color, gender, age, disability, 
national origin or minority populations and low income populations in the selection and retention of subcontractors, 
including in the procurements of materials and leases of equipment.  The Consultant will not participate either directly 
or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when 
the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations. 

 
3) Solicitations for Subcontractors, including Procurements of Material and Equipment:  In all solicitations, either 

competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Consultant for work to be performed under a subcontract including 
procurements of materials and equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the Consultant 
of the Consultant’s obligation under this contract and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of 
race, religion, color, gender, age, disability, national origin or minority populations and low income populations. 

 

137



Special Attachment No. 1 
Page 2 of 2 

 

(Revised 9/29/11) 

4) Information and Reports:  The Consultant will provide all information and reports required by the Regulations, or 
orders and instructions issued pursuant thereto, and the Secretary of the Transportation of the State of Kansas will be 
permitted access to the Consultant’s books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and facilities as may be 
determined by the Secretary of Transportation of the State of Kansas to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such 
Regulations, orders and instructions.  Where any information required of a Consultant is in the exclusive possession of 
another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Consultant shall so certify to the Secretary of 
Transportation of the State of Kansas and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

 
5) Employment:  The Consultant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 

religion, color, gender, age, disability, or national origin. 
 
6) Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of the Consultant’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination provisions 

of this contract, the Secretary of Transportation of the State of Kansas shall impose such contract sanctions as the 
Secretary of Transportation of the State of Kansas may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to, 

 
(a) withholding of payments to the Consultant under the contract until the Consultant complies, and/or 

 
(b) cancellation, termination or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part. 

 
7) Disadvantaged Business Obligation 

 
(a) Disadvantaged Business as defined in the Regulations shall have a level playing field to compete for contracts 

financed in whole or in part with federal funds under this contract. 
 
(b) All necessary and reasonable steps shall be taken in accordance with the Regulations to ensure that Disadvantaged 

Businesses have equal opportunity to compete for and perform contracts.  No person(s) shall be discriminated 
against on the basis of race, color, gender, or national origin in the award and performance of federally-assisted 
contracts. 

 
(c) The Consultant, sub recipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or 

sex in the performance of this contract.  The Consultant shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 
26 in the award and administration of Federally-assisted contracts.  Failure by the Consultant to carry out these 
requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other 
remedy, as the recipient deems appropriate. 

 
8) Executive Order 12898 
 

(a) To the extent permitted by existing law, and whenever practical and appropriate, all necessary and reasonable steps 
shall be taken in accordance with Executive Order 12898 to collect, maintain, and analyze information on the race, 
color, national origin and income level of persons affected by programs, policies and activities of the Secretary of 
Transportation of the State of Kansas and use such information in complying with Executive Order 12898. 

 
9) Incorporation of Provisions: The Consultant will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every 

subcontract, including procurements of materials and equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, order, or 
instructions issued pursuant thereto.  The Consultant will take such action with respect to any subcontract or 
procurement as the Secretary of Transportation of the State of Kansas may direct as a means of enforcing such 
provisions including sanctions for noncompliance:  PROVIDED, however, that, in the event a Consultant becomes 
involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the Consultant 
may request the State to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State. 

 
 

138



State of Kansas 
Department of Administration 
DA-146a    (Rev. 06-12) 

CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS ATTACHMENT 
 
Important: This form contains mandatory contract provisions and must be attached to or incorporated in all copies of any contractual agreement.  If it 

is attached to the vendor/contractor's standard contract form, then that form must be altered to contain the following provision: 
 
 "The Provisions found in Contractual Provisions Attachment (Form DA-146a, Rev. 06-12), which is attached hereto, are hereby 

incorporated in this contract and made a part thereof." 
 
 The parties agree that the following provisions are hereby incorporated into the contract to which it is attached and made a part thereof, 

said contract being the _____ day of ____________________, 20_____. 
 
 1. Terms Herein Controlling Provisions:  It is expressly agreed that the terms of each and every provision in this attachment shall prevail and 

control over the terms of any other conflicting provision in any other document relating to and a part of the contract in which this attachment is 
incorporated.  Any terms that conflict or could be interpreted to conflict with this attachment are nullified. 

 
 2. Kansas Law and Venue:  This contract shall be subject to, governed by, and construed according to the laws of the State of Kansas, and 

jurisdiction and venue of any suit in connection with this contract shall reside only in courts located in the State of Kansas. 
 
 3. Termination Due To Lack Of Funding Appropriation:  If, in the judgment of the Director of Accounts and Reports, Department of Administration, 

sufficient funds are not appropriated to continue the function performed in this agreement and for the payment of the charges hereunder, State may 
terminate this agreement at the end of its current fiscal year.  State agrees to give written notice of termination to contractor at least 30 days prior to 
the end of its current fiscal year, and shall give such notice for a greater period prior to the end of such fiscal year as may be provided in this 
contract, except that such notice shall not be required prior to 90 days before the end of such fiscal year.  Contractor shall have the right, at the end 
of such fiscal year, to take possession of any equipment provided State under the contract.  State will pay to the contractor all regular contractual 
payments incurred through the end of such fiscal year, plus contractual charges incidental to the return of any such equipment.  Upon termination 
of the agreement by State, title to any such equipment shall revert to contractor at the end of the State's current fiscal year.  The termination of the 
contract pursuant to this paragraph shall not cause any penalty to be charged to the agency or the contractor. 

 
 4. Disclaimer Of Liability:  No provision of this contract will be given effect that attempts to require the State of Kansas or its agencies to defend, 

hold harmless, or indemnify any contractor or third party for any acts or omissions. The liability of the State of Kansas is defined under the Kansas 
Tort Claims Act (K.S.A. 75-6101 et seq.). 

 
 5. Anti-Discrimination Clause:  The contractor agrees: (a) to comply with the Kansas Act Against Discrimination (K.S.A. 44-1001 et seq.) and the 

Kansas Age Discrimination in Employment Act (K.S.A. 44-1111 et seq.) and the applicable provisions of the Americans With Disabilities Act (42 
U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) (ADA) and to not discriminate against any person because of race, religion, color, sex, disability, national origin or ancestry, 
or age in the admission or access to, or treatment or employment in, its programs or activities; (b) to include in all solicitations or advertisements for 
employees, the phrase "equal opportunity employer"; (c) to comply with the reporting requirements set out at K.S.A. 44-1031 and K.S.A. 44-1116; 
(d) to include those provisions in every subcontract or purchase order so that they are binding upon such subcontractor or vendor; (e) that a failure 
to comply with the reporting requirements of (c) above or if the contractor is found guilty of any violation of such acts by the Kansas Human Rights 
Commission, such violation shall constitute a breach of contract and the contract may be cancelled, terminated or suspended, in whole or in part, 
by the contracting state agency or the Kansas Department of Administration; (f) if it is determined that the contractor has violated applicable 
provisions of ADA, such violation shall constitute a breach of contract and the contract may be cancelled, terminated or suspended, in whole or in 
part, by the contracting state agency or the Kansas Department of Administration. 

 
 Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable state and federal anti-discrimination laws. 
 
 The provisions of this paragraph number 5 (with the exception of those provisions relating to the ADA) are not applicable to a contractor who 

employs fewer than four employees during the term of such contract or whose contracts with the contracting State agency cumulatively total $5,000 
or less during the fiscal year of such agency. 

 
 6. Acceptance Of Contract:  This contract shall not be considered accepted, approved or otherwise effective until the statutorily required approvals 

and certifications have been given. 
 
 7. Arbitration, Damages, Warranties:  Notwithstanding any language to the contrary, no interpretation of this contract shall find that the State or its 

agencies have agreed to binding arbitration, or the payment of damages or penalties. Further, the State of Kansas and its agencies do not agree to 
pay attorney fees, costs, or late payment charges beyond those available under the Kansas Prompt Payment Act (K.S.A. 75-6403), and no 
provision will be given effect that attempts to exclude, modify, disclaim or otherwise attempt to limit any damages available to the State of Kansas 
or its agencies at law, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. 

 
 8. Representative's Authority To Contract:  By signing this contract, the representative of the contractor thereby represents that such person is duly 

authorized by the contractor to execute this contract on behalf of the contractor and that the contractor agrees to be bound by the provisions 
thereof. 

 
 9. Responsibility For Taxes:  The State of Kansas and its agencies shall not be responsible for, nor indemnify a contractor for, any federal, state or 

local taxes which may be imposed or levied upon the subject matter of this contract. 
 
10. Insurance:  The State of Kansas and its agencies shall not be required to purchase any insurance against loss or damage to property or any other 

subject matter relating to this contract, nor shall this contract require them to establish a "self-insurance" fund to protect against any such loss or 
damage.  Subject to the provisions of the Kansas Tort Claims Act (K.S.A. 75-6101 et seq.), the contractor shall bear the risk of any loss or damage 
to any property in which the contractor holds title. 

 
11. Information:  No provision of this contract shall be construed as limiting the Legislative Division of Post Audit from having access to 

information pursuant to K.S.A. 46-1101 et seq. 
 
12. The Eleventh Amendment:  "The Eleventh Amendment is an inherent and incumbent protection with the State of Kansas and need not be 

reserved, but prudence requires the State to reiterate that nothing related to this contract shall be deemed a waiver of the Eleventh Amendment." 
 
13. Campaign Contributions / Lobbying:  Funds provided through a grant award or contract shall not be given or received in exchange for the 

making of a campaign contribution.  No part of the funds provided through this contract shall be used to influence or attempt to influence an officer 
or employee of any State of Kansas agency or a member of the Legislature regarding any pending legislation or the awarding, extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any government contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

139



 

140



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 8  MEETING DATE: 4-24-14 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Taxi License 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Consider approval of a Taxi License for Yadday Enterprises, LLC dba Convenience Cab. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
Marlin Daubert and Skyler Yost have applied for a Taxicab License under the name of 
Yadday Enterprises, LLC dba Convenience Cab.  They currently do not have vehicles 
purchased or drivers hired and are waiting for approval to move ahead.  They anticipate 
purchasing a minimum of two minivans which will carry six to seven passengers. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approval of Taxi Application 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
Application 
Municipal Code 
Police Chief Recommendation  
 
 

 
 
 

141



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   Brenda Kitchen, City Clerk  
 
Work Session:   April 17, 2014  
 
Subject:  Taxi License  
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Brenda Kitchen, City Clerk 

Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 
 
 

Summary 
Yadday Enterprises, LLC dba Convenience Cab has applied for a Taxicab License. 
 

Background  
Marlin Daubert and Skyler Yost have applied for a Taxicab License under the name of 
Yadday Enterprises, LLC dba Convenience Cab.  They currently do not have vehicles 
purchased or drivers hired and are waiting for approval to move ahead.  They anticipate 
purchasing a minimum of two minivans which will carry six to seven passengers.   
 

Discussion 
The Police Department has done a background check on the owners of Yadday 
Enterprises, LLC and there is nothing evident in the background checks that prohibit 
them from becoming licensed as a taxi service in the City of Hays. 
 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 

 

Financial Consideration 
There are no financial considerations for the City of Hays 
 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options: 

 Approve the taxicab license 
 Do not approve the taxicab license 

 

Recommendation 
City staff recommends approval of the taxicab license. 
 
 
 

142



Action Requested 
Approve the Taxi License Application from Yadday Enterprises, LLC dba Convenience 
Cab. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Taxicab Operator’s Application 
Taxicab Ordinance 
Police Chief’s Recommendation 

143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



 

152



  

 

COMMISSION INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM 
TO: City Commission 

FROM: Toby Dougherty, CPM 
 City Manager  

 

DATE: April 16, 2014 

 
 

Attached are the following items: 
  

1. The minutes of the February 18, 2014 meeting of the Ellis County Wellhead Protection 
Committee. 
 

2. The minutes of the March 3, 2014 meeting of the Airport Advisory Committee. 
 

3. The minutes of the March 3, 2014 meeting of the Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course 
Advisory Board. 
 

4. The minutes of the March 11, 2014 meeting of the Hays Public Library Board. 
 

5. The minutes of the March 13, 2014 meeting of the Hays Sister Cities Advisory Board. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this information, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
aw 

City of Hays 
Office of the City Manager 

153



 

154



Minutes of the Ellis County Wellhead Protection Committee Meeting 
February 18, 2014 

 
Members Present:    James Leiker, Allen Roth, Jude Scheck, Hendratta Ali, Ken Richmeier 
Non-Voting members: Karen Purvis- Recording Secretary.  
Guests- Jean Gleichsner  
 
James Leiker, Acting Chairman, called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 
 
Minutes- It was moved by Jude and seconded by Hendratti that we accept the minutes as 
written.   Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Treasurer’s Report-  A check was written for the John Heinrichs Scholorship for $200.  The 
current balance of the account is $484.82. 
   
Speaker- There was no speaker.  James will talk to Jason and see if he can come to the March 
meeting to speak to the committee.   
Old Business- 

a)  Dr. Heinrichs memorial service and report of money sent to the scholarship fund. -  
Karen, Hendratta, and Jude attended the memorial service and reported back to the 
committee.  A total amount from individuals of the committee totaled $350, plus the 
$200 from the WHP treasury so a total of $550.00 was donated to the scholarship 
fund from the committee. 

b) Other-  Hendratta stated that she was given some boxes of WHP information that 
John had.  We will go through it and it will probably go to the Environmental 
Department for storage. 

  
New Business-  

a) Home and Garden Show – March 15 & 16 There was a discussion on what the 
committee wants to have as a topic for the booth.  It was decided that we should 
look at partnering with the city of Hays.  James will work on this.  We also did 
a basic signup sheet.  We will finish it up at the next meeting. 

b) Member update-  Dr. Jean Gleischner- City of Hays Appointment-  The City of 
Hays is expected to approve Dr. Gleishner’s appointment to the WHP 
committee, but there is a process and timeframe that could take a while.  The 
same with the appointment of Hendratta by FHSU.  It was moved by Allen and 
seconded by Ken that we have Dr. Gleischner and Hendratti Ali as voting 
committee members pending approval by their respective entities.  Motion 
carried.   

c) Meeting dates and times-  It was moved by Allen and seconded by Hendratta that we 
continue having our regular meetings on the third Tuesday of the month at 5:30. 
Motion carried- 5-0.   The next scheduled meeting will be moved to the second 
Tuesday of the month because of spring break and wanting to meet before the Home 
and garden show.   

155



d) Member discussion on where we want to head-  The committee had a discussion.  We 
still want to stay with education, but we would like to collaborate with other entities 
and make our presence known.  Have a partnership with City of Hays, FHSU, RWD, 
etc. 

e) Other-  It was reported that the Trego RWD was having no new taps, and they are 
looking for places to drill new wells.  Allen stated that the Governors vision team will 
be scheduling a meeting in Hays coming up, and there will also be a Basin Advisory 
Committee meeting (BAC) in March.   
 

Date for Next Meeting-  The next meeting will be held on March 11, 2014 at 5:30 PM at 
Tomanek Hall- room 222. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:25 PM. 
 
 
Submitted by Karen Purvis,  Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
Signed by 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Chairman 

156



Airport Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 
March 3, 2014 
 
Members Present; 
Don Benjamin - Excused 
Dan Stecklein 
Bob Johnson 
Lyle Noordhoek 
Errol Wuertz 
Gary Wentling 
Mike Konz 
I.D. Creech 
Chris Springer 
John Braun 
 
1.) Call to Order. 
 
2.) Approval of February 3, 2014 Minutes. 
Minutes approved. 
 
3.) Discuss Enplanements. 
Hays airport had 373 passengers for February.  That is 155 down compared to February last year.  
We are 273 behind in enplanements year to date compared to last year.  Great Lakes reports that 
a pilot shortage is root cause.  More flights are being canceled as far as a week in advance and 
the cancellations are not weather related.  It is becoming very frustrating for Hays travelers. 
 
4.) Discuss the Fly-In Preparations. 
The Fly-In is scheduled for June 7th.  Due to federal budget constraints, military participation is 
still restricted.  We may get some military flights as part of their training and refueling missions 
to get around the restrictions.  The food planning for the event has been taken care of.  Requests 
have been sent out to vendors to supply product samples that can be given away.  The Highway 
Patrol will be participating.  Local aircraft owners are encouraged to put their airplanes on 
display.  Advertisement flyers will be going out to every airport in the state. 
 
5.) Discuss Terminal Expansion. 
John Braun presented the latest version of the airport expansion drawings.  This week the plans 
should be 95% complete and will be sent to the FAA for their input.  The project will be open for 
bids on April 16th.  If approved, the airport should be able to operate with the commuter airline 
during construction but there could be some challenges if we would start jet service before the 
project is completed.  Construction time would be approximately 5 to 6 months.  If a contract 
was awarded in May, the project should be completed by the end of the year. 
 
6.) Discuss Essential Air Service Funding. 
As of March 3rd, there is no word yet from the Department of Transportation on who they will 
recommend to provide essential air service for Hays.   
 

157



 
7.) Discuss Airport Promotion. 
Hays is waiting for a decision from the Department of Transportation before funds can be 
committed to a revised Fly Hays campaign. 
 
Add-Ons 
Bob Johnson - The City needs to know if someone needs snow removed quickly so that they can 
use their airplane after snow storms.  The airport is making an effort to make sure air services are 
not being delayed due to snow on taxiways and in front of hangars.  Some committee members 
reported that snow removal recently has been better than any time in the past, that they can 
remember. 
 
8.) Schedule Next Meeting. 
April 7, 2014 at 6:30PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Errrol Wuertz 
 
 

158



Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course 
Advisory Board Meeting 

March 3, 2014 
 

In Attendance: 
Jim Krob, President          Jeff Boyle, Director, Parks Department     
Ron Speier, Vice President         Travis Haines, Parks Superintendent    
Karen Schueler, Secretary        Kerry Tiernan, Interim Golf Course Superintendent (absent) 
Bill Bieker           Rich Guffey, ProShop Manager, Tournament Chair   
Doug Huston                      
Ron Augustine, Men’s Association               
Janet Schmidt, Ladies Association      
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by President Jim Krob.   
  
1.  Approval of the minutes from February meeting:  Approved as written.   
 
2.  Board membership:  current status ‐  appointed members (3 year terms)  
Doug Huston 07/01/14    Bill Bieker  07/01/15        Ron Speier, 07/01/16  
Jim Krob 07/01/14    Karen Schueler 07/01/15  
Ron Augustine, Men’s Association  Janet Schmidt, Ladies Association      
 
3.  Old Business:      

 FHLGA Request to Replace Carpeting in Ladies Bathroom:  Jeff reported that the City Manager is 
supportive of remodeling the pro‐shop to update bathrooms and make better use of space.  Jeff will be 
putting together some plans for this.   

 Cart Path Repair:  Jeff and the Parks Department crew will be working on patching the paths for this 
spring, and doing more major repair work in the fall.  They also will repaint the arrows and markings in 
the parking lot.   

 
4.  New Business:   

 Jeff provided a tentative design for enlarging the parking lot by the cart sheds.   

 Course Superintendent Position:  Jeff reported that they received a lot of good applications and will soon 
be doing interviews.   

 
5.  Pro‐Shop report:  Rich Guffey reported:    
 

  Rounds Played   

  2014   2013  2012  Year‐to‐Date
Rounds Played 

Greens Fees Paid Total Greens  Fees 
for Year 

February   292  489  474   

January  717  456  23   

         

            2013 / 21,945
2012 / 23, 649 
2011 / 22,990 
 

2013 
$109,446.00 
2012 
$115, 742.00 

 

159



 2

Rounds were low due to cold weather and snow.  Currently there are 40 cart sheds not renewed, and thirteen 
members who turned in keys, who will not renew their shed.  The economy and aging of members seems to be 
the primary factors.  There are nineteen on the waiting list for sheds who should be able to get in now.   
 
Rich plans to put together a newsletter for handout at the proshop.  Karen will work with him on that.   Jeff 
plans to send a letter to members to update them about issues on the course, the search for a superintendent, 
etc.  There was discussion regarding the need for a website for the golf course.   
 
Junior Golf classes will be held every Thursday morning in June; $60 per student;  ages 8 – 17 years.   
Senior Golf ($20 annual fee) will start on Tuesday, April 1st, 9:00 am, weather permitting. 
 
7.  Tournament report:     Rich Guffey reminded the group that the high school 2‐A tournament with 92 
participants will be on Tuesday, May 27th.  Or the 28th, if it is rained out.   There will probably be a lot of 
observers, including coaches and parents; thus cart paths only.   
 
8.  Course report:   Jeff reported that the irrigation was turned on two weeks ago, and greens were watered.  
Due to cold weather, those were “blown out” again.  New chemicals have been ordered per the 
recommendations of the consultant.   Kerry will be gone 4 to 6 weeks, so others have stepped up to help out 
during that time.   
 
9.  Parks Department update:      

 Golf Course improvement Balance  ‐ 1/23/14 
    Cart Path Trail Fees:    $42,734.54 
    Donation Money:    $1,525.85 includes 

 Putting Green (Men’s Association):  $1,224.00 

 Trees:  $ 226.41 

 Carry over from previous tournament funds:  $75.44 
 
10.  Ladies’ Association report:    Janet Schmidt reported that the ladies will be receiving a letter/notice soon 
about plans for 2014.  They would like to start on April 1st, weather permitting. 
 
11.  Men’s Association report:      Ron Augustine reported they will start April 16th, weather permitting.     
 
Add‐ons:   
 
Jeff Boyle:  The City of Hays has issued a “watering warning” for the city, which the Parks Department, including 
the golf course, will try to also observe, particularly regarding the time of day that watering is allowed.   They 
will also limit the amount of flower planting throughout the city, including the golf course.   
  
 Adjourned:  6:o5 pm.     
 
 Submitted by Karen Schueler, Secretary                       March 5, 2014  

160



Minutes of the Hays Public Library (HPL) Board Meeting  
Tuesday, March 11, 2014 

  
The meeting was called to order at 4:00 pm by President Judy Flax. Others present 
were Eric Norris, David Dunn, Pam Shaffer, Kent Steward, and Avry St. Peter. Marcia 
Dinkel, Lauren Lowry, and Delbert Stanton were absent. 
Guests: None 
Public Comment: None  
Bills: It was moved and seconded (P. Shaffer/D. Dunn) to approve the February bills 
for payment. The motion passed 5-0.  
Minutes: After Board consideration of the minutes and with no objections, President 
Judy Flax declared the February minutes approved as presented. 
 
Eric mentioned highlights of the minutes (not yet approved) of the February   
meeting of the Executive Council of the Friends of the Library (FOL). With Sue 
Firestone’s resignation as President of the Executive Committee, Marjorie Mueller 
was elected Interim President. FOL will be hosting a book sale on April 4 and 5, in the 
Schmidt Gallery. 
Board members Judy Flax and Pam Shaffer attended the Kansas State University 
Board Leadership Series in January and found the sessions worthwhile.  

Director’s Report: 

• Eric reported the happy news that Luci Bain, Kansas Room Librarian, gave birth 
to baby Peter, on Sunday, February 23, 2014. Although Peter arrived earlier than 
expected, mother and baby are doing fine. Luci plans to return to work in May. 

• Because of a continual rowdiness of a group of adolescents in the HPL southwest 
parking lot and an older teen’s using a car to speed out into the street, Eric 
spoke to the Hays Police; as a result, the police have become more of a 
presence there after school hours. The individuals who were loitering seem not to 
have been actively involved in the Young Adult Department activities and have 
since moved on.    

• Eric is unable to make significant progress on the 2015 HPL budget until the City 
of Hays receives a projected financial report from Ellis County, concerning 
property taxes. Then the City will be able to give HPL a better idea of the funds it 
can expect for 2015.     

• Concerning the monthly financial report, Eric noted that HPL had received State 
funds and Datalink funds from the Central Kansas Library System. Eric also 
completed the requirements for 2014-15 E-Rate funding, which is a state program 
that helps pay for phone bills for schools and other educational institutions.  

• Eric has accepted a request to serve as a Mentor at the 2014 Mountain Plains 
Library Association (MPLA) Leadership Institute, in Estes Park, Colorado, April 27-
May 2. This is very much an honor, for he was chosen to work with only four other 

161



mentors from twelve states! He was contacted after one of the mentors could 
not serve.    

• As noted in Tom Micek’s monthly report, two new people have been hired in the 
IT Department: Janna Montgomery will be serving in a Level I position, taking over 
computer classes and other programming; Conrad Hoffman will start soon as a 
Level II librarian in the IT Department.        

• The Lincoln Exhibit has been received well, with positive feedback from patrons 
about the exhibit and the associated programs.  

• Erin Givens, PR Coordinator, has created a monthly staff newsletter, Shelf Talk, 
which presents library and staff news as a means to keep the staff informed and 
help create a sense of team spirit. Eric is very pleased with the project and 
included it among the material in the Board’s March meeting packet.       

• Eric stated that he has subscribed to a cost-saving extended contract for HPL, 
with The Library Corporation (TLC), which provides automation technologies for 
libraries. The costs are $8,100 for the first year and $7,898 for the following four 
years.  

• The 2013 Dodge Caravan (see the February minutes) has been purchased and 
has already been used by staff for travel and programs. To make further use of 
the library vehicle, Eric plans to approach Dillons Food Stores (and possibly 
Walmart) about placing book-return drop-off locations in the stores. Concerning 
HPL signage on the van, Eric and the staff are still discussing possible decals and 
have sought bids from two companies, about costs for applying the logos.  

• The annual HPL audit, with the accounting firm of Adams, Beran, Brown and Ball, 
will take place on Thursday, April 3 and Friday, April 4. Thanks to the excellent 
work of Patty Rohr, HPL Financial Administrator, the financial report is ready and 
arranged in a way to facilitate the audit.  

Unfinished Business: None 

New Business: Eric presented the Hays Public Library Social Media Policy (in the meeting 
packet) for the Board’s consideration. After discussion, it was moved and seconded (A. 
St. Peter/K. Steward) to approve the Hays Public Library Social Media Policy as written. 
The motion passed 5-0.      
 
President Judy Flax moved and Kent Steward seconded that the Board go into 
Executive Session, under K.S.A 75-4319: Personnel Matters (for fifteen minutes). The 
motion passed 5-0. Eric left the room. The session began at 4:35 and ended at 4:50 pm. 
Eric returned to the meeting and agreed to meet with President Judy Flax to go over 
the Director’s evaluations. 
Open Board Discussion:  Eric answered some Board questions about Kansas Room 
check-out policy. The meeting was adjourned at 4:55 pm. 
 
Pam Shaffer, Secretary 
Hays Public Library Board 
 

162



Hays Sister Cities Advisory Board Agenda 
Thursday, March 13, 2014 

Noon – Smoky Hill Conference Room 
FHSU Memorial Union 

 
 
Call to Order –Meeting was called to order at 12:06 pm at the Smoky Hill Room at the FHSU 
Memorial Union by Ann Leiker.  

 
Members Present:  Ann Leiker, Greg Sund, Olga Detrixhe, Mehran Shahidi, Dawne Leiker, 
Patricia Levy and Carol Solko-Olliff    
 
Members Absent:  Max Maximov, Corrie Zimmerman 
 
Guest(s):  Helen Robson 
 
Minutes:  Carol S. presented the minutes from the January and February 2014 meetings.  
Olga D. asked that the February minutes be updated to reflect that she and Patricia L. would 
be available to work with the City Commission on the planning of a trade mission trip to 
China.   After the correction, it was moved by Greg S. and seconded by Dawne L. to accept 
the January and February minutes.  Minutes were approved. 
 
Treasurer’s Report:   Ann L. reported no new transactions on the financial report, the 
account balance is $22,242.80.  Dawne L. will work with Commerce Bank to get the Sister 
Cities accounts updated to reflect she is the new treasurer.  Ann L. will also be on the 
accounts.   Dawne L suggested that a debit card for the account might also be beneficial 
when making reservations for the Sister Cities conference or other purchases.   It was moved 
by Greg S. and seconded by Dawne L. to accept the financial report.  Financial report 
approved. 
 
Report from FHSU:   Carol S. reported that seven (7) visiting faculty from partner schools in 
China are on campus this spring semester working with FHSU faculty.   The on-campus 
international enrollment is 403 students and two (2) new ESL students have arrived to start 
the second language session.   

 
Old Business  
 

 Ross Beach Memorial –  Sternberg project re: Paraguay –  No report 
 

 Paraguay contacts and relationship status – Ann L. had talked to Armando about the 
contact he was initiating with Paraguay.  He had sent a letter, but did not receive a 
response.  We will continue to try and secure contact information in order to create 
sustainable communication.  Max M. had offered to help with Spanish translation.  It 
was suggested that he make contact with Marianna Beach as she may still have 
contacts and information on the best way to make contact. 

 
 New German Sister City – No report – Max M. is currently out of the country.  

 
 Web-site & Facebook Page – Ann L. is working on getting the Facebook page turned 

over to Dawne L. to serve as the administrator. 

163



 
 
New Business 
  

 City Commission Update –Mayor Steward sent his regrets that he was unable to 
attend the meeting. 
 

o China Trip - Olga R. reported she would be getting in touch with the working 
group about a meeting to discuss the China trip/trade mission.  The working 
group will determine dates, costs and publicity.  It was suggested to plan far 
enough in advance to get information out and determine interest in the trip.   
The group should keep the City Commission updated on the planning process 
and details. 

o Ann L. passed out a copy of the Sister Cities e-newsletter and informed the 
group they can go on-line to read it.  The Sister Cities International Conference 
will be held in San Jose, California July 31st - August 2nd.   Mehran S. is 
interested in attending the conference.  Ann L. offered to help Mehran S. get 
registered.  Greg S. moved and Dawne L. seconded that we designate Mehran 
Shahidi to represent our Hays Sister City organization and that we cover the 
cost of registration and flight.  Motion passed.  Mehran will not request lodging 
as he has family that he can stay with.   

 
 New Board Appointments – Ann L. reported that Mayor Steward will officially appoint 

Helen Robson to the Sister Cities Committee.   With this appointment the board should 
be full. 

 
 Hispanic Celebration –   Ann L. talked to Father Fred about the funds provided for the 

Celebration.  Fr. Fred indicated that he had turned the funds over to Fr. Weber and 
they were used to translate materials into Spanish at the church.   The committee 
discussed that more direction and follow through should be done with groups that 
request assistance related to cultural and diversity awareness. 

 
 Strategic Plan - Greg S. reported on some interest goals for Sister Cities.  The group 

discussed a number of areas and topics which Greg S. recorded and added to his list.  
The compilation of information will be useful once we get firmly into to process.   
Discussion revolved around the Name – Vision – Mission of our group.  It was 
discussed that our mission could revolve around “building intercultural awareness in 
an inclusive community”.  Given the scope and time needed to focus on the Strategic 
Plan one or two special meetings will need to be held.  It is difficult to get through our 
regular Sister Cities business and have enough time to devote to the process during a 
regular meeting.  Olga R. will query the group to determine the best days and times to 
schedule the meetings.    

 
The next meeting will be Thursday, April 10, 2014 at noon. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 1:15 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted by:  Carol Solko-Olliff 

164


	4-24-14 City Commission Meeting Agenda
	4-10-14 City Commission Meeting Minutes
	March 2014 Financial Statement
	Cereal Malt Beverage License Applicatoins/Special Event Permits
	Mayoral Appointments for Approval
	Extension of Contract Sewer Cleaning Agreement
	Bike Hays KDOT Agreements for Bicycle Pavement Markings and Pedestrian - Bicycle Path
	Taxi License
	Commission Informational Memorandum
	2-18-14 Ellis County Wellhead Protection Committee Meeting Minutes
	3-3-14 Airport Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes
	3-3-14 Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course Advisory Board Meeting Minutes
	3-11-14 Hays Public Library Board Meeting Minutes
	3-13-14 Hays Sister Cities Advisory Board Meeting Minutes



